
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD
AN OPEN MEETING IN THE SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA.
ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE
CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC
IS WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260,
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, AUGUST 5, 2014 - 10:00 A.M.
             

1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF
ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION

 

 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A.   Update on the activities of the County
Supervisors Association (CSA) by Craig
Sullivan, CSA Executive Director, including a
discussion of recent legislative activities. 
(Craig Sullivan)

Presented

 

B.   Information/Discussion regarding the Arizona
State Auditor General's report of the Gila
County 1/2 Cent Transportation Excise Tax
performance audit.  (Steve Stratton)

Presented

 

3. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve an
Agreement-Economic Development Grant
between Gila County and the Bullion Plaza
Cultural Center & Museum whereby the
County will disburse up to $30,000 to the
Museum to maintain and improve the
Museum; and further the Board determines
this is for the benefit of the public and will
improve or enhance the economic welfare of
the inhabitants of Gila County. 
(Jose Sanchez/Thomas Foster/Don

Continued



McDaniel)
 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to ratify the
Sheriff's Office electronic submission of a
FY2015 Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Control
Grant Application in the amount of $416,906
which includes a 25% match requirement, to
the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission to
renew grant funding that will be used for the
salaries and benefits of the Gila County
Sheriff's Office Drug, Gang, and Violent
Crimes Task Force.  (Travis Baxley)

Ratified

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve a
Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Grant
Agreement (FY2015 Grant Cycle 28 Award-
ACJC Grant No. DC-15-004) between the Gila
County Sheriff's Office and the Arizona
Criminal Justice Commission in the amount of
$336,917 ($134,767 in federal funds,
$117,921 in state funds and $84,229 in
matching funds from the County's General
Fund) to provide continued funding for the
Gila County Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes
Task Force for the period of July 1, 2014,
through June 30, 2015.  (Travis Baxley)

Approved

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt
Proclamation No. 2014-08 proclaiming August
1-31, 2014, as Child Support Awareness
Month in Gila County.   (Jeff Dalton)

Adopted

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the
Gila County Superior Court's "State Fill the
Gap" application which will facilitate the
transition of the Limited Jurisdiction Courts to
the new document imaging case management
system known as AJACS (Arizona Judicial

Approved



Automated Case System).
(Jonathan Bearup)

 

F.   Information/Discussion/Action to review all
bids submitted for Invitation for Bids
No. 060214 for the hauling of asphalt millings
to Forest Road 417-Gisela Road; award to the
lowest, most responsive, responsible and
qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's
signature on the award contract for the
winning bidder.  (Jeff Hessenius and Steve
Stratton)

Awarded

 

G.   Information/Discussion/Action to review all
bids submitted for Invitation for Bids
No. 060314-1 for the milling of asphalt for the
Gisela Road project; award to the lowest, most
responsive, responsible and qualified bidder;
and authorize the Chairman's signature on the
award contract for the winning bidder.  (Jeff
Hessenius and Steve Stratton)

Awarded

 

H.   (Motion to adjourn as the Board of
Supervisors and convene as the Gila
County Library District Board of Directors.) 
Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Library Service Agreements between the Gila
County Library District and the following five
libraries to cooperate in the provision of library
services to the citizens of the District for the
period July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015:
Hayden Public Library - $47,120;  Isabelle
Hunt Memorial Library - $101,080; Miami
Memorial Library - $51,680; Payson Public
Library - $218,880; and Tonto Basin Public
Library - $64,600.  (Jacque Griffin) (Motion
to adjourn as the Library District Board of
Directors and reconvene as the Board of
Supervisors.)

Approved



 

I.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve the
following Countywide policies to be included in
the Countywide Policy Manual:  Minutes of the
Board of Supervisors' Meeting Policy No.
BOS-COB-001, Computing and
Communication Technology Use and Ethics
Policy No. BOS-ADM-002, and revised Conflict
of Interest Policy No. BOS-HRS-140.   (Don
McDaniel)

Approved

 

J.   Information/Discussion/Action to consider a
sealed bid for the purchase of State-owned tax
parcel number 207-15-300-B-7 located in
Globe. 
(Marian Sheppard)

Accepted

 

4. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any
matter on the Consent Agenda will be
removed from the Consent Agenda and
discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any
member of the Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement
(DPS Contract No. 2014-087) between the
State of Arizona Department of Public Safety
and the Gila County Sheriff's Office to provide
one (1) detention officer as a Detention Liaison
Officer for the Gang and Immigration
Intelligence Team Enforcement Mission for the
performance period of July 1, 2014, through
June 30, 2015, and the Agreement shall
renew annually on July 1st for a period of
time not to exceed five (5) years. 

Approved

 

B.   Approval of Amendment No. 1 to a Prevention Approved



B.   Approval of Amendment No. 1 to a Prevention
Services Agreement between Cenpatico
Behavioral Health of Arizona, LLC, and
Cenpatico of Arizona, Inc. (collectively referred
to as "Cenpatico") and Gila County Division of
Health and Emergency Services to extend the
term of the agreement for the period July 1,
2014, to September 30, 2014, and to add
funding in the amount of $8,517.

Approved

 

C.   Approval of a FY 2015 Crime Victim
Compensation Grant Agreement (ACJC No.
VC-15-052) between Gila County and the
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in the
amount of $70,477 for the period of July 1,
2014, to June 30, 2015.

Approved

 

D.   Approval of a FY2015 Drug, Gang and Crime
Control Grant Agreement (ACJC No.
DC-15-023) between Gila County and the
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in the
amount of $63,656 for the period of July 1,
2014, to June 30, 2015.

Approved

 

E.   Approval of a FY2015 Crime Victim Assistance
Grant Agreement (ACJC Grant No. VA-15-020)
between Gila County and the Arizona Criminal
Justice Commission in the Amount of $17,600
for the period of July 1, 2014, to June 30,
2015.

Approved

 

F.   Approval of Amendment No. 11 to an
Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
DE111073001) between the Arizona
Department of Economic Security and the Gila
County Division of Community Services,
Community Action Program, which pertains to
contractors utilized to provide services

Approved



throughout the designated geographic service
areas.

 

G.   Adoption of an Order designating polling
places and appointment of poll workers and
election board workers for the purpose of
conducting the Primary Election on Tuesday,
August 26, 2014.

Adopted

 

H.   Acknowledgment of the resignation of Joseph
Brown from the Whispering Pines Fire District
and the appointment of Doyle Warner to
complete Mr. Brown's term which expires
December 31, 2016.

Acknowledged

 

I.   Acknowledgment of the resignation of Don
Nelder from the Rim Trail Domestic Water
Improvement District Governing Board and
the appointment of Gary Richardson to
complete Mr. Nelder's term which expires
December 31, 2014.

Acknowledged

 

J.   Acknowledgment of the June 2014 monthly
activity report submitted by the Globe
Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 

K.   Acknowledgment of the June 2014 monthly
activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Justice of the Peace's Office. 

Acknowledged

 

L.   Acknowledgment of the June 2014 monthly
activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Constable's Office.

Acknowledged

 

M.   Acknowledgment of the annual activity report
submitted by the Payson Regional Constable's
Office.

Acknowledged



 

N.   Acknowledgment of the May 2014 and June
2014 monthly activity reports submitted by
the Globe Regional constable's Office.

Acknowledged

 

O.   Acknowledgment of the June 2014 monthly
activity report submitted by the Clerk of the
Superior Court's Office.

Acknowledged

 

P.   Approval of the June 24, 2014, and July 15,
2014, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Approved

 

Q.   Acknowledgment of the Human Resources
reports for the weeks of July 1, 2014, July 8,
2014, July 15, 2014, July 22, 2014, and July
29, 2014.

Acknowledged

 

R.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000
which have been approved by the County
Manager for the weeks of June 30, 2014
to July 4, 2014; July 7, 2014 to July 11,
2014; and July 14, 2014 to July 18, 2014.

Acknowledged

 

S. Approval of finance
reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of
July 22, 2014, July 29, 2014, and August 5,
2014.

Approved

 

5. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is
held for public benefit to allow individuals to
address the Board of Supervisors on any issue
within the jurisdiction of the Board of
Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona
Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the
conclusion of an open call to the public,
individual members of the Board of

No Comments



individual members of the Board of
Supervisors may respond to criticism made by
those who have addressed the Board, may ask
staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further
discussion and decision at a future date.

 

6. At any time during this meeting pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members of the Board of
Supervisors and the County Manager may
present a brief summary of current events. No
action may be taken on issues presented.

Presented

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING



   
ARF-2563     Presentation      2. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
County Supervisors Association Update of Activities.

Background Information
Each year the Executive Director of the County Supervisors Association
(CSA) visits all 15 counties in Arizona to provide the Boards of
Supervisors with an update of activities conducted by CSA including a
discussion of the recent legislative session. 

Evaluation
Craig Sullivan, Executive Director of CSA, has requested to make a
presentation to the Board of Supervisors on this date.

Conclusion
It would be advantageous to the Board of Supervisors, County staff and
the public to receive an update of CSA activities to include a discussion of
recent legislative activities.

Recommendation
It is recommended that Mr. Sullivan present an update of CSA activities
and discuss the recent legislative session with the Board of Supervisors. 

Suggested Motion
Update on the activities of the County Supervisors Association (CSA) by
Craig Sullivan, CSA Executive Director, including a discussion of recent
legislative activities.  (Craig Sullivan)

Attachments
CSA Presentation
Policy Development



Session by the Numbers
Report



51st Legislature, Second Regular Session: 
Briefing to Gila County 

Craig A. Sullivan 
Executive Director  

August 5, 2014 
 



County Supervisors Association 
CSA’s Purpose: 
 

• CSA is a non-partisan forum for Arizona’s 61 county supervisors to 
address important issues facing local constituents, providing a mechanism 
to share information and to advance a proactive state and federal policy 
agenda 

 
Core Goals: 
 

• Protect and enhance county authorities and resources in order to promote 
efficient, responsive constituent services 
 

• Develop and disseminate information to assist state and local decision-
making 



All 61 county supervisors from Arizona’s 15 counties 
 

CSA Executive Committee 

CSA Legislative Policy Committee 
 
 
Barry Weller, Apache 
Ann English, Cochise 
Mandy Metzger, Coconino 
Tommie Cline Martin, Gila 
David Gomez, Greenlee 
D.L. Wilson, La Paz  
Mary Rose Wilcox, Maricopa, (R. 5/27/2014) 

 
 
Gary Watson, Mohave 
David Tenney, Navajo 
Sharon Bronson, Pima 
Pete Rios, Pinal 
Manny Ruiz, Santa Cruz 
Tom Thurman, Yavapai 
Lenore Stuart, Yuma     

Jim Palmer, Graham, CSA President 

CSA Board of Directors 

President  
Hon. Jim Palmer 
Graham County 

President Elect 
Vacant 

Large County 

First Vice-President 
Hon. Mandy Metzger 

Coconino County 

Second Vice-President 
Hon. Tommie Martin 

Gila County 

Immediate Past President 
Hon. Lenore Stuart 

Yuma County  

Third Vice-President 
Hon. Anthony Smith 

Pinal County 

CSA Leadership 



CSA County Services 

• Advocacy and Policy Development 
• Arizona Legislature and Executive 

Agencies 
• U.S. Congress and Federal Agencies 

 

•Research and Informative Products 
 

•Communication and Outreach 
 

FY 2013-2014 Association Report 
Includes select outcomes, information products and 

support services. 
 

CSA Legislative Summary 
Annual summary document is now available on the  

CSA website: www.countysupervisors.org 

The general effective for bills was July 24, 2014, 90 days after sine die. 

 



 
 
 

 

2013 CSA Summit – Payson, Gila County 
County Directives to CSA Staff 
 

• Budget  #1 Priority 
• Elevate statewide awareness of the HURF funding crisis 

• Restore local government HURF 
• Identify strategies for enhanced resources/improved efficiencies 

• Eliminate county payments to the Arizona State Hospital for the 
Sexually Violent Persons (SVP) population  

• Re-establish, in statute, the share of Lottery revenues for all 15 
Arizona counties 
 

• Advance client-initiated, CSA-sponsored legislation 
 

• Engage legislation that impacts county resources, 
services or authorities 
 
 
 

 

5 



Getting the Message Out 
6 

Counties mobilize 
to communicate 
priorities 
 

Sustain ongoing 
conversations with 
decision-makers 
 

Coalition of 
legislators and 
stakeholders hear a 
consistent,  
resounding 
message 



Transportation  Advocacy 

7 

6 



Final FY14-15 Budget 
On April 11, 2014, the Governor signed a budget, but she chose to line-item veto 
eight provisions, including one that offset TPT revenue losses to counties. 
 
• The budget includes the following county-related provisions: 

• HURF Restoration: $30 million appropriated for HURF restoration 
• Counties receive: $10 million 
• Gila County receives an estimated: $152,765 
 

• Direct Appropriation to Counties (Lottery Revenue):  $7.15 million line item appropriation 
to be distributed to 13 counties under 900,000 persons.  

• Gila County receives: $550,000 
 

• Sexually Violent Persons (SVP) Payments: Maintains FY15 payments at FY14 levels,  
approximately 34% of costs. Includes "flexibility language" allowing counties to pay via any 
county resource. 

 
• County Flexibility Language: Allows counties, with fewer than 200,000 persons, to use any 

source of county revenue to meet a county fiscal obligation for FY 2015. 
 
 
 



State Budget with K-12 Judgment  
FY15 FY16 FY17 

Ongoing Revenues $8,720 $9,069 $9,486 
Ongoing 
Expenditures $9,564 $9,774 $10,074 

Structural Balance/ 
(Deficit)1 $(844) $(706) $(589) 

Carry Forward $596 $0 $(220) $0 $(932) 
One Time Revenue $52 $(6) $0 
One-time Capital 
Outlay $24 $0 $0 

Ending Balance / 
(Deficit)  $(220) $(706) $(932) $(589) $(1,520) 

Notes: a) Figures are taken from JLBC K-12 Inflation Funding Lawsuit Update Table 4, based on the April FAC forecast;  
 b) Figures only reflect projected balances due to the K-12 inflation reset, if back payments are required the FY16  
  ending balance could reach $(1.4) billion. 
 c) some figures may not add due to rounding 
1 Excludes one-time revenues and expenditures and does not account for $460M in “rainy day” fund 
 

In Millions 

9 



CSA Legislative Agenda  
&  

County-related Bills 



CSA-sponsored Legislation 
Enacted into law: 
 

• HB 2218: fire districts reorganization elections (Fann) Ch. 260 
• HB 2240: developmental disabilities; client income; retention (Brophy McGee) 

Ch. 167 
• HB 2320: county seals; approval of use (J. Pierce) Ch. 57 
• SCM 1006: urging Congress; PILT program; funding (Griffin) Transmitted 

 

Did not advance through the process: 
 

• HB 2149: state parks; SLIF fund distribution (Borrelli)  
• Held House Rules 
 

• HB 2224: sale of fireworks; counties (Fann)  
• Failed in House Public Safety, Military and Regulatory Affairs 

 

• HB 2531: court-ordered evaluation services; payment (Brophy-McGee)  
• Held Senate Third Read, to pursue an administrative remedy 

 

• SB 1271: county liens; abatements (Ward) 
• Assigned to Senate Government & Environment  
 

11 



AACo’s Legislative Agenda 
Enacted into law: 

• HB 2005: community colleges; nonresidents; reimbursement (Gowan) Ch. 21 
• HB 2287: county treasurer; lien; sale (Lesko) Ch. 205 
• SB 1179: constables; prohibited acts (Burges) Ch. 242 
• SB 1352: property tax roll; corrections (Worsley) Ch. 249 

 
Did not advance through the process: 

• HB 2460: probation; community supervision; search; seizure (E. Farnsworth) 
• Assigned to House Judiciary 

• SB 1131:county treasurer; liability (Griffin) 
• Held Senate Rules 

• SB 1178: special detainer actions; landlord; tenant (Burges) 
• Held House Commerce 

• SB 1470: superior court clerks; salaries (Driggs) 
• Assigned Senate Government & Environment; Appropriations 
 

12 



Other County Partner Initiatives 
CSA supported other partners efforts, including: 
 
• HB 2027: golf carts; NEVs; passing; driving (Lesko) Ch. 23 

• Maricopa County  
 

• HB 2126: municipal annexation; municipal primary elections (Pratt) Ch. 256 
• League of Arizona Cities & Towns, Town of Gilbert 

 

• HB 2148 municipalities; counties; transfer; right-of-way (Borrelli) Ch. 134 
• Maricopa County 
 

• HB 2166: PSPRS contributions; county employers (Orr) Ch. 202 
• Pima County 

 

• HB 2225: county medical examiner; autopsies; images (Fann) Ch. 88 
• Maricopa County 

 

• HB 2523: projects; water supply development (Barton) Ch. 212 
• La Paz County  

 

• SB 1035: special health care districts; reimbursement (Melvin) Ch. 65 
• Maricopa County 

 

• SB 1255: county transportation excise tax (Shooter) Held, House Ways & Means 
• Yuma County 

 
 
 

13 



CSA Reactive Advocacy  
 

General Government 
- Preemption of local control regarding land use 
- Annexation amendments 
- Regulatory reform 
- Election reform amendments 
- Public lobbying regulation  

 
 

Public Health 
- Food handlers card training and standards 
- Animal licensing & auditing 
- Implementation of state healthcare reform 
- Forced transfers of county wards 

Natural Resources 
- State policy on wildfire containment &    

prevention 
- Sustainable water & forest management 
- Wildlife management 
- Local & state concerns with federal land 

Criminal Justice 
- Public building accessibility & weapon possession 
- Establishment of Veterans’ courts  
- Establishment of mental health courts 
- Expansion of county probation officer duties 
- Sheriffs’ police authority for search & seizure 
- County deferred prosecution fund 

Public Finance & Special Districts 
- Electricity taxation 
- County audit deadlines 
- Tribal TPT revenue sharing 
- Gas tax revenue distribution 
- Secondary district levy, debt & expenditure limits 
- Arizona Fire Districts board composition & management issues 

14 



Legislation Amended by Counties 
Bills favorably amended, to address county concerns: 
 

• HB 2330: municipalities; deannexation; public right-of-way (Livingston) Ch. 146 
 

• HB 2436: food handler training; courses; certification (Shope) Ch. 210 
 

• HB 2530:  county dog licensing; temporary license (Brophy McGee)  
• Held House COW 

 

• HB 2640: govt investigations; independent 3rd party (Townsend)  
• Held Senate Rules 

 

• SB 1217: precinct officers; salaries (McCommish) Ch. 113 
 

• SB 1249: dangerous and incompetent defendants; commitment (Driggs) 
• Assigned House Judiciary, Appropriations 

 

• SB 1305: semipublic swimming pool barrier gates (Griffin) Ch. 78 
 

 

15 



Legislation Opposed by Counties 
CSA opposed the following bills: 

 

• HB 2013: counties; flood control districts; rules (Ugenti)  
• Held House COW 

 

• HB 2069: ASRS; political subdivision entities (Ugenti)  
• Held House Third Read 

 

• HB 2093: incapacitated persons; jurisdiction of court (Petersen) S/E 
Vehicle/ SB 1176 change of venue; guardianship (Crandell)  

• Held Senate COW 
 

• HB 2093: S/E lobbyists; false statement; authorization (Petersen)  
• Failed Senate COW 

 

• HB 2379: special districts; secondary levy limits (Olson)  
• Held House Rules 

 

• HB 2386: special districts; elections; financing; limits (Olson)  
• Held House Gov. 

 

• HB 2448: S/E just compensation; tax credits (Gowan)  
• Failed Senate Third Read 

 

• HB 2594: public construction; business losses; compensation (Allen)  
• Failed House Gov. 

 
 
 

16 



Legislation Opposed by Counties (Cont.) 

CSA opposed the following bills: 
• SB 1210: municipalities; county park annexation (Griffin)  

• Assigned Senate Government & Environment 
 

• SB 1316: financial reporting; political subdivisions (S. Pierce)  
• Held Senate Third Read  

 

• SB 1357: county boundary change; vote (Griffin)  
• Assigned Senate Government & Environment 

 

• SB 1405: public employee misconduct; civil action (Murphy)  
• Held Senate Government & Environment 

____________________________________________________________ 
• HB 2339: firearms; permit holders; public places (Barton) Vetoed 

 

• HB 2420: county supervisors; pop. threshold; membership (Stevens)Ch. 265 /   
   SB 1483: county supervisors; pop. threshold; membership (Griffin) Vetoed 

 

• HB 2483: firearms; private land; lawful discharge (Kavanagh) Ch. 62 

 

17 



2014 Summary 
Incremental progress on financial objectives resulted in $10 million 
in HURF relief for counties in FY15.   

• Secured direct county appropriation, projected through 2017 
• Session law “flexibility language” 
• Elevated awareness of growing transportation funding crisis 

 

Lawmakers exercising caution when funding new items or 
addressing cost shifts due to projected structural deficits. 

• Situation made worse by looming lawsuits (Medicaid Expansion, 
K-12 inflation) and child welfare crisis 

  
Improved operating environment with many new legislators taking 
an interest in county issues. 

• Education efforts and relationships paying dividends 
  
Major changes on the horizon. 

• New Executive = New Agenda 
• New Leaders in 3 of 4 legislative caucuses 
• Legislative mix? 

 

18 



19 

Federal Update 

 
• Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT)  

o Gila received $3,426,420  in FY 2014 
 

• Waters of the U.S. 
o Proposed rule* to expand the definition of 

waters of the U.S. under the Clean Water Act 
      *Comment period extended to October 20, 2014 

 



Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT) 

20 

• PILT was established in 1976 to help 
offset losses in property tax revenues 
due to the tax-exempt status of 
federal land, and to partially 
reimburse counties for the costs of 
services provided on, or associated 
with federal public lands.  
 

• In 2008, Congress converted PILT to 
a mandatory classification and 
authorized the program through 
FY2012.  In July, 2012, P.L. 112-141 
extended mandatory spending for 
PILT to FY2013.  Though a one-year 
extension of PILT funding was 
included in the Agriculture Act of 
2014, the future of the program 
remains uncertain.   
 

• Gila County has just  4.0 percent 
of it’s jurisdiction occupied by 
private (taxable) land  
 

• Gila County received $3,426,420 in 
PILT payments this year 



Next Steps 

21 



Next Steps 
Connect with counties, stakeholders & legislators in preparation for 
2015: 

• CSA county outreach June through August 
• Managers meetings in June and August 
• Discuss potential initiatives and strategies  

 

Monitor the state & federal fiscal situation: 
• Federal appropriations processes (PILT, SRS, SCAAP, etc.) 
• JLBC/OSPB visits to discuss state budget, identify emerging issues 

 

Conduct interim research and participate in stakeholder activities, 
including: 

• Transportation issues 
• Title 34 threshold applicability in rural Arizona 
• PSPRS Cost Containment Strategies 
• Indigent defense costs 
• Animal licensing and control practices 
• Auditor General “county audit” training 
• Title 36 and court-ordered evaluations 
• County data collection 

 
 

 

22 



Policy Development Process 
 

• County legislative proposals due to CSA August 15, 2014 
• CSA provided template; staff available to assist with evaluation 

 
• CSA Board of Directors meeting, September 18, 2014 

 
• CSA Legislative Policy Summit hosted by Yavapai County 

• Prescott, October  8-10, 2014 

23 



 

County Supervisors Association of Arizona 
May 8, 2014 

  
 

Policy Development Roadmap 
May 8, 2014 

 
1) 2014 Legislative Session Wrap-up Briefing (May 15th) 

 Final county fiscal impacts reviewed 
 Assessment of 2014 Legislative Priorities  

 
2) Identify “Preliminary” County Legislative Issues (June - mid August) 

 CSA to provide policy form & development tips     
 Identify complex issues that may require significant research or due diligence 
 CSA staff is available to assist counties to evaluate proposals    

 
3) Post-Legislative Session County Outreach (May - August)  

 Provide legislative report and discuss issues important to supervisors and 
managers 

 
4) County Legislative Proposals and Resolutions Due to CSA (August 15th) 

 
5) County Managers and Administrators Meeting (September 12th) 

 Initial review of the county legislative proposals and Resolutions packet 
  

6) CSA Board Pre-Summit Briefing and Board Meeting (September 18th) 
 Review county legislative proposals and CSA due diligence   
 

7) County Managers and Administrators Pre-Summit Briefing (October 3rd)  
 Review county legislative proposals and CSA due diligence   
  

8) Legislative Summit:   
 Hassayampa Inn & Conference Center 

Yavapai County, Prescott 
October 8-10, 2014 

 
 Establish short and long-term legislative resolutions 
 Establish lobbying strategy   

 
9) Brief State Leadership (November - December) 

 Governor’s staff 
 Legislative leadership 

 
10) County Supervisors Brief Local Legislators (November - January) 

 
11)  Fifty Second Legislature, First Regular Session Begins (January 12, 2015) 



 

For more information contact the County Supervisors Association at (602) 252-5521 

 

2015 Legislative Policy Statement 
10

th
 Annual CSA Legislative Summit 

Yavapai County, Arizona 
October 8-10, 2014 

 
A. What is the legislative proposal?   

 
 

 
 
 

B. Describe the problem and explain how the proposal solves it.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C. What is the fiscal impact to the state or county budgets of the proposal? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D. What is the preliminary analysis of the political environment and stakeholders’ 
and affiliates’ comments? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E. Who is the primary county contact information for the proposal (name, phone, 
email and other relevant information)?  
 

Name: 

Phone:  

E-mail: 



 

County Supervisors Association │May 2014 

Veto History 

2014 25 

2013 26 

2012 25 

2011 29 

2010 14 

2009 22 

2008  32 

2007  22 

* Governor Brewer also line item vetoed 8 provisions in the FY14-15 budget and an appropriation in SB 1282 

Bill Count 

2014 Session by the Numbers 

Legislative Session History 



 

County Supervisors Association │May 2014 

 FY15 FY16 FY17 

Ongoing Revenues $8,708 $9,061 $9,465 

Ongoing Expenditures $9,200 $9,415 $9,719 

Structural Balance/ 
(Deficit)1 

$(492) $(354) $(254) 

Carry Forward $601 $139 $0 $(215) 

Fund Transfers $54 $0 $0 

One-time Capital  
Outlay 

$24 $0 $0 

Ending Balance / 
(Deficit) 

$139 $(215) $(254) $(469) 

 JLBC 
Baseline 

FY15 Changes to JLBC 
Baseline 

Total Revenues1 $8,708 $8,762 $54 

Total Expenditures2 $9,035 $9,224 $189 

In Millions 

Note: Figures may not add due to rounding 
1 Excludes one-time revenues and expenditures and does not account for $460M in “rainy day” fund 

Note: Figures may not add due to rounding 
1 Excludes $601 million beginning balance 
2 Excludes $120 million in HURF restoration 

Fiscal Year 2014 State Budget 



 
 
 
 

 

FY 13-14 Association Report 

County Supervisors Association of Arizona  - May 30,. 2014 – WWW.CountySupervisors.org 

CSA capabilities leveraged by: 
 County Supervisors 

 County Managers 

 Legislative Affairs Staff 

 Technical Experts 

 Affiliate Organizations 

 Contract Lobbyists 

 

 

CSA’S PU RPOSE  
 
The CSA is a non-partisan forum for Arizona’s 61 county 
supervisors to address important issues facing local 
constituents, providing a mechanism to share 
information and to advance a proactive state and 
federal policy agenda. 
 

 
           EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ME MBERSH IP  
 

             Hon. James Palmer, Graham County 
          President 

 
           Hon. Mary Rose Wilcox, Maricopa County 

          President Elect 
 

          Hon. Mandy Metzger, Coconino County 
         First Vice President 

 
     Hon. Tommie Martin, Gila County       

          Second Vice President 
 

    Hon. Antony Smith, Pinal County           
            Third Vice President 

 
            Hon. Lenore Stuart, Yuma County 

            Immediate Past President 
 
 

        CSA  PROFE SSI ONA L STA FF  
 

Craig A. Sullivan, Executive Director 
 

Todd Madeksza, Dir. of Legislative Affairs 
 

Penny Adams, Dir. of Finance & County Services 
 

Kristin Cipolla, Legislative Liaison 
 

Dan Bogert, Research Analyst 
 

Yvonne M. Ortega, Administrative & Special Projects 
 
 

CORE GOA LS  
 

 Protect and enhance county authorities and resources 
in order to promote efficient, responsive constituent 
services. 

 

 Develop and disseminate information to assist state 
and local decision-making. 

 
 

                       CORE  CAPA BIL ITIE S  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                    

               
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

STRA TE GIE S  
 

 Advance a proactive policy agenda  
 

 Leverage statewide county supervisor lobbying force 
 

 Develop legislative champions statewide  
 

 Support membership via outreach and specialized 
support 

 

 Identify, prioritize and develop information products 
to assist state and local decision-making 

 

 Retain and develop a talented, knowledgeable 
workforce 

 

 Maintain a fiscally efficient, service-oriented 
organization 



 
 
 
 

 

FY 13-14 Association Report 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

1905 W. Washington Street, Suite 100 
Phoenix, Arizona 85009 

(602) 252-5521 
www.countysupervisors.org  

 



 
 
 
 

 

FY 13-14 Association Report 

   
 
State Advocacy and Policy Development 

 

 2013 Ninth Annual Legislative Policy Summit, Hosted by Gila 
County 

 18 proposals analyzed for consideration 
 Secured restoration of $10 million in county HURF relief 
 Secured continuation of $550,000/rural county line item 

appropriations 
 Reauthorized resource “flexibility” language for county 

expenditures 
 Coordinated “Transportation Crisis” awareness campaign, 

mobilized county officials, and educated lawmakers and 
constituents about lack of road funding: 

 Crafted letters, resolutions, collateral pieces, legislative 
contact cards 

 County presentations before transportation committees 
and joint minority caucus meeting 

 Four of eight CSA initiatives approved by lawmakers 
 Defeated or favorably amended legislation problematic for 

county operations, including proposals that: 

 Micromanage/constrain county rule making processes 

 Arbitrarily restrict local control over secondary property 
tax districts, county levies and expenditures  

 Confused statutory “de-annexation“ process between 
municipalities and counties. 

 Increased county costs associated with dangerous and 
incompetent individuals remanded to ASH 

 Established excessive penalties for delayed compliance 
with auditing requirements  

 Increased county costs regarding indigent wards; residency 
of guardianship 

 Impacted county ability to maintain infrastructure 

 Diminished county dog licensing authority   

 Exposed public employees to substantial civil action 

 Preempted local control over firearms policy (vetoed) 
 Facilitated/prepared content for CSA leadership meetings 

with the Governor, and Senate and House Majority 
Leadership 

 Regularly communicated with Governor’s Office policy staff 
 Briefed House/Senate Majority/Minority Leadership and staff 
 Regularly briefed members of the legislature 
 Hosted “County 101” briefing for legislative research staff 
 Provided staff support for supervisors participating in AACo 

LPC 
 AZ Supreme Court’s Commission on Technology, Member 

 

 Represented county interests in legislative workgroups and 
stakeholder processes on the following topics: 

 Impacts of HURF diversions and transportation funding 
options 

 Retirement system (PSPRS/CORP/EORP/ASRS) 

 Office of Pest Management oversight 

 County comprehensive plans and forest management 

 Animal licensing and vaccination  

 County financial auditing requirements and practices 

 Fireworks amendment process 

 Countywide Fire Districts Study Committee 

 Ambulatory Services and Medical Transportation Interim 
Study Group 

 Deferred prosecution best practices 

 Medicaid Implementation 

 AZ Criminal Justice Commission 

 Digital Arizona Council 
 

Federal Advocacy and Policy Development 
 

 Lobbied AZ Congressional delegation regarding: 

 Support of the Four Forest Restoration Initiative 

 Continuation of Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT) 

 Reauthorization of Secure Rural Schools and Community 
Self-Determination Act 

 Authorization of Surface Transportation Program 

 Support for Public Lands Renewable Energy Development 
Act (HR596) 

 Southwest Arizona Land Exchange (Resolution Mine) 
 Conducted Congressional staff briefing on the history of PILT 

and SRS 
 Coordinated emergency PILT meeting of county officials with 

Sen. McCain (Jan. 21) 
 Coordinated 15 county mobilization urging support of PILT 

reauthorization 
 Signed on to Constituent Letter to Senate Energy and Natural 

Resources Committee on Federal Forest Management 
 Provided policy briefings to board on LWCF, SCAAP, and the 

proposed rule change to waters of the U.S. 
 Drafted and disseminated 2014 CSA Federal Priorities 
 Conducted county federal issues survey 
 U.S. Senators and Supervisors Breakfast, Co-sponsor 
 U.S. Representatives and Supervisors Breakfast, Co-sponsor 
 SCM1006: urging Congress; PILT program; funding   
 Resolution 1-14: Urging funding for Payment In-lieu of Taxes 
 Resolution 2-14: Regarding Willow Beach Fish Hatchery

Select Outcomes, Information Products and Support Services 

Advocacy and Policy Development 

 

County Supervisors Association of Arizona- May 30,. 2014 – WWW.CountySupervisors.org 



 
 
 
 

 

FY 13-14 Association Report 

Research and Information Products 
 

 2014 Legislative Session Preview 
 Overview of the State Budget Situation 
 Transportation Policy Briefing 

 Analysis of HURF funding model 

 Review of transportation funding options 

 County specific analysis and anecdotes 
 County Priorities: 2014 Legislative Session 
 2014 Legislative Summary 
 2014 Session in Review: Briefing to the Board of Directors 
 Analyses of FY15 state budget proposals 
 County Budget Impacts Survey 
 FY15 County Revenue/Expenditure Report 
 “County Primary and Secondary Property Tax Compilation” 
 Property Tax Analysis:  A Review of Property Tax Related 

Legislation 
 Analysis of TPT exemption on electricity/gas for 

manufacturing; impacts on county finances 
 Analysis of Arizona Lottery revenues and distribution 
 PILT/SRS briefing book  
 TPT/Excise Tax Revenue Quarterly Reports  
 HURF distribution flow diagram 
 TPT revenue sharing flow diagram 
 VLT revenue sharing flow diagram 
 Federal prisoner revenue in counties survey 
 County Fund Balance Education handout 
 Distributed Legislative Action Alerts and Updates 
 CSA Brochure: “What We Do and Why it Matters” 
 “County Government 101” presentation 
 CSA Board of Directors Membership Poster 
 CSA Board of Directors Contact Sheet 
 Legislative Session Progress Report & Tracking  
 Legislative Contact Sheet 

 

NACo Engagement 
 

 Facilitated/supported member participation in NACo 
 Advocated appointment of 26 members to NACo 
 Nominated Supervisor Anthony Smith (Pinal) for NACo 

County Leadership Institute 
 Supported members with NACo credentials process 
 Supported members with participation in NACo Steering 

Committees 
 Arizona Caucus Reception, Co-sponsor 
 Western Interstate Region, Ex Officio 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Informing County Leaders 
 

 CSA hosted over 100 county meetings to support its 
membership 

 Prepared content/briefing materials for the following: 

 9  Board of Directors meetings 

 11 County Managers’ Association meetings 

 11 LPC meetings 
 Guest presentations included: 

 Governor Janice K. Brewer 

 Senate President Andy Biggs 

 Speaker of the House Andy Tobin 

 Rep. Karen Fann, House Transportation Committee Chair 

 Sen. Judy Burgess, Senate Transportation Committee Chair 

 John Arnold, Director, OSPB 

 John Halikowski, Director, ADOT 

 Brian Tobin, Chairman, PSPRS 

 Lt. Tom Boelts, Yavapai County Sheriff’s Office 

 Keith Watkins, Sr. VP, AZ Commerce Authority 

 Michael Hunter, Director of Policy, AZ Governor’s Office  
 Provided legislative briefings to the following: 

 AZ County Planners Association 

 ACIP Public Practice Legal Seminar 

 AZ City/County Management Association 

 AZ Association of County Engineers 

 AZ County Dir. of Environmental Health Services Assn. 

 AZ Civil Deputy Attorneys Association 

 Gila Valley Leadership 
 

Media, Communication and Outreach 
 

 Provided counties with letters, resolutions, and press releases 
regarding: 

 County legislative priorities 2014  

 Urging lawmakers to restore HURF and identify options to 
increase HURF revenues  

 Urging federal action to fund PILT 

 Coordinated media availability at CSA board meetings and 
briefed reporters on CSA issues, helping to generate media 
coverage 

 Issued 17 press releases 

 CSA Legislative Update, weekly e-newsletter 

 Weekly LPC Reports, distributed to full membership 

 Regular Action Alerts and Session Updates (as needed) 

 Web platform: www.countysupervisors.org 
 Established sponsorship partnerships with 13 businesses 
 Hosted 2014 Legislators and Supervisors Reception 
 Co-Hosted “Coordination and Cooperative Agency Training” 

for counties and local government 
 Facilitated Governor’s “County Government Month” 

Proclamation 

 

http://www.countysupervisors.org/


   
ARF-2651     Presentation      2. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton 
Submitted By: Shannon Coons, Fiscal Services Manager, Public Works
Department: Public Works Division: Administration

Information
Request/Subject
State of Arizona Auditor General presentation of the Performance Audit of
the Gila County Transportation Excise Tax

Background Information
The Auditor General, Debbie Davenport, and Director of the Financial
Audit Division, Jay Zsorey, will be discussing the latest performance audit
of Gila County's half-cent transportation excise tax.  Since January 2,
1995, the Gila County transportation excise tax has been used to improve
and maintain Gila County transportation infrastructure. The 1/2 cent
transportation excise tax is set to expire December 31, 2014, and a
performance audit for a tax that is going to sunset was conducted per
A.R.S. §41-1279.03 from January 1, 2009, through December 31, 2013,
by the Auditor General's Office staff with the cooperation of the Public
Works Administration.  Performance audits of the expenditures began in
2004 and have continued every 5 years.

Evaluation
The performance audit of the Gila County Transportation Excise Tax was
completed in May 2014 and the Auditor General's Office reported only
positive results. The only recommendation outstanding from the previous
audit was the updating of the Gila County Travel Policy and as of this
report date was not approved by the Board of Supervisors. 

Conclusion
A positive report for the Gila County Transportation Excise Tax fund is
attached. 

Recommendation
none

Suggested Motion



Information/Discussion regarding the Arizona State Auditor General's
report of the Gila County 1/2 Cent Transportation Excise Tax
performance audit.  (Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Performance Audit Report



   

ARF-2674     Regular Agenda Item      3. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel
Jr. 

Department: County Manager
Fiscal Year: 2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2014-2015 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Bullion Plaza Cultural Center & Museum Update on Activities and Economic
Development Grant Request.

Background Information
Bullion Plaza was opened as a grammar school in 1923 and was in operation until
1994 when it was closed by the Miami School District because of a concern that it had
fallen into a state of disrepair making it unsuitable for use as a public school.  In
1997, the Town of Miami purchased the school from the school district and committed
using it as a cultural center and museum in 1999.  In 2001, Bullion Plaza was added
to the National Register of Historic Places. The Bullion Plaza Cultural Center &
Museum (BPCCM) houses the following displays: mining exhibits, a tile exhibit,
mineral collections, the former Arizona Governor Rose Mofford collection, a military
heritage exhibit, a Slavic cultural center, a Cox Room/ranching exhibit, a Miami
history exhibit, a Hispanic heritage exhibit, local, a state & national dignitary room, an
inspiration wing and a research room. On June 5, 2012, Jose Sanchez, President of
the BPCCM Board of Directors, delivered a power point presentation to the Board and
requested that the Board consider a $25,000 economic development grant to upgrade
existing exhibits, to develop new exhibits,to upgrade the website infrastructure, to
conduct ground maintenance and to develop road signage for the public and traveling
visitors.  At the September 18, 2012, Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting, the Board
unanimously approved an Agreement-Economic Development Grant between Gila
County and the BPCCM in the amount of $25,000 to maintain and improve the
Museum.

During the June 25, 2013 Board of Supervisors meeting, Jose Sanchez presented a
2012 Annual Report and a budget request in the amount of $25,000 to the Board. Mr.
Sanchez also gave an overview of some BPCCM projects and introduced Thomas
Foster, Executive Director of the BPCCM.

On May 8, 2014, Thomas Foster, BPCCM Executive Director, submitted a letter
to Chairman Pastor requesting funding for an economic development grant in the
amount of $30,000 from the Gila County Board of Supervisors which will assist in the



amount of $30,000 from the Gila County Board of Supervisors which will assist in the
continuation of improving the BPCCM.  The funding request letter and a brief report on
the expenditures of monies for the BPCCM is attached to this agenda item.  

Evaluation
In an effort to continue improving the BPCCM by maintaining the grounds, updating
current exhibits, adding new exhibits and hosting events such as the 2014 Arizona
Rural Policy forum being held in August 2014 and the Arizona Historical Society State
Board meeting being held in September 2014, the Board of Directors of the BPCCM
have requested further assistance from Gila County with an Economic Development
Grant in the amount of $30,000.

Conclusion
It is the intent of the County pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-254 to provide $30,000 in an
Economic Development Grant to the BPCCM Board of Directors to further the
economic development of the County.

The BPCCM is a non-profit organization which enjoys and maintains federal exempt
status and the County has determined that the purpose of this funding request is
public and that the expenditure of these funds will assist in the creation or retention of
jobs or will otherwise improve or enhance the economic welfare of the inhabitants of
the County.

The BPCCM agrees to provide to the County an annual update report on the activities
at the Museum July of each year and will credit the County for the grant funding in all
literature advertising the BPCCM.

Recommendation
County staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the
Agreement-Economic Development Grant between Gila County and the Bullion Plaza
Cultural Center & Museum in an amount not to exceed $30,000 for improvements to
the Museum.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Agreement-Economic Development
Grant between Gila County and the Bullion Plaza Cultural Center & Museum whereby
the County will disburse up to $30,000 to the Museum to maintain and improve the
Museum; and further the Board determines this is for the benefit of the public and will
improve or enhance the economic welfare of the inhabitants of Gila County. 
(Jose Sanchez/Thomas Foster/Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Bullion Plaza Agreement
Letter From BPCCM Executive Director
Bullion Plaza Letter
Legal Explanation





















 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-2671     Regular Agenda Item      3. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  

Submitted For: Adam Shepherd 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer, Sheriff's Office
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: 2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2014
through June
30, 2015

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
FY2015 Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Grant Application

Background Information
The Gila County Sheriff's Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force (Task Force) has
been in operation since its inception in 1988. Since 1988, Gila County has annually
submitted a grant application to the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission (ACJC) for
ACJC Drug, Gang & Violent Crime Control funds to be used for the Sheriff's Office
Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force.  Each year the ACJC has awarded grant
funds to Gila County to help the salaries and employment related expenses (ERE) of
officers of the Task Force.

The mission of the Gila County Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force is to
protect life, property and the rights of individuals by using multi- agency efforts with
participating agencies to reduce drug, gang and violent crime related investigations.
The primary objective is to disrupt drug sales, interdict and dismantle drug trafficking
and drug organizations as well as to promote education and awareness to the citizens
of Gila County and to secure the welfare of the public; identify local gang affiliated
members in conjunction with the Gang and Immigration Intelligence Enforcement
Team Mission and the U.S. Marshall's Office and assist Gila County detectives with
violent crimes such as homicides, abductions, and jail crime investigations.

On March 21, 2014, the Gila County Sheriff’s Office electronically submitted the FY15
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Grant
Application in the amount of $416,906. The grant application had to be submitted
online no later than March 21, 2014, at 3:00 p.m.

Evaluation
The ultimate initiative of the Gila County Drug, Gang and Violent Crimes Task Force is



The ultimate initiative of the Gila County Drug, Gang and Violent Crimes Task Force is
to protect life, property and the rights of individuals, so it is imperative that the
Sheriff's Office continue to submit grant applications to the ACJC to obtain continued
grant funding for its Task Force. The source of the matching funds that are required
will come from the County's General Fund.

Conclusion
On March 21, 2014, the Gila County Sheriff’s Office electronically submitted the FY15
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Grant
Application in the amount of $416,906 for a performance period of July 1, 2014,
through June 30, 2015, to provide salaries and employment related expenses for the
Gila County Sheriff's Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd that the Board of Supervisors
ratify the Gila County Sheriff's Office electronic submission of a Drug, Gang and
Violent Crime Control Grant Application to the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission
to renew grant funding used for the salary and benefits of the Gila County Sheriff's
Office Task Force. 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to ratify the Sheriff's Office electronic submission of a
FY2015 Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Control Grant Application in the amount of
$416,906 which includes a 25% match requirement, to the Arizona Criminal Justice
Commission to renew grant funding that will be used for the salaries and benefits of
the Gila County Sheriff's Office Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force.  (Travis
Baxley)

Attachments
Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Control Grant Application



































   

ARF-2661     Regular Agenda Item      3. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  

Submitted For: Adam Shepherd 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer, Sheriff's Office
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: FY2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2014
through June
30, 2015

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Grant
Agreement for FY2015 Cycle 28 Award (ACJC #DC-15-004).

Background Information
On March 21, 2014, the Gila County Sheriff's Office electronically submitted a grant
application to the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in the amount of $416,906 in
order to provide continued funding for the salaries and benefits of the Gila County
Sheriff's Office Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force.

An agenda item was presented on the August 5, 2014, regular agenda to request that
the Board of Supervisors ratify Sheriff's Office electronic submission of the grant
application.  At this writing, it is anticipated that the Board will ratify the submission
of the grant application.

Evaluation
On June 9, 2014, the Gila County Sheriff's Office received written notification from the
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission that the grant application in the requested
amount of $416,906 that was submitted to the ACJC on March 21, 2014, by the
Sheriff's Office has been awarded in the amount of $336,917.

Conclusion
The Gila County Sheriff's Office has been awarded the Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime
Control Grant Agreement (FY2015 Grant Cycle 28 Award- ACJC Grant No.
DC-15-004) from the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in the amount of $336,917
($134,767 in federal funds, $117,921 in state funds and $84,229 in matching funds
from the County's General Fund) to provide continued funding for the Gila County
Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force for the period of July 1, 2014, through
June 30, 2015.

Recommendation



Gila County Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve the Grant Agreement between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the Arizona
Criminal Justice Commission in the amount of $336,917 for fiscal year 2015.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control
Grant Agreement (FY2015 Grant Cycle 28 Award- ACJC Grant No. DC-15-004)
between the Gila County Sheriff's Office and the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission
in the amount of $336,917 ($134,767 in federal funds, $117,921 in state funds and
$84,229 in matching funds from the County's General Fund) to provide continued
funding for the Gila County Drug, Gang, and Violent Crimes Task Force for the period
of July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015.  (Travis Baxley)

Attachments
Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Control Grant Agreement (ACJC No. DC-15-004
Award Letter
Legal Explanation





































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-2697     Regular Agenda Item      3. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  
Submitted For: Marian Sheppard 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Proclamation No. 2014-08 Proclaiming August 1-31, 2014, as Child
Support Awareness Month.

Background Information
Since 1995, the United States has been honoring Child Support
Awareness Month during the month of August.  Former President Bill
Clinton recognized this month on August 5, 1995, in his official
proclamation stating that, "Providing for our children is one of humanity's
worthiest and most fundamental endeavors.  Children are the best part of
ourselves - the sum of our past and the promise of our future, the
guarantee that our lives and values and dreams will flourish long after we
are gone." 

Evaluation
Child support services are available to any parent, guardian, or caretaker
of a child for whom child support is needed, regardless of income.  Upon
applying for child support services, Gila County Child Support
Enforcement will assist them in locating noncustodial parents;
establishing legal paternity for children born to unmarried parents;
obtaining a support order for financial support and medical insurance
coverage for the child; collecting child support payments; and providing
enforcement services when noncustodial parents fail to pay their child
support.

Child Support helps families stay self-sufficient so that they do not rely
on public assistance programs.  Studies have shown that children who
received financial support from both parents tend to get better grades in
school and also tend to have fewer behavioral problems throughout their
childhood, teen years and adult lives.  Child Support Awareness Month is
a time to salute parents who work hard to ensure their children grow up



in stable homes and look forward to a bright future. 

Conclusion
The Gila County Attorney's Office, Child Support Division, recognizes the
importance of designating a time devoted to increase the general public's
awareness and support of agencies providing services to child support
clients.  By adopting  Proclamation No. 2014-08, the Child Support
Division of Gila County hopes to shed light on the local, community, and
state support system that provides economic security to families and
children. The Department of Economic Security Division of Child Support
Enforcement, the Office of the Attorney General, county attorneys, state
and local clerks of court, and child support enforcement agencies are just
some of the state support systems that are being recognized through the
proclamation.

Recommendation
It is recommended that Gila County Board of Supervisors issue and adopt
Proclamation No. 2014-08 proclaiming August 1-31, 2014, as Child
Support Awareness Month.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 2014-08
proclaiming August 1-31, 2014, as Child Support Awareness Month in
Gila County.  (Jeff Dalton)

Attachments
Proclamation 2014-08



 

 
 

PROCLAMATION NO. 2014-08 
 

A PROCLAMATION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, PROCLAIMING AUGUST 1-31, 2014, AS CHILD SUPPORT AWARENESS 
MONTH IN GILA COUNTY. 
 

WHEREAS, Janice K. Brewer, Governor of the State of Arizona has proclaimed August 1-31, 2014 as Child 
Support Awareness Month; and 
 
WHEREAS, children need responsible parents who are engaged at every stage of their child’s development; and 
 
WHEREAS, to be engaged, both parents must be involved in providing for a child’s emotional and financial 
needs, and encourage their interests; and 
 
WHEREAS, Arizona’s Centennial reminds us that the State of Arizona was built on family values, including 
parent engagement; and 
 
WHEREAS, a parent can be actively and successfully engaged with their children regardless of marital status; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Arizona Department of Economic Security, Arizona Attorney General’s Office, Administrative 
Offices of the Court, County Attorneys, local law enforcement agencies, employers, workforce programs, 
parenting programs, and other stakeholders are dedicated to supporting the efforts of Arizona’s parents to 
encourage engagement with their children; and 
 
WHEREAS, both parent and child benefit when both parents are engaged at every stage. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that, we, the members of the Gila County Board of Supervisors do 
hereby proclaim August 1-31, 2014, as Child Support Awareness Month in Gila County, and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Gila County reaffirms its commitment to support the Gila County Child 
Support Program during the month of August 2014 and throughout the year. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of August 2014. 
 
 
 
ATTEST:      GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
_________________________________  _________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard      Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
Clerk of the Board 



   

ARF-2691     Regular Agenda Item      3. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  

Submitted For: Kendall Rhyne 
Submitted By: Jonathan Bearup, Deputy Court Administrator, Superior Court
Department: Superior Court Division: Superior Court Administration

Information
Request/Subject
Fill the Gap Application - Limited Jurisdiction Disconnected Scanning

Background Information
"State Fill the Gap" is a funding source available for the use of state courts to facilitate
plans and programs that focus on improvement to criminal case processing.  Such
funds may only be expended upon approval by the Arizona Supreme Court. To expend
these funds, the applicant must present a joint plan from the Presiding Judge of the
Superior Court, the Clerk of Court, the Presiding Justice of the Peace, and the Board of
Supervisors.  The Gila County Superior Court intends to apply for and utilize State Fill
the Gap funding for a project that meets the requirements described above.

Evaluation
The Administrative Office of Courts will upgrade the current case management system
employed in Limited Jurisdiction Courts (Justice of the Peace, Magistrate, and
Municipal courts) from "AZTEC" (Arizona (AZ)  Transaction & Electronic Case
Management System) to a new system called "AJACS" (Arizona Judicial Automated
Case System) within the next two calendar years (2015 or 2016).  This substantial
change will affect all Gila County Limited Jurisdiction Courts: Globe Regional Justice
Court; Miami Magistrate Court; Winkelman Magistrate Court; Hayden Magistrate
Court; Payson Justice Court; Payson Municipal Court; and Star Valley Magistrate
Court.  The new system, AJACS, varies from previous case management systems in
that it is not merely a case database, but also a document imaging application.  In
short, all pleadings, motions, and other materials constituting the case record, will be
"scanned in" and available for instant digital viewing and/or retrieval.  The conversion
of existing, open case files to a digital format will require that each Limited Jurisdiction
Court implement scanning processes; the Administrative Office of Courts offers a
program for that very purpose.  Participation in the Administrative Office of Court's
"Disconnected Scanning Program" two years before the anticipated roll out of
AJACS, will allow the Limited Jurisdiction courts to: 1) compile a digital library of case
files with a target goal of 50% - 80% scanned; 2) incorporate modern, "paperless"
business operations well before that circumstance becomes mandatory; and 3) utilize
technical support and employ training offered by the Administrative Office of Courts to
facilitate transition.  The only cost associated with the 'Disconnected Scanning
Program" is the annual and on-going $750 device fee for each scanner system.  As
some courts are consolidated into one office, the total number of scanners needed will
be five (5) for a total annual cost of $3750 and that is the amount requested in the
"State Fill the Gap" application before the Board.



Conclusion
Implementation of the Administrative Office of the Court's "Disconnected Scanning
Program" will allow Gila County Limited Jurisdiction Courts to preemptively and
proactively prepare for the new case management system, AJACS.  Due to the limited
resources available in the Southern Gila County municipalities involved, and given the
current budgetary environment, the Gila County Superior Court is requesting funding
to offset the device fees associated with the "Disconnected Scanning Program". 
Without such aid, the participation of most of these courts is unlikely.   Approval of
the "State Fill the Gap" application will allow the Gila County Superior Court to pursue
funds that will allow participation in the program, without any cost to the County.

Recommendation
The Gila County Superior Court respectfully requests that the Board approve the
"State Fill the Gap" application which will allow the Limited Jurisdiction courts to
participate in the "Disconnected Scanning Program".

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Gila County Superior Court's "State Fill
the Gap" application which will facilitate the transition of the Limited Jurisdiction
Courts to the new document imaging case management system known as AJACS
(Arizona Judicial Automated Case System).
(Jonathan Bearup)

Attachments
Fill The Gap Application

























   

ARF-2695     Regular Agenda Item      3. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  

Submitted For: Jeffrey Hessenius 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: FY 14-15 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

08-05-14 to
12-02-14

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Contract Award for Bid No. 060214 for Hauling of Asphalt Millings to Forest Road
417-Gisela Road.

Background Information
On June 24, 2014 the Board of Supervisors approved a request to advertise Invitation
for Bid (IFB) No. 060214 for Hauling of Asphalt Millings to Forest Road 417-Gisela
Road. 

IFB No. 060214 was advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt on July 2nd and July 9th,
2014.  The bids were received and opened in a public setting on July 16, 2014.

Evaluation
Bids were received from two (2) contractors.  Bid responses were evaluated in
accordance with A.R.S. § 41-2533, Competitive Sealed Bidding; awards shall be made
to the lowest responsible and responsive bidder whose bid conforms in all material
respects to the requirements and criteria set forth in the Invitation for Bid.

Conclusion
After extensive review, based on the bid responses received, it is the goal of the
Finance Department and the Public Works Department to award a contract to the
lowest, most responsible and qualified bidder.

Recommendation
The Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the award of Invitation
for Bids No. 060214 for Hauling of Asphalt Millings to Forest Road 417-Gisela
Road to the lowest, most responsive, responsible and qualified bidder, Otto Trucking.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation for Bids



Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation for Bids
No. 060214 for the hauling of asphalt millings to Forest Road 417-Gisela Road; award
to the lowest, most responsive, responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize the
Chairman's signature on the award contract for the winning bidder.  (Jeff Hessenius
and Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Contract No. 060214 Hauling of Asphalt Millings to Forest Service Road
417-Gisela Road
Bid Results
Legal Explanation























































































Hauling of Asphalt Millings to Forest Road 417

Gisela Road

Hauling from Payson

Rodeo Grounds to Truck Capacity

Contractor Jobsite/per Load (Ton) Extension

Otto Trucking 110.25$                             25.5 21,617.65$         

Dalmolin Excavating, Inc. 130.00$                             23 28,260.87$         



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-2696     Regular Agenda Item      3. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  

Submitted For: Jeffrey Hessenius 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance
Department: Finance
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

8-5-14 to
12-2-14

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Contract Award for Bid No. 060314-1 for Milling of Asphalt for Gisela Road Project.

Background Information
On June 24, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved a request to advertise Invitation
for Bid (IFB) No. 060314-1 for Milling of Asphalt for Gisela Road Project. 

IFB No. 060314-1 was advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt on July 2nd and July 9th,
2014.  The bids were received and opened in a public setting on July 16, 2014.

Evaluation
Bids were received from four contractors.  Bid responses were evaluated in accordance
with A.R.S. § 41-2533, Competitive Sealed Bidding; awards shall be made to the lowest
responsible and responsive bidder whose bid conforms in all material respects to the
requirements and criteria set forth in the Invitation for Bid.

Conclusion
After extensive review, based on the bid responses received, it is the goal of the
Finance Department and the Public Works Department to award a contract to the
lowest, most responsible and qualified bidder.

Recommendation
The Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the award of Invitation
for Bid No. 060314-1 for milling of asphalt for Gisela Road project to the lowest, most
responsive, responsible and qualified bidder, Swaine Asphalt Corp. 

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation for Bids



Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Invitation for Bids
No. 060314-1 for the milling of asphalt for the Gisela Road project; award to the
lowest, most responsive, responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize the
Chairman's signature on the award contract for the winning bidder.  (Jeff Hessenius
and Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Contract No. 060314-1 Milling of Asphalt for Gisela Road Project
Bid Results
Legal Explanation

































































Milling of Asphalt for Gisela Road Project

Asphalt Milling Estimated Quantity Mobilization/

Contractor per S.F. (S.F.) Demobilization Extension

Swaine Asphalt Corp $0.066 228096 1,937.00$                 16,991.34$         

C&S Sweeping ** 0.09$                                 228096 1,500.00$                 22,028.64$         

R.D. Sanders Contracting 0.15$                                 228096 3,000.00$                 37,214.40$         

WSP, Inc. 0.28$                                 228096 4,500.00$                 68,366.88$         

** C&S Sweeping has noted:

 SF price includes cut and dump on shoulder/Gila County to provide water/traffic control and any trucking needed.

 Exclusions: Utility Adjustments/Layout



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   
ARF-2688     Regular Agenda Item      3. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  

Submitted For: Jacque Griffin 
Submitted By: Jacque Sanders, Asst. County Manager/Librarian, Asst County Manager/Library District
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Library District
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2014-June 30, 2015 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Library Service Agreements with Hayden, Isabelle Hunt (Pine), Miami, Payson, and Tonto Basin Libraries.

Background Information
The Gila County Library District contracts yearly with the eight affiliate public libraries to cooperate in the provision
of library services to the citizens of the District. These Library Service Agreements serve as contracts for facilitating
funding and resource sharing.

At this time, five Library Service Agreements have been signed and returned.  We are expecting the remaining three
Library Service Agreements to be returned in August, and will bring those to the Board at a later date.

Evaluation
Library funding is based on the aggregate percentages of the four library service measures, from the baseline FY
2012 year, along with a base amount for each of the community libraries.Due to the five percent decrease in revenue
from the secondary tax for library assistance, the funding amounts to each of the eight affiliate libraries has been
decreased by five percent. This year's funding totals are as follows:

Hayden Public Library - $ 47,120.00
Isabelle Hunt Library - $101,080.00
Miami Memorial Library - $51,680.00
Payson Public Library - $218,880.00
Tonto Basin Library- $ 64,600.00

The Library District distributes these amounts in two installments, in November 2013 and May 2014.

Conclusion
Approval of the Library Service Agreements facilitates funding and resource sharing with the affiliate libraries.

Recommendation
The  Gila County District Librarian recommends the approval of the Library Service Agreements between the Gila
County Library District and Hayden Public Library, Isabelle Hunt Memorial Library (Pine), Miami Memorial Library,
Payson Public Library, and Tonto Basin Public Library for fiscal year 2014-2015.

Suggested Motion

(Motion to adjourn as the Board of Supervisors and convene as the Gila County Library District
Board of Directors.) Information/Discussion/Action to approve Library Service Agreements between the Gila
County Library District and the following five libraries to cooperate in the provision of library services to the citizens
of the District for the period July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015: Hayden Public Library - $47,120;  Isabelle Hunt
Memorial Library - $101,080; Miami Memorial Library - $51,680; Payson Public Library - $218,880; and Tonto
Basin Public Library - $64,600.  (Jacque Griffin) (Motion to adjourn as the Library District Board of
Directors and reconvene as the Board of Supervisors.)

Attachments

Hayden LSA



Isabelle Hunt LSA 2015
Miami LSA 2015
Payson LSA 2015
Tonto Basin LSA 2015
Legal Explanation (Hunt)
Legal Explanation (IGAs)





















































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-2677     Regular Agenda Item      3. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  
Submitted For: Don McDaniel Jr. 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board

of Supervisors
Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of One (1) Revised and Two (2) New Countywide Operational
Policies.

Background Information
This is a continuation of the development of the Countywide Policy
Manual which was initiated by staff in 2010. The Manual currently
contains Board adopted policies as shown in the attached Table of
Contents.

Each policy is developed by the staff Policy Review Committee and fully
reviewed by the Management Team before it is placed on a Board of
Supervisors' (BOS) work session agenda. After the BOS has had the
opportunity to review, discuss and modify the policy in the work session,
the policy is placed on a BOS regular meeting agenda for adoption.

REVISED POLICY:
1.  The Disclosure of Conflict of Interest Policy was adopted by the BOS
on December 13, 2005 as Policy No. BOS-4-2005.  On August 20, 2012,
the BOS adopted the revised policy which changed the policy number to
BOS-HRS-007.  On January 22, 2013, the BOS adopted the revised policy
to direct employees to submit their related questionnaire and statements
to the Human Resources Department instead of the Clerk of the Board.
The most recent revision contains some minor changes so that the format
is consistent with other policies which fall under the responsibility of the
Human Resources Department.  The policy title has been changed and
the policy number has also been changed to BOS-HRS-140.

NEW POLICIES:
1.  The Minutes of the Board of Supervisors' Meetings Policy No.
BOS-COB-001 was developed by staff to assure the BOS and the public



that the BOS is complying with all Arizona Revised Statutes with regard to
minutes of all BOS meetings. The policy has been reviewed by the Policy
Review Committee; however, it wasn't necessary to review it with the
Management Team or BOS as minutes writing must follow state statutes.

2.  The Computing and Communication Technology Use and Ethics Policy
No. BOS-ADM-002 was basically a re-write of an existing Rule under the
Gila County Merit System Rules and Policies (Rule 9), and the format was
changed to become a policy.  The language has substantially changed to
address the changes in technology and communication that have
significantly impacted the work place.  The policy will protect the integrity
and security of Gila County's computing and communication technology,
establish standards, and provided procedures and guidelines for the
ethical use of County technological resources.  It has been reviewed by
the Policy Review Committee and the Management Team.  On February
26, 2013, it was presented to the BOS during a work session. 

Evaluation
These two new policies and the revised policy, in addition to the
previously adopted policies, are intended to improve and standardize
internal operations in Gila County. They will help establish consistency
and fairness in the key processes that effect all departments.

Conclusion
The development of a Countywide Policy Manual will greatly assist in the
operational decisions of County government. It will provide uniformity,
consistency and fairness throughout all County Elected Offices and
Departments. 

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the BOS approve Minutes of the Board of
Supervisors' Meeting Policy No. BOS-COB-001, Computing and
Communication Technology Use and Ethics Policy No. BOS-ADM-002,
and revised Conflict of Interest Policy No. BOS-HRS-140.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve the following Countywide
policies to be included in the Countywide Policy Manual:  Minutes of the
Board of Supervisors' Meeting Policy No. BOS-COB-001, Computing and
Communication Technology Use and Ethics Policy No. BOS-ADM-002,
and revised Conflict of Interest Policy No. BOS-HRS-140.  (Don
McDaniel)



Attachments
Table of Contents for Countywide Policy Manual
BOS-HRS-140 Conflict of Interest Policy
BOS_HRS-140 Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
BOS-HRS-140 Conflict of Interest Employee/Elected Official
Statement 
BOS-HRS-140 Conflict of Interest Relative Statement
BOS-COB-001 Minutes Policy
BOS-COB-001 Minutes Procedures
BOS-ADM-002 Computing and Communication Technology Use and
Ethics Policy
BOS-ADM-002 Computing and Communication Technology Use and
Ethics Procedures



 

GILA COUNTY 

COUNTYWIDE POLICIES & PROCEDURES 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
Note:  Policies in black have been adopted by the BOS.  Policies in blue are being presented to the BOS for adoption.  Policies in red are 

pending, so the number and name may change. 

ADMINISTRATIVE - 003 

Policy Number Gila County Policy Adopted by BOS 

BOS-ADM-001 DEVELOPMENT, REVIEW & APPROVAL OF POLICIES & PROCEDURES   

BOS-ADM-002 COMPUTING AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY USE AND ETHICS 8/5/2014 

BOS-ADM-003 VACANT   

BOS-ADM-004 VACANT   

BOS-ADM-005 COUNTY VEHICLE USE & TAKE HOME ADMINISTRATION   

  
 CLERK OF THE BOARD - 004 

Policy Number Gila County Policy Adopted by BOS 

BOS-COB-001 MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ MEETINGS  8/5/2014 

BOS-COB-002 BOARDS, COMMISSIONS & COMMITTEES 2/5/2013 

BOS-1-2005 
REQUEST FOR PUBLIC RECORDS  
(New# BOS-COB-003 & name change to ACCESS TO PUBLIC RECORDS) 12/13/2005 

BOS-COB-003 ACCESS TO PUBLIC RECORDS   

BOS-COB-004 
CALL TO THE PUBLIC  
(BOS-1-2009 approved 02/17/09) revised 9/3/2013 

  
 ELECTIONS - 006 

Policy Number Gila County Policy Adopted by BOS 

ELS-001 ELECTION SECURITY AND INTEGRITY 6/5/2012 

  
 FINANCE - 007 

Policy Number Gila County Policy Adopted by BOS 

BOS-FIN-001 DEPARTMENTAL BANK ACCOUNTS 9/20/2011 

BOS-FIN-002 PROCUREMENT CONTRACTS 9/20/2011 

BOS-FIN-003 PROCUREMENT PURCHASING 9/20/2011 

BOS-FIN-004 VACANT   

BOS-FIN-005 CAPITALIZATION OF FIXED ASSETS 8/20/2012 

BOS-FIN-006 TRAVEL & RELATED EXPENSES   

BOS-FIN-007 CREDIT CARD ISSUANCE & USE   

BOS-FIN-008 FUNDS TRANSFER 8/20/2012 

BOS-FIN-009 FUND BALANCE 8/20/2012 

BOS-FIN-010 CASH RECEIPT & DEPOSITS 8/20/2012 

BOS-FIN-011 MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT   

BOS-FIN-012 VACANT   

BOS-FIN-013 MEMBERSHIPS IN PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS REIMBURSEMENT   



BOS-FIN-014 DISPOSAL OF FIXED ASSETS & INVENTORY 8/20/2012 

BOS-3-2005 
ACCEPTING AND ADMINISTERING GRANTS  
(name change to GRANTS MANAGEMENT and new policy number BOS-FIN-015) 12/13/2005 

BOS-FIN-015 GRANTS MANAGEMENT   

BOS-FIN-016 COMMUNITY AGENCY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUNDING 2/5/2013 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES - 009 

Policy 
Number Gila County Policy 

Adopted by 
BOS 

BOS-HRS-001 TEMPORARY EMPLOYEES   

BOS-HRS-002 EMERGENCY EMPLOYEES   

BOS-HRS-003 VOLUNTEERS   

BOS-HRS-004 NEW EMPLOYEE ORIENTATION   

BOS-HRS-005 PAYROLL TIME REPORTING   

BOS-HRS-006 PAYROLL AUTHORIZATIONS 9/20/2011 

BOS-HRS-007 
DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
(name change to Conflict of Interest and new policy number of BOS-HRS-140 on 
8/5/14) 1/22/2013 

BOS-HRS-008 PREVENTION OF WORK PLACE VIOLENCE   

BOS-HRS-009 AUTHORIZED POSITION LIST   

BOS-HRS-010 VACANT   

BOS-HRS-110 
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY UNLAWFUL DISCRIMINATION, HARRASSMENT AND 
RETALIATION 12/17/2013 

BOS-HRS-115 AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES AND REASONABLE ACCOMMODATION 12/17/2013 

BOS-HRS-140 CONFLICT OF INTEREST 8/5/2014 

BOS-HRS-410 COMPENSATION PLAN 4/29/2014 

BOS-HRS-415 CLASSIFICATION PLAN 4/29/2014 

 
  

 SAFETY, SECURITY & EMERGENCY - 010 

Policy 
Number Gila County Policy 

Adopted by 
BOS 

BOS-SSE-001 NOTIFICATION IN EMERGENCY SITUATIONS   

BOS-SSE-002 FACILITIES SECURITY PLAN   

BOS-SSE-003 DISASTER EVACUATION PLAN   

BOS-SSE-004 INCIDENT REPORTING   

BOS-SSE-005 BOMB THREATS   

BOS-SSE-006 DISASTER DRILLS   

BOS-SSE-007 HOSTILE INTRUDER   

BOS-SSE-008 VACANT   

BOS-SSE-009 BUILDING ACCESS-KEY & CARD ISSUANCE   

BOS-SSE-010 HAZARDOUS MATERIAL CONTROL   

BOS-SSE-011 HANDICAPPED ACCESSIBILITY   

 



Gila County Human Resources  

 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-140 

 

Replaces: BOS-HRS-007 

 

Page 

Adopted: 08-05-14 

Revised:   

1 of 4 

 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-140   

 

I. PURPOSE:  

 

To ensure compliance with ARS §38.501-511 which is designed to preserve and promote 

integrity and eliminate conflict of interests in the workplace. 

 
II. APPLICABILITY:   

 

All Gila County public/elected officials and employees. 

 

III. POLICY: 

 

A. Annually all public/elected officials and employees shall review this policy and complete 

a Conflict of Interest Questionnaire and, if needed, a Conflict of Interest Statement. 

 

B. Any public/elected official or employee who has, or whose relative has, a substantial 

interest in any contract, sale, purchase, service, or decision of Gila County shall promptly 

make known that interest. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SIGNATURE: 

 

 

              

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS   DATE 



Gila County Human Resources  

 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-140 

 

Replaces: BOS-HRS-007 

 

Page 

Adopted: 08-05-14 

Revised:   

2 of 4 

 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-140   

IV. PROCEDURES 

 

A. Definitions Specific to this Policy 

 

1. Relative – A relative means the spouse, child, child’s child, parent, grandparent, 

brother or sister of the whole or half blood and their spouses and the parent, brother, 

sister or child of a spouse. 

 

2. Substantial Interest – A substantial interest specifically means any pecuniary 

(monetary) or proprietary (ownership) interest, either direct or indirect, other than a 

remote interest.  Any substantial interest of a public/elected official or employee or 

their relative must be disclosed by the public/elected official or employee, who must 

also refrain from participating in any manner in the relevant contract, purchase, or 

decision.  A substantial interest of a relative is considered a substantial interest of the  

public/elected official or employee. 

 

3. Remote Interest – Remote interests do not need to be disclosed and do not prevent 

participation in an official capacity because they are not considered significant 

enough to influence a public decision-maker.  Remote interests include the interests 

of: 

 

a. A non-salaried officer of a nonprofit corporation; 

 

b. A landlord or tenant of the contracting party; 

 

c. An attorney of a contracting party; 

 

d. A member of a nonprofit cooperative marketing association; 

 

e. Ownership of less than three percent of the shares of a corporation, provided the 

total annual income from dividends, including the value of stock dividends, from 

the corporation does not exceed five percent of the total annual income of such 

public/elected official or employee and any other payments made to him/her by 

the corporation do not exceed five percent of his/her total annual income; 

 

f. A public/elected official or employee being reimbursed for his/her actual and 

necessary expenses incurred in the performance of official duty; 

 

g. A recipient of public services generally provided by the incorporated city or town, 

political subdivision or state department, commission, agency, body or board of 

which he/she is a public/elected official or employee, on the same terms and 

conditions as if he/she were not a public/elected official or employee; 

 



Gila County Human Resources  

 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-140 

 

Replaces: BOS-HRS-007 

 

Page 

Adopted: 08-05-14 

Revised:   

3 of 4 

 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-140   

h. A public school board member when the relative involved is not a dependent, as 

defined in ARS §43.1001, or a spouse; 

 

i. A public/elected official or employee, or that of a relative of a public/elected 

official or employee, unless the contract or decision involved would confer a 

direct economic benefit or detriment upon the public/elected official, employee or 

his relative, of any of the following: 

 

a. Another political subdivision; 

 

b. A public agency of another political subdivision; 

 

c. A public agency except if it is the same government entity. 

 

j. A member of a trade, business occupation, profession or class of persons 

consisting of at least ten members which is no greater than the interest of the other 

members of that trade, business, occupation, profession or class of persons. 

 

2. Other pertinent definitions can be found in ARS §38.501 

 

B. General 

 

1. Arizona law requires that any Gila County public/elected official or employee who 

has, or whose relative has, a substantial interest in any contract, sale, purchase, 

service or decision of Gila County make that interest known in the County’s official 

records; and to refrain from any participation in an official capacity in the contract, 

sale, purchase, service, or decision.  

 

2. The object of conflict of interest statutes is to remove or limit the possibility of 

personal influence which might bear upon an official’s decision. 

 

3. It is important to recognize that the appearance of a conflict of interest may also 

damage public trust and confidence in local government and may impair Gila 

County’s ability to conduct its legitimate operations.  For this reason, public/elected 

officials and employees are required to scrutinize their actions to avoid situations 

where their official acts appear to affect their own or their relatives’ private or 

business interests. 

 

C. Responsibility 

 

1. Public/elected officials  and employees are responsible for: 

 

a. Annual review of this policy, the completion of the Conflict of Interest 

Questionnaire form and the Conflict of Interest Statement form, if necessary;  



Gila County Human Resources  

 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Policy Number:  BOS-HRS-140 

 

Replaces: BOS-HRS-007 

 

Page 

Adopted: 08-05-14 

Revised:   

4 of 4 

 

 

Policy Number BOS-HRS-140   

 

b. Sending a copy of said forms annually to the Human Resources Department; 

 

c. Adherence to Gila County’s Standards of Conduct policy. 

 

2. Any public/elected official or employee who has, or whose relative has, a substantial 

interest in any contract, sale, purchase, service or decision of Gila County shall 

promptly do two things: 

 

a. Make known that interest via completion of the above mentioned forms; and 

 

b. Refrain from voting or participating in their official capacity in any manner in the 

contract sale, purchase, service, or decision should there be a conflict of interest. 

 

3. The Human Resources Department shall: 

 

a. Annually send a reminder to all employees to review this policy, complete a 

Conflict of Interest Questionnaire, and if needed a Conflict of Interest Statement. 

 

b. File the submitted Questionnaires and Statements in the official records of the 

County. 

 

D. Discipline 

 

1. Employee violations of ARS §38-501 et.seq., this policy, or departmental procedures 

in this regard shall be subject to discipline up to an including termination.   

 

2. Public/elected officials and employees who violate ARS §38-501 et. seq. may be 

subject to criminal prosecution and forfeiture of employment, as provided by law. 

 

E. Forms 

 

1. Relevant forms are attached to this policy:  

 

a. Conflict of Interest Questionnaire 

b. Conflict of Interest Statement (Elected/Public Official or Employee) 

c. Conflict of Interest Statement (Relative) 

 

 

 

 



Conflict of Interest Questionnaire  

Page 1 of 2 

 

GILA COUNTY 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE 
 

 

 

Name:             Date:       

 

Office/Department:          Title:        

 

 

Pursuant to Arizona Revised Statutes § 38-501 thru § 38-511, every public/elected official or employee of Gila 

County who has a “substantial interest” in any contract, sale, purchase, service or decision involving any department 

or elected official of Gila County government, shall “make that interest known in the official records of Gila 

County” and shall refrain from voting upon or otherwise participating in any manner in such contract, sale, 

purchase, service or decision.   

 

All public/elected officials and employees of Gila County government shall complete, sign, and return this 

Questionnaire to the Human Resources Department. 
 

 

If the answer to any of the following questions is in the affirmative (Yes), then the public/elected official or 

employee must “make known the substantial interest” by filing a Gila County Conflict of Interest Statement with 

the Human Resources Department: 

 

1. Do you OR any of your relatives have currently or expect to have within the next 12 months, a 

substantial interest in any contract, sale, purchase, or service with Gila County government including any 

of its elected officials?   

 

YES____ or NO____ 

 

2. Do you OR any of your relatives currently or expect to have within the next 12 months, a substantial 

interest in any decision of Gila County government including any of its elected officials?  

 

YES ____ or NO ____ 

 

3. Do you OR any of your relatives currently supply any equipment, material, supplies or services (outside 

of services related to your employment) to Gila County government including any of its elected officials 

and/or  have you or any of your relatives received the award or contract without going through a public 

competitive bidding process? 

 

YES ____ or NO ____ 

 

 

 

Definitions per Arizona Revised Statutes § 38-501- § 38-511: 

 

RELATIVE means the spouse, child, child’s child, parent, grandparent, brother or sister of the whole or half blood 

and their spouses and the parent, brother, sister or child of a spouse. 

 

SUBSTANTIAL INTEREST specifically means, any pecuniary (monetary) or proprietary (ownership) interest, 

either direct or indirect, other than a remote interest. 

 

 

 

 



Conflict of Interest Questionnaire  

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

REMOTE INTEREST means: 

(a)  That of a nonsalaried officer of a nonprofit corporation. 

(b)  That of a landlord or tenant of the contracting party. 

(c)  That of an attorney or a contracting party. 

(d)  That of a member of a nonprofit cooperative marketing association. 

(e)  The ownership of less than three percent of the shares of a corporation, provided the total annual income from 

dividends, including the value of stock dividends, from the corporation does not exceed five percent of the total 

annual income of such officer or employee and any other payments made to him by the corporation do not exceed 

five percent of his total annual income. 

(f)  That of a public officer or employee in being reimbursed for his actual and necessary expenses incurred in the 

performance of official duty. 

(g)  That of a recipient of public services generally provided by the incorporated city or town, political subdivision 

or state department, commission, agency, body or board of which he is a public officer or employee, on the same 

terms and conditions as if he were not an officer or employee. 

(h)  That of a public school board member when the relative involved is not a dependent, as defined in section 43-

1001, or a spouse. 

(i)  That of a public officer or employee, or that of a relative of a public officer or employee, unless the contract or 

decision involved would confer a direct economic benefit or detriment upon the officer, employee or his relative, of 

any of the following: 

 (i)    Another political subdivision. 

 (ii)   A public agency of another political subdivision. 

 (iii)  A public agency except if it is the same government entity. 

(j)  That of a member of a trade, business occupation, profession or class of persons consisting of at least ten 

members which is no greater than the interest of the other members of that trade, business, occupation, profession or 

class of persons. 

 

OTHER PERTINENT DEFINITIONS can be found in A.R.S. § 38-502. 

 

 

 

I have read, and signed this Conflict of Interest Questionnaire this____ day of ____________, 20___, and I 

understand that I must file a Conflict of Interest Statement with the Gila County Human Resources Department if I 

answered YES to any of the above questions. 

 

 

     

      _______________________________________________ 

      Signature 



Conflict of Interest Statement  

Page 1 of 1 

 

GILA COUNTY 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT 

(Elected/Public Official or Employee) 
 

 

 

Name:             Date:       

 

Office/Department:          Title:        

 

 

NOTICE OF A SUBSTANTIAL INTEREST IN A GILA COUNTY CONTRACT, 

SALE, PURCHASE, SERVICE, OR DECISION 
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-501 through § 38-511, I,                     , 

hereby make known my substantial interest as described below:  

 

 (Attach additional documentation if necessary.) 

 

1. I currently have or expect to have within the next 12 months, a substantial interest in a contract, sale, purchase, 

or service with Gila County government including any of its elected officials, as follows:  

 

             

             

             

             

  

2. I currently have or expect to have within the next 12 months, a substantial interest in a decision of Gila 

County government including any of its elected officials, as follows: 

 

             

             

             

             

  

 

I hereby file this Conflict of Interest Statement with the Human Resources Department and agree to refrain 

from voting or otherwise participating in any manner as a public/elected official or employee in such contract, 

sale purchase, service or decision. 

 

 

Signed the _____day of ____________20___ 

 

 

             

        Signature 

 

 

     

Received in HR by:           Date:     

    Name  

 



Conflict of Interest Statement (Relative) 

Page 1 of 1 

 

GILA COUNTY 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENT 

(Relative) 
 

RELATIVE means the spouse, child, child’s child, parent, grandparent, brother or sister of the whole or half blood 

and their spouses and the parent, brother, sister or child of a spouse. 

 

 

 

Name:             Date:       

 

Office/Department:          Title:        

 

 

NOTICE OF A SUBSTANTIAL INTEREST IN A GILA COUNTY CONTRACT, 

SALE, PURCHASE, SERVICE, OR DECISION 
 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-501 through § 38-511, I,                     , 

hereby make known my relative’s substantial interest as described below:  

 

 (Attach additional documentation if necessary.) 

 

1. My relative currently has or expects to have within the next 12 months, a substantial interest in a contract, sale, 

purchase, or service with Gila County government including any of its elected officials, as follows:  

 

             

             

             

             

  

2. My relative currently has or expects to have within the next 12 months, a substantial interest in a decision 

of Gila County government including any of  its elected officials, as follows: 

 

             

             

             

             

 

 

I hereby file this Conflict of Interest Statement with the Human Resources Department and agree to refrain 

from voting or otherwise participating in any manner as a public/elected official or employee in such contract, 

sale, purchase, service or decision. 

 

 

Signed the _____day of ____________20___ 

 

 

             

        Signature 

 

 

     

Received in HR by:           Date:     

    Name  

 



 

Gila County Policy 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF 

SUPERVISORS’ MEETINGS 

 

Policy Number: BOS-COB-001 Page 

Adopted by BOS: 08-05-14 

Revised:  

1 of 1 

 

 

I. PURPOSE: 

 

The purpose of this policy is to outline the requirements with regard to written meeting 

minutes of the Board of Supervisors. 

 

II.  POLICY: 

 

The Clerk of the Board’s Department prepares written minutes of all meetings of the 

Board of Supervisors, including executive sessions as required by Arizona Revised 

Statutes (A.R.S.) § 38-431.01.  All meetings of the Board of Supervisors are also 

recorded, except executive sessions. 

 

Audio recordings of all meetings are posted to the County’s website and made available 

to the public within 3 business days of the Board of Supervisors’ meeting in accordance 

with A.R.S. § 38-431.01.  Written minutes are posted to the County’s website and made 

available to the public within 24 hours after they are officially approved by the Board of 

Supervisors.  Per A.R.S §11-217, a copy of the approved minutes shall be made available 

at the office of the Clerk of the Board and the public libraries in Gila County.   

 

A summary of all Board of Supervisors’ actions taken at the meeting is posted to the 

County’s website within 24 hours after the meeting. 

 

Per A.R.S. § 11-217, the Clerk of the Board shall maintain and permanently preserve the 

official copy of the minutes in accordance with A.R.S. § 39-101. 

 

 

 

SIGNATURES: 

________________________________________  ____________________________ 

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  DATE 

 
* See attached administrative procedures 



 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors’ Meetings Procedures Referencing Policy Number BOS–COB-001 

Page 1 of 2 

GILA COUNTY  

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ MEETINGS 

 PROCEDURES 

 

 

I. ACTION SUMMARY: 

 

Within 24 hours after the Board of Supervisors’ (BOS) meeting, the Clerk of the Board 

(COB) will provide the action taken by the BOS for each meeting agenda item utilizing 

the electronic agenda system.  The electronic agenda system is available for the public’s 

viewing on the County’s website. 

 

II. MINUTES CONTENT: 

 

For meetings other than executive sessions, such minutes or audio recording shall 

include, but not be limited to: 1) the date, time and place of the meeting; 2) the members 

of the Board of Supervisors recorded as either present or absent; 3) a general description 

of the matters considered; and 4) and accurate description of all legal actions proposed, 

discussed or taken, and the names of members who propose each motion.  The minutes 

shall also include the names of the persons, as given, making statements or presenting 

material to the Board of Supervisors and a reference to the legal action about which they 

made statements or presented material.  Executive session minutes shall contain 

information as outlined in items 1) through 3) above, and shall also contain an accurate 

description of all instructions given pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.03, subsection A, 

paragraphs 4, 5 and 7 and such other matters as may be deemed appropriate by the Board 

of Supervisors.  The executive session minutes shall also contain a statement of the 

reasons for emergency consideration of any matters not on the agenda. 

 

III. DRAFT MINUTES: 

 

Minutes of Regular and Special Meetings and Work Sessions 

The Deputy Clerk prepares the draft minutes.   

 

Minutes of Executive Sessions 

The COB prepares the draft minutes. 

 

Minutes of Emergency Meetings 

The COB prepares the draft minutes. 

 

IV. FINAL DRAFT MINUTES: 

 

Minutes of Regular and Special Meetings and Work Sessions 

The final draft minutes are placed on a future BOS meeting agenda as a consent agenda 

item for BOS approval upon approval by the COB. 



 

Minutes of the Board of Supervisors’ Meetings Procedures Referencing Policy Number BOS–COB-001 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

Minutes of Executive Sessions 

The approved minutes are signed by the BOS Chairman and Clerk of the Board upon 

approval by the County Manager and BOS Chairman.   

 

Minutes of Emergency Meetings 

The final draft minutes are placed on a future BOS meeting agenda as a consent agenda 

item for BOS approval. 

 

V. APPROVED MINUTES: 

The approved minutes for regular, special and emergency meetings and work sessions are 

signed by the BOS Chairman and Clerk of the Board upon approval by the BOS. 

 

All approved minutes are maintained and permanently preserved by the COB in 

accordance with A.R.S. §11-217. 

 

An electronic signed copy of the approved minutes is sent to each library within the 

County within 3 days after BOS approval and posted on the County’s website.  

 
 



 

Gila County Policy 

COMPUTING AND 

COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY 

USE AND ETHICS 

Policy Number: BOS-ADM-002 Page 

Adopted by BOS 08-05-14 

Revised: 00-00-0000 

1 of 1 

 
 
 

I.         PURPOSE: 
 

 

To protect the integrity and security of Gila County’s computing and communication 

technology; establish standards; and provide procedures and guidelines for the ethical 

use of County technological resources. 
 

 

DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED:  All Gila County Divisions/Departments and Elected 

Offices. 
 

 

II.        POLICY: 
 

 

County Officials and County employees are obligated to conserve and protect the 

County’s computing and communication technology resources for the benefit of the 

public’s interest.  Responsibility and accountability for the appropriate use of the 

County’s computing and communication technology resources ultimately rests with the 

County Official or County employee who uses these resources or who authorizes such 

Use.  This policy supports and permits use of the County’s computing and 

communication technology resources that is consistent with the laws, individual 

department goals and the delivery of services to the County.  The overriding goal of this 

policy is to provide staff specific internal processes utilizing best practices and ethical use 

to protect the integrity of the County’s data, hardware, and resources. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SIGNATURES: 

 

 
 

CHAIRMAN, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS                     DATE 
 

 
 

+ See attached administrative procedures. 



Computing and Communication Technology Use and Ethics Policy Number BOS-ADM-002 

Page 1 of 9 

 

GILA COUNTY 

COMPUTING AND COMMUNICATION TECHNOLOGY USE AND ETHICS 

PROCEDURES 

 

 

I. GENERAL PROVISIONS: 

 

A. Conditions of Use 

 

Gila County employees are required to exercise responsible, ethical behavior when 

using the County’s computing and communication technology.  This includes, but is 

not limited to the following: 

 

1. Employees must use only those computer resources which they have been 

individually authorized to use by the Gila County Information Technology 

Department (I.T. Department).  The unauthorized use of computer resources, as 

well as providing false or misleading information for the purpose of obtaining 

unauthorized access to County computing and communication technology, is 

prohibited and may be regarded as a criminal act and treated accordingly by the 

County.  Employees must not use County computing and communication 

technology to gain unauthorized access to computing and communication 

technology of other institutions, organizations or individuals. 

 

2. Employees may not authorize anyone to use their computer accounts for any 

reason.  Employees are responsible for all use of their accounts, including any 

data that is   accessed, transmitted, copied, deleted or otherwise changed through 

their computer account.  Employees must take all reasonable precautions, 

including password maintenance and file protection measures, to prevent use of 

their account by unauthorized persons.  Employees must not, for example, share 

their password with anyone else.  If the employee has knowledge that another 

person knows or is using their password, it is their responsibility to immediately 

change it and to report it to the I.T. Department, Division/Department Head or 

Elected Official in charge of their division/department. 

 

3. Use of external networks connected to the County’s networks must comply with 

the policies of acceptable use promulgated by the organizations responsible for 

those networks.  

 

4. Employees must not access, alter, copy, move or remove information, proprietary 

software or other files (including programs, data and electronic mail) without 

prior authorization from the I.T. Department.  Employees must not copy, 

distribute, display or disclose third party proprietary software without prior 

authorization from the licensor.  Proprietary software must not be installed on 

systems unless they are properly licensed for its use. 

 



Computing and Communication Technology Use and Ethics Policy Number BOS-ADM-002 

Page 2 of 9 

 

5. Email is provided for employees to conduct official County business.  Employees 

are encouraged to use County email responsibly. 

 

6. Employees must not use any computing and communication technology 

irresponsibly or needlessly affect the work of others.  This includes transmitting 

or making accessible offensive, annoying or harassing material; intentionally, 

recklessly or negligently damaging any system; intentionally damaging or 

violating the privacy of information not belonging to them; intentionally misusing 

system resources or allowing misuse of system resources by others; or loading 

software or data from untrustworthy sources, such as free-ware, on to systems. 

 

7. Chain letters, jokes, and/or pictures are considered inappropriate e-mails.  The 

content is often considered harmless on its own; however, it is well known that 

these messages present a security threat by being common carriers of malicious 

software. 

 

8. Employees are ultimately responsible for all computers, devices and/or other 

electronic equipment assigned to them. The I.T. Department requires notification 

of personnel changes, and re-assignment of the devices to a newly assigned 

responsible employee. 

 

9.  To protect the integrity of Gila County’s computing and communication 

technology and the users thereof against unauthorized or improper use of this 

technology, the County reserves the right, without notice, to limit or restrict any 

individual’s use, and to inspect, copy, remove or otherwise alter any data, file, or 

system resource which may undermine the authorized use of any computing and 

communication technology.  The County also reserves the right to periodically 

authorize specific personnel to check any of the County’s computer systems and 

any other rights necessary to protect its computing and communication 

technology.  The County disclaims responsibility for loss of personal data or 

interference with files resulting from its efforts to maintain the privacy and 

security of aforementioned computing and communication technology. 

Computing and communication technology is for business purposes only; de 

minimis personal use is permitted. A County employee who violates any provision 

of these policies shall be subject to disciplinary action up to and including 

termination. 

 

B. Absolute Prohibitions 

 

Notwithstanding the exceptions provided herein, the following personal uses of 

County technology resources are absolutely prohibited: 

 

1. Any use for the purpose of conducting an outside business of the County Official, 

employee, or a relative or acquaintance of the Official or employee, other than use 

which is consistent with the Official’s or employee’s office duties. 

 



Computing and Communication Technology Use and Ethics Policy Number BOS-ADM-002 

Page 3 of 9 

 

2. Any campaign or political use, unless otherwise authorized by law. 

 

3. Commercial uses such as advertising or selling, whether for personal or business 

purposes, other than charitable or community-based promotions authorized by the 

County Manager or Elected Official as designated in this policy.   

 

4. Any use for private benefit or gain, including use of County contracts with 

vendors for purchase of goods or services that do not directly relate to County 

business. 

 

5. Any illegal activity, including any use of Internet, software, or any other property 

or resources that violates copyright laws. This includes the illegal downloading, 

sharing or usage of copyrighted material. 

 

6. Use of County cellular phones/mobile devices for illegal, unethical, or sexual 

purposes or that interferes with or affects the ability of the employee to perform 

their duties is expressly prohibited. 

 

7. Gila County prohibits the use of computers, cell phones and the e-mail system in 

ways that are disruptive, offensive to others, or harmful to morale.  For example, 

the display or transmission of sexually explicit images, messages, and cartoons 

are not allowed.  Other such misuse includes, but is not limited to: ethnic slurs, 

racial comments, off-color jokes, or anything that may be construed as harassment 

or creating a hostile and offensive work environment. 

 

C. No Expectation of Privacy 

 

The County reserves the right to monitor the activities of all County Officials' and 

employees' County computers, e-mail, Internet, fax, cell phones, and other electronic 

and communications systems.  Users shall have no expectation of privacy when using 

County resources. Such records may be subject to disclosure under Arizona’s Public 

Records Law as codified or hereinafter amended or may be disclosed for audit or 

other legitimate County operational or management purposes.  Any records created 

while conducting County business using personally owned communications devices 

may also be subject to disclosure. 

 

D. Violations – Penalty 

 

Violations of this policy are subject to disciplinary action up to and including 

termination. 

 

II. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTIES 

 

Systems, processes, programs, and other intellectual properties developed as part of the 

performance of any employee’s duties and responsibilities during employment with Gila 

County shall remain the sole intellectual property of Gila County unless specifically 



Computing and Communication Technology Use and Ethics Policy Number BOS-ADM-002 

Page 4 of 9 

 

designated as “open source” or granted release in writing by the County Manager or 

Board of Supervisors. 

 

III. SPECIAL PROVISIONS REGARDING ELECTRONIC MAIL 

 

A. Forwarding of Electronic Mail 

 

An employee forwarding a message, which originates from someone else, may not 

make changes to that message without clearly disclosing the exact nature of the 

changes and the identity of the person who made the changes. 

 

Messages received from the County Attorney or deputies, or private attorneys acting 

on behalf of the County, its officers or employees, may be privileged communications 

and therefore, confidential, and these messages shall not be forwarded to non-County 

persons without the prior approval of the author. 

 

B. Misdelivered Messages 

 

If an electronic mail message comes to an employee by mistake, the employee should 

stop reading as soon as they realize the message was not meant for them, delete the 

misdelivered e-mail, and notify the sender or system administrator immediately. 

 

C. Transmission of Confidential Information 

 

Confidential material must not be sent via electronic mail, unless the message is 

encrypted. Electronic mail messages may be intercepted, viewed, and used for non-

approved purposes, especially when corresponding via the Internet, a medium over 

which the County has no control. 

 

IV. SPECIAL PROVISIONS REGARDING INTERNET WEBSITE ACCESS 

 

A. All Internet data that is composed, transmitted, or received via computer 

communications systems may be considered to be part of the official records of Gila 

County and, as such, may be subject to disclosure to law enforcement or other third 

parties.  Consequently, employees should always ensure that the business information 

contained in Internet e-mail messages and other transmissions is accurate, 

appropriate, ethical, and lawful. 

 

B. The equipment, services, and technology provided to access the Internet remains at all 

times the property of Gila County.  As such, Gila County reserves the right to monitor 

Internet traffic, and retrieve and read any data composed, sent, or received through 

online connections and stored in the computer systems. Approval from an Elected 

Official or the County Manager is required before any such retrieval or review may 

occur.  

 



Computing and Communication Technology Use and Ethics Policy Number BOS-ADM-002 

Page 5 of 9 

 

C. Use of County equipment to access pornographic web sites is prohibited at all times, 

except by law enforcement and legal personnel in the conduct of their official duties 

and with the express permission of the Sheriff, Prosecuting Attorney, HR Director, or 

County Manager. 

 

D. It is the responsibility of the County Official or Department Head to be aware of 

Internet web use within their department.  While Gila County specifically reserves the 

right and ability to monitor computer usage or Internet access at any time without 

notice, Gila County is not obligated to monitor such activity. Any harm caused by the 

negligent and improper actions of an employee acting outside the course of his duties 

is the sole responsibility of and consequence to the employee.  Employment with Gila 

County is an implied acceptance of this responsibility. 

 

V. SPECIAL PROVISIONS REGARDING SOCIAL MEDIA /SOCIAL 

NETWORKING 

 

Official County use of social media is intended to broaden the reach of communication 

and engagement within the community of stakeholders, while utilizing new platforms that 

offer methods of communicating beyond traditional sources of information such as the 

County website. 

 

A. Responsibilities 

1. County Divisions/Departments and Offices that choose to engage in social 

media/networking in an official capacity for their Division/Department or Office 

need to coordinate this activity with the working group - Web Committee. This 

coordination helps standardize security settings, look and feel to ensure 

consistency, and keep the group aware of the social media sites being created.  

 

2. The responsibility for assuring complete compliance with the provisions of this 

policy rests with the Division/Department Head or Elected Official, supervisors 

and the individual employee involved.  It is the responsibility of social media 

users and those engaged in social networking to stay informed regarding County 

policies related to this activity.  

B.  Use of Social Media Sites 

1. Personal/private employee blogging or personal/private use of such social media 

sites as Facebook or Twitter is prohibited during working hours.  

 

2. Employees may not attribute personal statements, opinions or beliefs as official 

statements, opinions or beliefs of Gila County or their Division/Department Head 

or Elected Official when engaging in private blogging, or social media without 

prior approval of their Division/Department Head or Elected Official.  Employees 



Computing and Communication Technology Use and Ethics Policy Number BOS-ADM-002 

Page 6 of 9 

 

are prohibited against disclosure of confidential information or information that 

could breach the security of the County’s computer system in any way. All 

County or Departmental/Office policies regarding confidentiality of County 

business or information equally apply to postings or other communications on 

social networking websites, blogs, or other electronic media. This is true even if 

the communication is limited to a select group of “friends” or other recipients. It 

is also true even if statements are made on the employee’s private time using the 

employee’s own computer resources. 

 

3. The use the County seal and trademarks is prohibited without expressed 

permission of the Division/Department Head or Elected Official in coordination 

with the County’s Web Committee.   

 

4. Employees are prohibited to use material that would constitute harassment, hate 

speech or libel.  Employees assume any and all risk associated with blogging.  

The County may require immediate removal of, and impose discipline for, 

material that is disruptive to the workplace or impairs the mission of the County. 

VI. SPECIAL PROVISIONS REGARDING MOBILE DEVICES 

 

The effective management and application of information technology (including 

cellular/smartphones, tablets, etc.) improves the quality of service delivered to Gila 

County citizens, the productivity of the County workforce, and the general cost 

effectiveness of the County operation. This technology provides assistance with disaster 

recovery, and offers portable alternatives for immediate communication, enabling time 

and distance to be managed more effectively. 

 

A. Acquisition 

 

Mobile Devices are to be acquired following the County’s purchasing procedures. 

Mobile or Cellular devices intended for personal use shall not be purchased under the 

name of or associated with Gila County's accounts.  The following factors shall be 

considered in all cellular/mobile acquisitions: 

 

1. Cellular usage costs compared to alternative communication costs. 

 

2. Division/Department head or Elected Official’s need and usage. 

 

3. Departmental authorization of employee uses. 

 

4. Division/Department Heads or Elected Officials are responsible to initiate the 

purchase of each acquisition or replacement of a phone on an account.  Cellular 

phones/mobile devices are constantly being offered with new features, smaller 

size, etc., most of which are not necessary for effective operation of basic 



Computing and Communication Technology Use and Ethics Policy Number BOS-ADM-002 

Page 7 of 9 

 

functions.  The purchase of a new phone should be based on function, not 

aesthetics.   Replacement devices should only be purchased when a phone is 

damaged, or a function is offered that is a business necessity.  If a phone/mobile 

device is deemed by I.T. unusable or outdated it must be turned in to I.T. before 

the replacement equipment is issued. 

 

VII. SPECIAL PROVISIONS REGARDING PERSONAL MOBILE DEVICES 

 

The overriding purpose of this provision is to protect the integrity of the private and 

confidential client and business data that resides within Gila County’s technology 

infrastructure. This policy intends to prevent this data from being deliberately or 

inadvertently stored insecurely on a mobile device or carried over an insecure network 

where it can potentially be accessed by unsanctioned resources. A breach of this type 

could result in loss of information, damage to critical applications, and damage to the 

County’s public image. Therefore, all users employing a mobile device connected to an 

unmanaged network outside of Gila County’s direct control to backup, store, and 

otherwise access corporate data of any type must adhere to County defined processes for 

doing so. 

 

A. Prior to initial use on the County network or related infrastructure, all mobile devices 

must be registered with the I.T. Department.  

 

B. Non-County owned and managed consumer products will have access to our guest or 

‘Bring Your Own Device’ (BYOD) wireless network and web-mail.  It is absolutely 

prohibited to physically connect said device to the County’s internal network. Direct 

internal connectivity exceptions may be granted for testing purposes or special 

circumstances and must be approved by the I.T. Director and County Manager.  

 

C. Non-approved I.T. technology devices, even if purchased with County funds, will not 

be allowed on the internal network or supported by the I.T. Department staff.  

Security will be the responsibility of said individual or department.  

 

D. Employees using mobile devices and related software for network and data access 

will, without exception, use secure data management procedures.  All mobile devices 

must be protected by a password. See the County’s password policy for additional 

background.  Employees agree to never disclose their passwords to anyone, 

particularly to family members if business work is conducted from home. 

 

E. The County reserves the right to install management software that will allow the 

County to control or limit mobile devices and the information they can access while 

on the County network.  All mobile devices accessing County resources may be 

subject to security requirements that this software may impose upon them as a 

condition for continued usage of County resources, or those devices may be blocked 

from accessing said resources. 

 



Computing and Communication Technology Use and Ethics Policy Number BOS-ADM-002 

Page 8 of 9 

 

VIII. IMPLEMENTATION 

 

This policy shall be effective immediately upon adoption and shall supersede all policies 

previously adopted by the Gila County Board of Supervisors with regard to use of County 

resources. 

 

IX. DEFINITIONS: 

 

 “Computing and communication technology” refers to and includes any and all forms of 

computer-related equipment, tools and intellectual property, including computer systems, 

personal computers, cell phones and technology devices and computer networks and all 

forms of software, firmware, operating software and application software, which is 

owned by Gila County or is under the County’s possession, custody or control.   

 

“County Resources” include electronic and communications equipment, software, and 

systems, including but not limited to computers, computer networks, software, copiers, 

scanners, printers, other computer peripherals, telephones, cellular phones, the telephone 

system, radios, applications such as the Internet, e-mail, office systems, and other 

equipment or other property or resources under the Official’s or employee’s Official 

control or direction or in his or her custody or to which he or she has access that is owned 

or controlled by Gila County.  

 

“De minimis” is a Latin expression meaning about minimal things.  In a more formal 

legal sense it means something that is unworthy of the law's attention.  

 

“Social Media” means various forms of electronic discussion and information sharing 

including social networks, blogs, video sharing, podcasts, wikis, message boards, and 

online forums that currently exist, as well as future electronic methods of discussion and 

information sharing that undoubtedly will be created in the future.  Technologies include: 

picture-sharing, wall-postings, e-mail, instant messaging, and music-sharing to name a 

few.  Examples of social media applications include but are not limited to Google and 

Yahoo Groups (reference, social networking), Wikipedia (reference), MySpace (social 

networking), Facebook (social networking), YouTube (social networking and video 

sharing), Flickr (photo sharing), Twitter (social networking and micro-blogging), 

LinkedIn (business networking), and news-media comment sharing/blogging. 

 

“Social Networking” is the practice of expanding the number of one’s business and/or 

social contacts by making connections through web-based applications.  Social 

networking may include joining clubs and organizations or staying connected through 

phone conversation and written correspondence such as letters.  This administrative 

regulation focuses on social networking as it relates to the Internet to promote such 

connections and is only now being fully recognized and exploited, through web-based 

groups established for that purpose.  Web sites dedicated to social networking include but 

are not limited to Friendster, LinkedIn, MySpace and Facebook and will undoubtedly 

include web sites that have not yet been created. 

 



Computing and Communication Technology Use and Ethics Policy Number BOS-ADM-002 

Page 9 of 9 

 

“Mobile Device” refers to all devices and accompanying media that fit the following 

device classifications: 

 

 Laptop/notebook/tablet computers. 

 Mobile/cellular phones. 

 Smart phones 

 PDAs 

 Home or personal computers used to access County resources. 

 Any mobile device capable of storing County data and connecting to an unmanaged 

network. 



   
ARF-2707     Regular Agenda Item      3. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  
Submitted For: Marian Sheppard 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board

of Supervisors
Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
A Sealed Bid for Assessor's Tax Parcel No. 207-15-300-B-7

Background Information
On July 8, 2003, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No.
03-06-07, which established a policy regarding sales of real property tax
deeded to the State of Arizona.  Any parcels of land not sold at the
Supervisors' annual property tax sale for the year in which the property
was deeded to the State of Arizona is added to the County's "Back Tax
Land List."  This list of available properties is advertised on the County's
website for purchase through the County's sealed bid process.  Anyone
may submit a sealed bid to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Department.  The parcel information will be reviewed by the Clerk and the
Treasurer and ultimately placed on a Board of Supervisors' meeting
agenda at which time the sealed bid envelope will be opened during a
public meeting.  The Board will then accept or deny the bid.  If the bid is
accepted, the successful bidder must submit payment to the Clerk of the
Board of Supervisors Department within 48 hours of being notified of the
winning bid.  A quit claim deed will then be issued to the successful
bidder transferring ownership of the property.  

Evaluation
It is in the County's best interest to make every attempt to sell these
parcels of land which have been deeded to the State of Arizona in order to
get the parcels back on the County tax rolls and to relieve the County of
the administrative oversight for each parcel of land.

Conclusion
The subject parcel is vacant land on a hillside in Globe by Hackney



The subject parcel is vacant land on a hillside in Globe by Hackney
Avenue.  The total lien amount on this property is $1,254.14.

It is in the County's best interest for the Board of Supervisors to consider
the offer for this parcel of State-owned land.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors consider the offer for the
purchase of this property.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for the purchase
of State-owned tax parcel number 207-15-300-B-7 located in Globe. 
(Marian Sheppard)

Attachments
Sealed Bid for Parcel No. 207-15-300-B-7
Treasurer's Deed for Tax Parcel No. 207-15-300-B-7















   

ARF-2681     Consent Agenda Item      4. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  

Submitted For: Adam Shepherd 
Submitted By: Sarah White, Chief Administrative Officer, Sheriff's Office
Department: Sheriff's Office
Fiscal Year: 2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2014
through June
30, 2015

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Replacement

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement DPS Contract No. 2014-087 regarding State Gang Task
Force Detention Liaison Officer (DLO) Program.

Background Information
On October 20, 2009, the Gila County Board of Supervisor entered into an
Intergovernmental Agreement (DPS Contract No. 2009-261) between the Arizona
Department of Public Safety (AZDPS) and the Gila County Sheriff's Office for one (1)
detention officer to perform the duties of Detention Liaison Officer to work with
the Gang and Immigration Intelligence Team Enforcement Mission “GIITEM.”  The
Intergovernmental Agreement (DPS Contract No. 2014-087) replaces Intergovernmental
Agreement  (DPS Contract No. 2009-261).

Evaluation
The Gila County Sheriff's Office agrees to provide one (1) detention officer as the
Detention Liaison Officer to work with GIITEM.  DPS agrees to reimburse the Sheriff's
Office on a monthly basis for seventy-five (75%) percent of payroll expenses of the
officer related to this assignment, including salary, shift pay, benefits, and employee
related expenses. 

Conclusion
The Gila County Sheriff's Office will provide one (1) detention officer as a Detention
Liaison Officer to work with the Gang and Immigration Intelligence Team Enforcement
Mission.

Recommendation
Gila County Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of Supervisors



Gila County Sheriff J. Adam Shepherd recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve Intergovernmental Agreement (DPS Contract No. 2014-087) between the State
of Arizona Department of Public Safety and the Gila County Sheriff's Office to provide
one (1) detention officer as a Detention Liaison Officer for GIITEM. The performance
period starts July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015, and shall renew annually on July
1st for a period of time not to exceed five (5) years. 

Suggested Motion
Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement (DPS Contract No. 2014-087) between the
State of Arizona Department of Public Safety and the Gila County Sheriff's Office to
provide one (1) detention officer as a Detention Liaison Officer for the Gang and
Immigration Intelligence Team Enforcement Mission for the performance period of July
1, 2014, through June 30, 2015, and the Agreement shall renew annually on July 1st
for a period of time not to exceed five (5) years. 

Attachments
Intergovernmental Agreement DPS Contract No. 2014-087
Legal Explanation

















 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-2694     Consent Agenda Item      4. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  

Submitted For: Paula Horn 
Submitted By: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of Health, Health & Emergency Services
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division: Prevention Services
Fiscal Year: 2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2014 through Setember 30, 2014 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to Cenpatico Prevention Services Agreement

Background Information
On April 15, 2014, the Board of Supervisors approved a Partnership Services Agreement between
Cenpatico Behavioral Health of Arizona, LLC, Cenpatico of Arizona, Inc., (Cenpatico) and the Gila County Division of
Health & Emergency Services (GCDHES) in the amount of $23,000 for the period July 1, 2013, to June 30, 2014. 
The funds were used to hire a part-time community director to address underage drinking and prescription drug
abuse in Gila County. 

The grant objectives are to develop and implement environmental strategies to: (1) change community
norms, perceptions and policies based on local needs and data, (2) address perception of harm, (3) youth talking to
parents about alcohol and drugs, (4) reduce underage drinking, and (5) reduce access to prescription drugs and
lower abuse of prescription drugs for the youth of Gila County. 

Evaluation
Amendment No. 1 to the Partnership Services Agreement provides an additional $8,517 of funding and the term of
the contract is extended for the period July 1, 2014, to September 30, 2014, which is outlined in Exhibit B of the
Agreement.  Other minor changes are outlined in Exhibits E and K of the Agreement.

Conclusion
This amendment to the contract between Cenpatico Behavioral Health of Arizona and Gila County Health &
Emergency will provide much needed additional funding to address an ongoing problem with underage drinking and
drug abuse in the County.

Recommendation
The Director of Health and Emergency Services recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Amendment No.
1 to the Cenpatico Prevention Services Agreement between Cenpatico and GCDHES to address underage drinking
and drug abuse in Gila County for the period of July 1, 2014 to September 30, 2014, in the amount of $8,517.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to a Prevention Services Agreement between Cenpatico Behavioral Health of Arizona,
LLC, and Cenpatico of Arizona, Inc. (collectively referred to as "Cenpatico") and Gila County Division of Health and
Emergency Services to extend the term of the agreement for the period July 1, 2014, to September 30, 2014, and to
add funding in the amount of $8,517.

Attachments

Amendment No. 1 to Cenpatico Prevention Services Agreement
Cenpatico Prevention Services Agreement
Legal Explanation





Cenpatico shall compensate Subcontractor for Universal Prevention Services provided to 
persons not enrolled in behavioral health services as outlined in this Agreement. The method
and amount of compensation for  the contract year (July 1 - September 30) is specified in this Exhibit.  
Changes in the fee schedule or amount of compensation for the contract year (July 1 - September 30) may 
occur through amendments  to this Agreement, or as a result of funding reductions from ADHS/DBHS.

The Contract limit will not exceed $8,517  for the contractual year July 1 -  September 30), 
as identified in the Payment Table(s) below.  The Maximum amount payable under this contract is
specific to "Payment Type" and "Fund Type".  Under-delivery in one Payment Type or Fund Type 
can not be offset by over-delivery in another Payment Type or Fund Type, except as approved 
by Cenpatico.

Service 
Level County / Community Program Payment Type Budget Term Total for 

Budget Term 

Prevention SABG

Payment Table Gila Prevention SABG

Block Payment - 
after monthly 

reporting 
approval 

07/01/2014 - 
09/30/2014 8,517

GSA 4 Total Prevention 
SABG 8,517

Grand Total GSA 4 8,517

Grand Total -  GSA 4 

Payment Table  /  GSA 4 Pinal  - Gila  Counties 

CENPATICO  OF ARIZONA, LLC
FINANCIAL COMPENSATION

EXHIBIT B
GILA COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

ORIGINATION DATE:  11/01/2014     REVISION DATE:  07/01/2014    

1. OVERVIEW

2. CONTRACT PAYMENT TABLE

2. CONTACT MAXIMUM AMOUNT



Reference Deliverable Due Date & Where To Send

RF-1005
Incidents, Accidents, and Death Report
See PM Form 7.4.1

Within 48 hours of the incident
Fax to 866.601.0111

RF-1010
Complaint Resolution Confirmation Response, if 
applicable.

Within two (2) business days of the request
Fax to 866-601-0111

RF-1015
Unexpected material change that could impact the 
Provider Network including change of address

Within one (1) business day of becoming aware of the change. E-
mail:  azdeliverables@cenpatico.com

RF-1016
Expected material change that could impact the Provider 
Network including change of address

At least 75 days prior to the anticipated change that could impact 
the Provider Network.
E-mail: azdeliverables@cenpatico.com

RF-1018 Ad Hoc Reports not listed
Within requested time frame, as specified on the request.                                                                                                                               
E-mail/Fax as Directed

RF-FN-405 OMB A-133 Audit As Requested

Reference Deliverable Due Date & Where To Send

EC-304 Prevention Report using Cenpatico format
15th day after month end
E-mail: azdeliverables@cenpatico.com

Reference Deliverable Due Date & Where To Send

ED-101
Year to Date list of employees and contractors that have 
been checked against the Exclusion Databases, as 
defined in Exhibit C / Section 3.14 - Excluded Providers.  

10th day after quarter end
E-mail azdeliverables@cenpatico.com 

Reference Deliverable Due Date & Where To Send

CD-502

General Liability Insurance, Professional Liability 
Insurance, Sexual Abuse/Molestation Liability Insurance, 
Auto Insurance and Workers Comp Insurance with 
specified limitations

Within 15 days prior to expiration of each policy
E-mail: azdeliverables@cenpatico.com

EC-305 Annual Prevention Report for contract year
Submit Notice of Online Submission by August 31st.
E-mail: azdeliverables@cenpatico.com

EC-306
Prevention Logic Model using ADHS/DBHS format and 
entered into ADHS / DBHS designated database. 

E-mail: Notice of Online Submission and Logic Model document by 
April 5th.
E-mail: azdeliverables@cenpatico.com

FN-406 Annual Financial Statement of Expenditures 31st day after fiscal year end
Linda Weinberg

REPORT FREQUENCY: ANNUALLY 

REPORT FREQUENCY: QUARTERLY  

CENPATICO
PREVENTION SERVICES AGREEMENT

DELIVERABLES SCHEDULE  /  EXHIBIT E
GILA COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT

ORIGINATION DATE:  09/01/2010    REVISED: 07/01/2014

REPORT FREQUENCY: WITHIN 24 HOURS, 48 HOURS, WEEKLY, AS REQUESTED, OR AS APPLICABLE

REPORT FREQUENCY: MONTHLY



CENPATICO 
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT  

REGIONAL BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AUTHORITY ATTACHMENT – EXHIBIT K 
GILA COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT 

This BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT (for purposes of this Exhibit K, the "Agreement") is entered into on this 1st 
day of July, 2014, by and between Cenpatico Behavioral Health of Arizona, LLC, and Cenpatico of Arizona, Inc., herein 
referred to as “Cenpatico” (“the Covered Entities”) and Gila County Health Department (“Business Associate”). 

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Managed Health Services Provider Agreement, dated as of April 15, 2014, 
entered into by and between Covered Entities and Business Associate (“Services Agreement”), Business Associate provides 
certain functions, activities, and/or services (collectively, “Services”) to Covered Entities; 

WHEREAS, in connection with such Services, Covered Entities will make available and/or transfer to Business 
Associate, or Business Associate will create on behalf of Covered Entities, certain Protected Health Information (as such term 
is defined at 45 C.F.R. § 164.501) (“PHI”); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authorities set forth above, Business Associate may use or disclose PHI only in accordance 
with this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, Covered Entities and Business Associate agree as follows: 

1. Definitions.  The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”), the Health Information
Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (“HITECH”), and the implementing regulations thereunder, including
but not limited to the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and
164 (the “Privacy Rule”) and the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Health Information at 45 C.F.R.
Parts 160 and 164 (the “Security Rule”), and the requirements of the final modifications to the HIPAA Privacy Rule,
Security, Rule, et al., issued on January 25, 2013 and effective March 26, 2013, as may be amended from time to
time, shall collectively be referred to herein as the “HIPAA Authorities.” All other capitalized terms hereunder shall
have the meaning ascribed to them elsewhere in this Agreement, or, if no such definition is specified herein, shall
have the meaning set forth in the HIPAA Authorities.

2. Interpretation of Provisions of this Agreement. In the event of an inconsistency between the provisions of this
Agreement and the mandatory terms of the HIPAA Authorities, the terms of the HIPAA Authorities shall prevail.  Any
ambiguity in this Agreement shall be resolved in favor of a meaning that permits Covered Entities and Business
Associate to comply with the HIPAA Authorities. A reference in this Agreement to a section in the HIPAA Authorities
means the section in effect or as amended. Titles or headings are used in this Agreement for reference only and shall
not have any effect on the interpretation of this Agreement.

3. Obligations of Business Associate.

a. Limits on Use and Disclosure.  Business Associate agrees to not use or further disclose PHI other than as
permitted or required by this Agreement, by the HIPAA Authorities or as Required by Law.  Business
Associate further agrees that to the extent it is carrying out one or more of the Covered Entities’ obligations
under the Privacy Rule, it shall comply with the requirements of the Privacy Rule that apply to the Covered
Entities in the performance of such obligations.

b. Safeguards.  Business Associate agrees to use reasonable and appropriate administrative, physical and
technical safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of PHI other than as provided for by this Agreement.  More
specifically, as also provided for in Section 3.12 below, Business Associate agrees to establish, implement
and maintain appropriate safeguards, and comply with the Security Rule with respect to Electronic PHI, as
necessary to prevent any use or disclosure of PHI other than as provided for by this Agreement.

c. Mitigation of Harm.  Business Associate agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that
is known to Business Associate of a use or disclosure of PHI by Business Associate in violation of the
requirements of this Agreement or the HIPAA Authorities.



d. Report of Improper Use or Disclosure.  Business Associate agrees to notify Covered Entities, in writing or 
orally, without unreasonable delay, but in no case more than five (5) calendar days, of any successful 
Security Incident or Breach of Unsecured PHI (by Business Associate or by a Subcontractor) involving the 
acquisition, access, use or disclosure of the PHI not provided for by this Agreement of which Business 
Associate becomes aware.  As soon as reasonably possible thereafter, in no case more than fourteen (14) 
calendar days following discovery of the Security Incident or Breach, Business Associate shall provide 
Covered Entities with a written report which shall include but not be limited to: i) a description of the 
circumstances under which the Security Incident occurred; ii) the date of the incident and the date that the 
incident was discovered; iii) a description of the types of PHI involved in the incident; iv) the identification of 
each Individual whose PHI is known or is reasonably believed by the Business Associate to have been 
affected; and v) any recommendations that the Business Associate may have, if any, regarding the steps that 
Individuals may take to protect themselves from harm.  To the extent that Covered Entities reasonably 
determines that such Security Incident constitutes a Breach of Unsecured PHI by Business Associate that 
necessitates the notification of Individuals by Covered Entities under HITECH, Business Associate agrees that 
it shall immediately reimburse Covered Entities for the reasonable expenses of such notification process.  
Business Associate shall cooperate with any investigation (and/or risk assessment) of such incident 
conducted by Covered Entities in connection with any report made pursuant to this Section. 

e. Subcontractors.   

i. Prior to the date on which any Subcontractor creates, receives, maintains or transmits PHI on 
behalf of Business Associate in connection with Business Associate’s obligations under the Services 
Agreement, Business Associate agrees to enter into a written agreement with any Subcontractor 
(“Subcontractor Agreement”) to whom Business Associate provides PHI that requires them:  (i) to 
comply with the same HIPAA Authorities that apply to Business Associate under the Agreement; 
and (ii) to comply with the same restrictions and conditions that apply to Business Associate 
through this Agreement with respect to such PHI.   

ii. Upon Business Associate’s knowledge of a material breach of the Subcontractor Agreement by 
Subcontractor, Business Associate shall immediately notify Covered Entities of such material breach 
in writing and, at its option (unless otherwise directed by Covered Entities), shall: (i) provide an 
opportunity for Subcontractor to cure the breach or end the violation and terminate this 
Agreement if Subcontractor does not cure the breach or end the violation within the cure period 
identified in the Services Agreement between Covered Entities and Business Associate, or if no cure 
period is identified in the Services Agreement, as specified by Covered Entities; (ii) immediately 
terminate this Agreement if Subcontractor has breached a material term of this Agreement and 
Business Associate (or Covered Entities) deems cure by the Subcontractor not to be possible; or (iii) 
if neither termination nor cure are feasible, report the violation to the Covered Entities. 

iii. Business Associate agrees to provide Covered Entities with a list of any and all such Subcontractors 
that create, receive, maintain or transmit PHI on behalf of Business Associate in in connection with 
Business Associate’s obligations under the Service Agreement with Covered Entities within thirty 
(30) days of such a request. 

f. Access to Records.  At the request of Covered Entities and within five (5) business days of such request and 
in a reasonable manner designated by Covered Entities, Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a 
Designated Record Set to Covered Entities or, as directed by Covered Entities, to an Individual, in a manner 
compliance with 45 CFR §164.524 and/or other applicable provisions of the HIPAA Authorities.  

g. Amendments to PHI.  At the request of Covered Entities, or, as directed by Covered Entities, at the request 
of an Individual, Business Associate shall make, within five (5) business days of such request and in a 
reasonable manner designated by Covered Entities, any amendment(s) to PHI in a Designated Record Set to 
which the Covered Entities has agreed pursuant to 45 CFR §164.526, or shall otherwise assist Covered 
Entities in complying with Covered Entities’ obligations under 45 CFR §164.526. 

h. Availability of Internal Practices, Books and Records.  Business Associate shall make its internal practices, 
books and records available to Covered Entities or the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered 



Entities’ compliance with the HIPAA Authorities, in a time and manner designated by Covered Entities or the 
Secretary, as applicable.  Covered Entities reserves the right to request, and Business Associate shall 
provide, additional satisfactory assurances that Business Associate is meeting its applicable obligations 
under the HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules.  Such requests may include, but are not limited to; an onsite 
audit, access to policies and procedures, risk assessment documentation, incident logs or information 
related to the Business Associate’s Subcontractors compliance with their applicable obligations under the 
HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules. 

 
i. Accounting of Disclosures.  Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information 

related to such disclosures (i.e., (i) the date of the disclosure; (ii) the name of the entity or person who 
received the PHI and, if known, the address of such entity or person; (iii) a brief description of the PHI 
disclosed; and (iv) a brief statement of the purpose of the disclosure that reasonably states the basis for the 
disclosure) as would be required for Covered Entities to respond to a request by an Individual for an 
accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR §164.528.  Such documentation shall be 
maintained with regard to all disclosures of PHI, except for those disclosures that are expressly exempted 
from the documentation requirement under the HIPAA Authorities (see, e.g., 45 CFR §§164.502; 164.508; 
164. 510; 164.512, etc.).  Documentation required to be collected by the Business Associate under this 
Section shall be retained for a minimum of six (6) years, unless otherwise provided under the HIPAA 
Authorities. Business Associate shall further provide the information collected pursuant to this Section to 
Covered Entities or an Individual, within five (5) business days of the applicable request and in a reasonable 
manner designated by Covered Entities, as necessary to permit Covered Entities to respond to a request by 
an Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR §164.528 or other applicable 
provision of the HIPAA Authorities. 

j. Disclosure of Minimum PHI.  Business Associate agrees that it shall request, use and/or disclose only the 
amount and content of PHI that is the Minimum Necessary for Business Associate to fulfill its obligations 
under the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Business Associate acknowledges that such Minimum 
Necessary standard shall apply with respect to uses and disclosures by and among members of Business 
Associate’s workforce as well as by or to third parties as permitted hereunder. 

k. Notification of Claims.  Business Associate shall promptly notify Covered Entities upon notification or receipt 
of any civil or criminal claims, demands, causes of action, lawsuits, or governmental enforcement actions 
(“Actions”) arising out of or related to this Agreement or PHI, or relating to Business Associate’s conduct or 
status as a business associate for any Covered Entities, regardless of whether Covered Entities and/or 
Business Associate are named as parties to such Actions. 

l. Security Rule Requirements. Business Associate shall implement Administrative, Physical, and Technical 
Safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of 
Electronic PHI that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the Covered Entities as required 
by the Security Rule. Business Associate agrees to report to Covered Entities any use or disclosure of PHI not 
provided for by this Agreement or the HIPAA Authorities of which it becomes aware, including any Security 
Incident.  Accordingly, as also provided in Section 3.4, Business Associate agrees to report any successful 
Security Incident of which it becomes aware to Covered Entities immediately, but not later than five (5) 
calendar days after the Security Incident.  All reports required of the Business Associate pursuant to this 
Section shall be provided as specified in Section 3.4 of this Agreement, including the actions and the 
mitigation steps, if any, taken by Business Associate in response to the Security Incident(s). 

m. Compliance with HIPAA Authorities.  Requirements of the HIPAA Authorities that are made applicable with 
respect to business associates, or any other provision required to be included in this Agreement pursuant to 
the HIPAA Authorities, are incorporated into this Agreement by this reference.  

4. Permitted Uses and Disclosures by Business Associate. 

a. Use or Disclosure to Perform Functions, Activities, or Services.  Except as otherwise limited in this 
Agreement, Business Associate may use or disclose PHI to perform those functions, activities, or services 
that Business Associate performs for, or on behalf of, Covered Entities as specified in the Services 
Agreement, provided that such use or disclosure would not violate the Privacy Rule, or the policies and 



procedures of Covered Entities relating to the “Minimum Necessary Standard,” if done by Covered Entities.  
Any such use or disclosure shall be limited to those reasons and those Individuals as necessary to meet the 
Business Associate’s obligations under the Services Agreement.   

b. Appropriate Uses of PHI.  Except as may be otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may use
PHI for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate or to carry out the legal
responsibilities of the Business Associate.

c. Confidentiality Assurances and Notification.  Except as may be otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business
Associate may disclose PHI for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate,
provided that disclosures are Required by Law, or Business Associate obtains reasonable assurances from
the person to whom the PHI is disclosed that such PHI will remain confidential and used or further disclosed
only as Required by Law or for the purpose for which such PHI was disclosed to the person, and the person
notifies Business Associate of any instances of which it is aware in which the confidentiality of the PHI has
been breached.

d. Data Aggregation Services.  As applicable, Business Associate may use PHI to provide Data Aggregation
services to Covered Entities as permitted by 42 CFR § 164.504(e)(2)(i)(B), except as may be otherwise
provided by this Agreement.

5. Indemnification.  Each party (the “Indemnitor”)  shall indemnify and hold harmless the other party (the
“Indemnitee”) against, and reimburse such Indemnitee for, any expense, loss, damages, fees, costs, claims or
liabilities of any kind arising out of or related to any Actions asserted or threatened by a third party arising out of or
related to the Indemnitor’s acts and omissions associated with its obligations under this Agreement or its use or
disclosure of PHI or, when the Indemnitor is the Business Associate, the use and disclosure of PHI by a Subcontractor
of Business Associate. Such indemnification shall include, but not be limited to, the payment of all reasonable
attorney fees associated with any such Action.

6. Obligations of Covered Entities.

a. Notice of Privacy Practices.  Covered Entities shall notify Business Associate of any limitation(s) in Covered
Entities’s notice of privacy practices, to the extent that such limitation(s) may affect Business Associate’s use
or disclosure of PHI.

b. Change or Revocation of Permission.  Covered Entities shall notify Business Associate of any changes in, or
revocation of, permission by an Individual to use or disclose PHI, to the extent that such changes may affect
Business Associate’s permitted or required uses and disclosures of PHI.  Business Associate shall comply with
any such changes or revocations.

c. Restrictions on Use or Disclosure.  Covered Entities shall notify Business Associate of any restriction on the
use or disclosure of PHI that Covered Entities has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.522, to the
extent such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI. Business Associate shall
comply with any such restrictions.  Business Associate shall immediately notify Covered Entities of any
request for a restriction on the use or disclosure of an Individual’s PHI that Business Associate receives from
such Individual.

d. No Request to Use or Disclose in Impermissible Manner.  Except as necessary for the Data Aggregation
Services or management and administrative activities of the Business Associate as allowed herein, Covered
Entities shall not request Business Associate to use or disclose PHI in any manner that would not be
permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by Covered Entities.

7. Term and Termination

a. Term.  This Agreement shall be effective as of the earlier of the date first documented above or the effective
date of the Services Agreement, and shall terminate upon termination of the Services Agreement for any
reason or as otherwise provided in this Agreement.



b. Termination with Cause.  Upon Covered Entities’s knowledge of a material breach by Business Associate, or 
its Subcontractors, Covered Entities shall, at its option: (i) provide an opportunity for Business Associate to 
cure the breach or end the violation and terminate this Agreement if Business Associate does not cure the 
breach or end the violation within the cure period identified in the Services Agreement, or if no cure period 
is identified in the Services Agreement, as specified by Covered Entities; (ii) immediately terminate this 
Agreement if Business Associate has breached a material term of this Agreement and Covered Entities 
deems cure by Business Associate not to be possible; or (iii) if neither termination nor cure are feasible, 
report the violation to the Secretary.   

c. Effect of Termination. 

i. Except as provided in paragraph (b) of this Section, upon termination of this Agreement for any 
reason, Business Associate shall return or destroy (at Covered Entities’ election), and shall retain no 
copies of, all PHI in the possession of Business Associate. 

ii. In the event that Business Associate determines that returning or destroying the PHI is infeasible, 
Business Associate shall provide to Covered Entities written notification of the conditions that 
make return or destruction infeasible. Upon Covered Entities’ written approval, which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld, Business Associate may retain the PHI, but shall extend the protections of 
this Agreement (including, but not limited to, Sections 1 through 5) to such PHI and limit further 
uses and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, 
for so long as Business Associate maintains such PHI. 

8. Standards for Electronic Transactions.  In connection with the Services to be provided to Covered Entities pursuant 
to this Agreement, Business Associate agrees that if it (or a Subcontractor) conducts an electronic transmission for 
which the Secretary has established a “standard transaction” under 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subparts A, C, D and E, as 
applicable (the “Electronic Transactions Standards”), Business Associate (or its Subcontractor) shall comply with the 
requirements of the Electronic Transactions Standards.  Business Associate specifically represents that it has 
obtained such compliance. Business Associate agrees that, in connection with the transmission of standard 
transactions, it will not (and will not permit any Subcontractor with which it might contract to): (i) change the 
definition, data condition, or use of a data element or segment in a standard; (ii) add any data elements or segments 
to the maximum defined data set; (iii) use any code or data elements that are either marked “not used” in the 
standard’s implementation specification or are not in the standard’s implementation specification; or (iv) change the 
meaning or intent of the standard’s implementation specification(s).  Business Associate understands that Covered 
Entities reserves the right to request an exception from the uses of a standard as permitted by 45 CFR § 162.940, 
and, if such an exception is sought, Business Associate agrees to participate in a test modification. 

9. Confidentiality of Business Information.  

a. Business Information.  In the event the parties have not agreed to alternative confidentiality language with 
respect to business information in the Services Agreement or elsewhere, the following provisions will apply. 
Neither party will disclose to any third party any information related to this Agreement or to the business 
operations of the other party, or any proprietary information belonging to the other party (collectively, 
“Confidential Business Information”) without the prior written consent of the other party, except as may be 
required under law or this Agreement; provided that a party required by law to disclose Confidential 
Business Information shall inform the other party in order that the other party may contest such 
requirement.  Each party hereby agrees that all Confidential Business Information communicated to it by 
the other party, whether oral or written, and whether before or after execution of this Agreement, was and 
will be received in strict confidence and will be used only for purposes set forth in the Services Agreement.  
Upon termination of this Agreement, each party shall, upon the request of the providing party, promptly 
return all such Confidential Business Information to the providing party or, at the providing party’s option, 
shall destroy such Confidential Business Information and certify as to its destruction, except that each party 
shall be permitted to retain copies of Confidential Business Information as is reasonably necessary for its 
internal compliance and auditing purposes, provided the terms of this Section 9 shall continue to apply with 
respect to such retained Confidential Business Information for so long as it is retained.  This obligation of 
confidentiality shall not apply to information i) which was known by the recipient without the obligation of 
confidentiality prior to its receipt of such information; ii) is or becomes publicly available without breach of 



this Agreement; or iii) is received from a third party without an obligation of confidentiality and without 
breach of this Agreement. This paragraph shall not apply to uses and disclosures of PHI, which shall be 
governed by the remaining provisions of this Agreement. 

b. Response to Subpoena.  Business Associate shall be permitted to disclose PHI and Confidential Business
Information that Business Associate is required to disclose pursuant to court order, subpoena or other
compulsory legal process, provided that prior to making any disclosure thereunder, Business Associate shall
provide Covered Entities within five (5) calendar days prior written notice (or as much notice as reasonably
practicable under the circumstances) of the intended disclosure, specifying the basis and nature of the
same.

10. Miscellaneous.

a. Assignment; Waiver.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the respective legal
successors of the parties.  Neither this Agreement nor any rights or obligations hereunder may be assigned,
in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of the other party.  Except as provided herein, this
Agreement shall create no independent rights in any third party or make any third party a beneficiary
hereof.  No failure or delay by either party in exercising its rights under this Agreement shall operate as a
waiver of such rights, or of any prior, concurrent, or subsequent breach.

b. Property Rights.  All PHI shall be and remain the exclusive property of Covered Entities.  Business Associate
agrees that it acquires no title or rights to the PHI, including any de-identified information, as a result of this
Agreement.

c. Right to Cure.  Business Associate agrees that in the event Business Associate fails to cure a breach of this
Agreement pursuant to this Agreement, Covered Entities has the right, but not the obligation, to cure the
same.  Expenses, costs or fines reasonably incurred in connection with Covered Entities’ cure of Business
Associate’s breach(es) shall be borne solely by Business Associate.

d. Injunctive Relief.  Business Associate agrees that breach of the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall
cause irreparable harm for which there exists no adequate remedy at law.  Covered Entities retains all rights
to seek injunctive relief to prevent or stop any breach of the terms of this Agreement, including but not
limited to the unauthorized use or disclosure of PHI by Business Associate or any Subcontractor, contractor
or third party that received PHI from Business Associate.

e. Survival; Severability.  The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate under this Agreement,
including but not limited to Business Associate’s indemnification obligations, shall survive the termination of
this Agreement.  The parties agree that if a court determines that any of the provisions of this Agreement
are invalid or unenforceable for any reason, such determination shall not affect the enforceability or validity
of the remaining provisions of this Agreement.

f. Entire Agreement; Amendment.  This document, together with any written Schedules, amendments and
addenda, constitutes the entire agreement of the parties and supersedes all prior oral and written
agreements or understandings between them with respect to the matters provided for herein. The parties
agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this Agreement from time to time as is necessary for
Covered Entities and Business Associate to comply with the requirements of the HIPAA Authorities.  Any
modifications to this Agreement shall be valid only if such modifications are in accordance with the HIPAA
Authorities, are made in writing, and are signed by a duly authorized agent of both parties.

g. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Arizona to the extent that the HIPAA Authorities do not preempt the same.



h. Notice.  Any notice required or permitted to be given by either party under this Agreement shall be
sufficient if in writing and hand delivered (including delivery by courier) or sent by postage prepaid certified
mail return receipt requested, to the following address:

If Covered Entities: If Business Associate: 

Name:        Terry Stevens Name:    Michael A. Pastor 
Title:      CEO Title:    Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
Company: Cenpatico Behavioral Health of Arizona, LLC, and 

Cenpatico of Arizona, Inc. 
Company: Gila County Health Department 

Address:   1501 W. Fountainhead Parkway, Suite 295 Address:    1400 East Ash Street 
    Tempe,  Arizona  85282    Globe, Arizona 85501 

Phone:   866.495.6738 x26115 Phone:      928-402-8813 
Email:  tstevens@centene.com Email:        phorn@gilacountyaz.gov 

i. Independent Contractors.  For purposes of this Agreement, Covered Entities and Business Associate, and
Covered Entities and any Subcontractor of Business Associate, are and will act at all times as independent
contractors. None of the provisions of this Agreement shall establish or be deemed or construed to establish
any partnership, agency, employment agreement or joint venture between the parties.

[Signature page follows] 

















































































































































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-2666     Consent Agenda Item      4. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  

Submitted For: Bradley
Beauchamp 

Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2014 -
June 30, 2015

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
FY 2015 Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Crime Victim Compensation Grant
Agreement (ACJC No. VC-15-052).

Background Information
VC-15-052 - The Crime Victim Compensation Program receives its funding through
state sources.  Program monies are appropriated each year by the state legislature and
state funds are distributed to each county based upon a formula approved annually by
the Commission.  These funds are used to provide compensation awards to victims of
criminally injurious conduct occurring within the Gila County jurisdiction.  Gila
County's allotment for FY 2015 is $70,477 and this grant has no financial impact on
the County.  The funding will be distributed to the Gila County Attorney's Office as a
monthly reimbursement of compensation program expenditures.  A financial
reimbursement request form is required for reimbursement of those expenditures.

Evaluation
VC-15-052 - The Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Crime Victim Compensation
Grant Agreement is essential to provide financial assistance to victims of crime in Gila
County for medical and dental expenses, mental health expenses, wage loss, funeral
expenses and crime scene clean-up expenses based on program rules and
requirements.  The maximum award to a claimant is $25,000 for all economic loss
sustained as a result of a particular incident of criminal conduct.

Conclusion
VC-15-052 - Claims are filed by victims of criminally injurious conduct in the county
in which the crime occurred.  The Gila County Victim Compensation Coordinator
investigates each claim filed and then presents the claim to the volunteer Crime Victim
Compensation Board for review.  The Board approves or denies each compensation
claim in accordance with program rules.  The Victim Compensation Program would not
exist without these state funds and it is a vital program in the Gila County Attorney's
Office.



Recommendation
VC-15-052 - That the Gila County Board of Supervisors approve the Arizona Criminal
Justice Commission Crime Victim Compensation Grant Agreement for FY 2015 in the
amount of $70,477.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a FY 2015 Crime Victim Compensation Grant Agreement (ACJC No.
VC-15-052) between Gila County and the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in the
amount of $70,477 for the period of July 1, 2014, to June 30, 2015.

Attachments
Crime Victim Compensation Grant Agreement (ACJC No. VC-15-052)
Legal Explanation



































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2665     Consent Agenda Item      4. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  

Submitted For: Bradley
Beauchamp 

Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

July 1, 2014 -
June 30, 2015

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Approval of Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Drug, Gang and Crime Control
Grant Agreement (ACJC No.  DC -15-023).

Background Information
DC-015-023 - This grant has been in effect for 26 years and it is also known as the
Byrne Prosecution Grant.  This grant assists with funding a full-time prosecutor for
drug and violent crime prosecution.  This grant requires a match in the amount of
$15,914.00 which will come from the County's General Fund.

On April 15, 2014, the Board of Supervisors authorized approval for the County
Attorney's Office to submit a grant application for these funds to the Arizona Criminal
Justice Commission.

Evaluation
DC-15-023 - The Drug, Gang and Crime Control Grant is essential to provide funding
for the salary and benefits of a prosecutor who works in tandem with the Gila County
Narcotics Task Force.

Conclusion
DC-15-023 - The Drug, Gang and Crime Control Program allows state, county, local
and tribal governments to support activities that combat drug, gangs and violent
crime.  This grant provides a significant portion of the funding for a full-time
prosecutor to work in tandem with the Gila County Narcotics Task Forces in effort to
curb crime in Gila County through investigation, arrest and prosecution.

Recommendation
DC-15-023 - That the Gila County Board of Supervisors approve the Arizona Criminal
Justice Commission Drug, Gang and Crime Control Grant Agreement in the amount of
$63,656.  The Chairman's signature is required.

Suggested Motion



Approval of a FY2015 Drug, Gang and Crime Control Grant Agreement (ACJC No.
DC-15-023) between Gila County and the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in the
amount of $63,656 for the period of July 1, 2014, to June 30, 2015.

Attachments
Drug, Gang, & Crime Control Grant Agreement (ACJC No. DC-15-023)
Legal explanation



































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2636     Consent Agenda Item      4. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  

Submitted For: Bradley
Beauchamp 

Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

7/01/2014
through
6/30/2015

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

Yes Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Victim Assistance Grant Agreement (ACJC No.
VA-15-020).

Background Information
This grant has been in effect for more than 12 years and is a renewal grant that has
received matched funding in the past 12 years.  On May 22, 2014, the Arizona
Criminal Justice Commission approved grant funding for FY 2015 in the amount of
$17,600.  The grant match amount for the FY 2015 is $17,600.  This grant funding
covers the salary of the Victim Witness Advocate/Victim Compensation Coordinator
(50% grant funds with match covered by the General Fund).  This position is a
required position in the Gila County Attorney's Office. 

Evaluation
The Crime Victim Assistance Program provides effective assistance services to victims
of crime in Gila County.  Direct assistance to crime victims may include assistance
with monitoring restitution payments, information on the criminal justice process,
notification of court proceedings, accompaniment to court proceedings and attorney
interviews, guidance with Victim Impact Statement and referrals to community
resources to address victims' needs in the aftermath of crime.

Administration of this funding is an integral part of the Gila County Attorney's Office
as the funding supports the salary of the crime victim advocate.  In addition, the
advocate is responsible for coordinating the Crime Victim Compensation Program. 
That program assists victims with financial assistance to pay for funeral expenses,
medical bills, mental health counseling, wage loss and crime scene clean-up.

Conclusion
It is imperative for the Gila County Attorney's Office of Victim Services to continue to



It is imperative for the Gila County Attorney's Office of Victim Services to continue to
receive these grant funds.  The criminal justice system can be traumatic for most
victims and it is important for the department to provide the mandated serves to those
victims.  It is a priority of the Victim Services Department to insure that enforcement
of victim's rights are adhered and complied with under the law.

The Advocate acts as the liaison between the victim, the prosecutor and the Court. 
The advocate plays a key role to insure that victims are treated with fairness, dignity
and respect throughout the criminal justice system.

Recommendation
The Gila County Attorney's Office of Victim Services recommends that the Board
approve the existing Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Grant Agreement
VA-15-020 in the amount of $17,600 for FY 2015.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a FY2015 Crime Victim Assistance Grant Agreement (ACJC Grant No.
VA-15-020) between Gila County and the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission in the
Amount of $17,600 for the period of July 1, 2014, to June 30, 2015.

Attachments
Crime Victim Assistance Grant Agreement No. VA-15-020
Legal Explanation





























 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-2686     Consent Agenda Item      4. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Department: Community Services Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 11 to an Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No. DE111073001
with Arizona Department of Economic Security.

Background Information
Contract No. DE111073001 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on July 6, 2010.
Amendment No. 1 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on May 3, 2011.
Amendment No. 2 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on June 7, 2011.
Amendment No. 3 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on November 15, 2011.
Amendment No. 4 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on June 26, 2012.
Amendment No. 5 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on August 7, 2012.
Amendment No. 6 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on November 13, 2012.
Amendment No. 7 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on January 22, 2013.
Amendment No. 8 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on June 25, 2013.
Amendment No. 9 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on October 22, 2013.
Amendment No. 10 was approved by the Board of Supervisors on June 24, 2014.

Evaluation
Amendment No. 11 will add the following:
Scope of Work, Service Provision, Section 6.4.8
"The Contractor shall provide services throughout the designated demographic service
area as identified in the Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) State Plan located at 
https://www.azdes.gov/main.aspx?menu=10&id=8577.  Services shall be provided at
the locations identified on the Facility Location Chart.  Contract services may be
moved or expanded to other site locations within the designated geographic service
area only by a written contract amendment.  Relinquishment of a partial designated
geographic service area shall not be permitted.  The Contractor shall provide written
notification of its relinquishment of an entire designated geographic service area not
less than one year prior to the proposed effective date of the relinquishment."

Conclusion
By approving Amendment No. 11, contractors utilized by Gila County Community
Action Program (CAP) will be in compliance with Arizona Department of Economic
Security requirements.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of
Supervisors approve this amendment.

https://www.azdes.gov/main.aspx?menu=10&id=8577


Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 11 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.
DE111073001) between the Arizona Department of Economic Security and the Gila
County Division of Community Services, Community Action Program, which pertains
to contractors utilized to provide services throughout the designated geographic service
areas.

Attachments
Amendment No. 11 Contract DE111073001
Amendment No. 10 Contract DE11073001
Amendment No. 9 Contract DE111073001
Amendment No. 8 Contract No. DE111073001
Amendment No. 7 Contract DE111073001
Amendment No. 6 Contract No. DE111073001
Amendment No. 5 Contract No. DE111073001
Amendment No. 4 Contract No. DE111073001
Amendment No. 3 Contract DE111073001
Amendment No. 2 Contract DE111073001
Amendment No. 1 Contract DE111073001
Contract No. DE111073001
Legal Explanation









































































































































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-2668     Consent Agenda Item      4. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  
Submitted For: Eric Mariscal 
Submitted By: Cate Gore, Elections Assistant, Elections Department
Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of an Order to Designate Polling Places and to Appoint Poll
Workers for the August 26, 2014, Primary Election.

Background Information
A.R.S. 16-411 provides that the Board of Supervisors shall designate
polling places for each precinct.

A.R.S. 16-531 provides that the Board of Supervisors shall designate poll
workers and election board workers.

Evaluation
Arizona Revised Statutes require the adoption of this Order.

Conclusion
An Order must be adopted by the Board of Supervisors in order to
designate polling places and appoint poll workers and election board
workers within Gila County.

Recommendation
The Elections Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt
this Order. 

Suggested Motion
Adoption of an Order designating polling places and appointment of poll
workers and election board workers for the purpose of conducting the
Primary Election on Tuesday, August 26, 2014.

Attachments
Order



Statutes



 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDER 
 

  
 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED by the Board of Supervisors of Gila County, that the polling place 
locations listed on Attachment A are hereby designated as polling places for the thirty-nine (39) election 
precincts within Gila County for the Primary Election to be held within Gila County, Arizona, on 
Tuesday, August 26, 2014. 
 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the persons listed on Attachment A be appointed to serve as 
Poll Workers for the purpose of conducting the Primary Election to be held in Gila County, Arizona, on 
Tuesday, August 26, 2014. 
 
 IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the persons listed on Attachment B be appointed to serve as 
Election Board Workers for the purpose of conducting the Primary Election to be held in Gila County, 
Arizona, on Tuesday, August 26, 2014. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDERED that all substitutions to Poll Workers or Election Board Workers 
made prior to, during and following Election Day, for the purpose of completing the election process are 
considered by this Order, appointed and approved. 
 
 DATED this 5th day of August, 2014, in Globe, Gila County, Arizona. 
 
 
      Gila County Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 
             
      Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 
             

Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 





























   
ARF-2644     Consent Agenda Item      4. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  
Submitted For: Eric Mariscal 
Submitted By: Cate Gore, Elections Assistant, Elections Department
Department: Elections Department

Information
Request/Subject
Whispering Pines Fire District Resignation and Appointment

Background Information
A.R.S 48-803 (B) Provides if a vacancy occurs on the district board other
than from expiration of a term, the remaining board members shall fill the
vacancy by appointment of an interim member. 

Evaluation
Whispering Pines Fire District Board Member Joseph Brown tendered his
resignation notice effective April 15, 2014.  The Whispering Pines Fire
District Governing Board appointed Doyle Warner to replace Mr. Brown.

Conclusion
Mr. Doyle Warner has agreed to complete Mr. Brown's term of office,
which expires December 31, 2016.

Recommendation
The Election Department recommends that the Board of Supervisors
acknowledge the resignation of Joseph Brown and the appointment of
Doyle Warner as a new Governing Board Member for the Whispering
Pines Fire District.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the resignation of Joseph Brown from the Whispering
Pines Fire District and the appointment of Doyle Warner to complete Mr.
Brown's term which expires December 31, 2016.

Attachments
Oath



Minutes and Resignation Letter
Statute

















   
ARF-2642     Consent Agenda Item      4. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  
Submitted For: Eric Mariscal 
Submitted By: Cate Gore, Elections Assistant, Elections Department
Department: Assessor's Office

Information
Request/Subject
Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District Governing Board
Resignation and Appointment.

Background Information
A.R.S. 48-1012 (C) If a vacancy in the district board occurs due to death
or disability or any other cause other than resignation, the board of
directors of the district shall appoint a qualified elector of the district to
fill the office for the remaining portion of that term. If there is a vacancy
in the district board due to resignation, the district board shall accept the
resignation and appoint a qualified elector to fill the remaining portion of
that term of office. 

Evaluation
Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District Board Member Donald K.
Nelder tendered his resignation notice effective April 8, 2014.  The Rim
Trail Domestic Water Improvement District Governing Board appointed
Gary Richardson to replace Mr. Nelder.

Conclusion
Mr. Gary Richardson has agreed to complete Mr. Nelder's term of office,
which expires December 31, 2014.

Recommendation
The Elections Department recommends that the Board of Supervisors
acknowledge the resignation of Don Nelder and the appointment of Gary
Richardson as a new Governing Board Member for the Rim Trails
Domestic Water Improvement District.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the resignation of Don Nelder from the Rim Trail



Acknowledgment of the resignation of Don Nelder from the Rim Trail
Domestic Water Improvement District Governing Board and the
appointment of Gary Richardson to complete Mr. Nelder's term which
expires December 31, 2014.

Attachments
Oath
Minutes and Resignation
Statute

















   
ARF-2678     Consent Agenda Item      4. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  
Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office monthly
report for June 2014

Submitted For: Mary Navarro 
Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr., Justice

Court-Globe Regional

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office monthly report for June 2014.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the June 2014 monthly activity report submitted by
the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Globe Regional Justice Court monthly report for June 2014









   
ARF-2692     Consent Agenda Item      4. K.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  
Reporting
Period:

June 2014 

Submitted For: Dorothy Little 
Submitted By: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region,

Justice Court-Payson Regional

Information
Subject
June 2014 Monthly Report Submitted by the Payson Regional Justice of
the Peace's Office.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the June 2014 monthly activity report submitted by
the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office. 

Attachments
June 2014 Monthly Report



PAYSON JUSTICE COURT TREASURER'S RECAP FY2013

JUNE, 2014 AZTEC ACCOUNT ACCOUNT TOTAL AMOUNT 5% FILL THE GAP ADJUSTED

FUND NAME CODE CODE CODE ALLOCATED SET ASIDE BALANCE

Alternative Dispute Resolution ZADR 0848000-000-000-2061-00 T848-2061 76.41$                     3.82$                       72.59$                     

Arson Detection Reward Fund 41-2167D ZADRF 0901000-000-000-2061-00 T901-2061 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Attorney Fee Reimbursement ZATT 1005000-314-000-3400-11 X10501314004383 24.99$                     24.99$                     

Confidential Address Assessment - State Treasurer ZCAA1 0884000-000-000-2061-00 140.12$                   7.01$                       133.11$                   

Confidential Address Assessment - Local ZCAA2 1005000-302-000-3800.30 7.38$                       0.37$                       7.01$                       

Citizens Clean Elections ZCEF 0888000-000-000-2061-00 T888-2061 1,053.32$               1,053.32$               

Criminal Justice Enhancement 67% ZCJEF 0812000-000-000-2061-00 T812-2061 4,949.80$               247.49$                   4,702.31$               

Defensive Driving Diversion Fee ZDDS 1005000-314-000-3400-90 X105-4609 3,640.00$               182.00$                   3,458.00$               

DNA State Surcharge 3% 12-116.01C ZDNAS 0872000-000-000-2061-00 T872-2061 616.26$                   30.81$                     585.45$                   

Elected Officials Retirement Fund 15.30% ZEORF 0801000-000-000-2061-00 T801-2061 571.63$                   28.58$                     543.05$                   

Base Fees (General Fund) ZFEE 1005000-314-000-3400-15 X105-4615 1,640.86$               82.04$                     1,558.82$               

Base Fines (General Fund) ZFINE 1005000-314-000-3510-10 X105-4831 9,426.45$               471.32$                   8,955.13$               

Fill the Gap Surcharge 7% ZFTGS 0870000-000-000-2061-00 T870-2061 737.02$                   36.85$                     700.17$                   

Failure To Pay Warrant Surcharge 10% ZFTPS 1005000-314-000-3400-17 X10501314004861 110.96$                   5.55$                       105.41$                   

Extra DUI Assessment $500 ZGFDU 0912000-000-000-2061-00 T912-2061 656.16$                   32.81$                     623.35$                   

Judicial Collection Enhancement $7 ZJCL 4741000-314-000-3400-15 X36001314004615 302.75$                   302.75$                   

Judicial Collection Enhancement Local % ZJCLF 4741000-314-000-3400-15 X36001314004615 254.15$                   12.71$                     241.44$                   

Judicial Collection Enhancement $13 ZJCS 0818000-000-000-2061-00 T818-2061 562.25$                   562.25$                   

Judicial Collection Enhancement %PC ZJCSF 0840000-000-000-2061-00 T840-2061 582.20$                   29.11$                     553.09$                   

Jail (Incarceration) Fees ZJF 1005000-300-340-3405-40 X10502340004651 729.03$                   729.03$                   

Local Costs ZLCL 1005000-314-000-3510-10 X105-4831 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Administrative Costs ZMISC 1005000-314-000-3400-99 X105-4886 953.75$                   47.69$                     906.06$                   

Medical Services Enhancement 13% ZMSEF 0813000-000-000-2061-00 T813-2061 1,369.09$               68.45$                     1,300.64$               

2011 Additional Assessment - State Treasurer ZOS1 0930000-000-000-2061-00 1,145.83$               57.29$                     1,088.54$               

2011 Additional Assessment - County Treasurer ZOS2 0931000-000-000-2061-00 143.20$                   7.16$                       136.04$                   

Officer Safety Equipment - City Police (CP) ZOS3 0932000-000-000-2061-00 7.86$                       0.39$                       7.47$                       

Officer Safety Equipment - Sheriff (SHF) ZOS4 0933000-000-000-2061-00 100.25$                   5.01$                       95.24$                     

Officer Safety Equipment - DPS (DPS) ZOS5 0934000-000-000-2061-00 444.88$                   22.24$                     422.64$                   

Officer Safety Equipment - MVD/ADOT (MVD) ZOS6 0935000-000-000-2061-00 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Officer Safety Equipment - Game and Fish (GF) ZOS7 0936000-000-000-2061-00 20.00$                     1.00$                       19.00$                     

Officer Safety - Registrar of Contractors (ROC) ZOS8 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Officer Safety Equipment - Animal Control (AC) ZOS10 0942000-000-000-2061-00 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Officer Safety -  Tonto Apache Police (TAR) ZOS15 0950000-000-000-2061-00 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Officer Safety - Department of Agriculture ZOS17 0951000-000-000-2061-00 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Overpayment Forfeited ZOVF 1005000-314-000-3510-10 X105-4831 6.00$                       0.30$                       5.70$                       

Adult Probation Fee ZPBA 4042000-335-000-3405-30 X25001335-4835 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Probation Surcharge 2006 ($10.00) ZPRS6 0871000-000-000-2061-00 T871-2061 37.31$                     1.87$                       35.44$                     

Probation Surcharge 2009 ($20.00) ZPRS9 0871000-000-000-2061-00 T871-2061 2,874.77$               143.74$                   2,731.03$               

Probation Surcharge $5.00 ZPRSU 0871000-000-000-2061-00 T871-2061 17.58$                     0.88$                       16.70$                     

Public Safety Equipment ZPSEF 0912000-000-000-2061-00 T912-2061 1,314.00$               65.70$                     1,248.30$               

Reimbursement to County Attorney 60% ZREIM 3544000-301-000-3400-11 X18201301004777 854.43$                   854.43$                   

Reimbursement to Superior Court 40% ZREIM 4574000-333-000-3400-16 X226333004864 569.61$                   569.61$                   

Security Enhancement Fee (Local) ZSECE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Technical Registration Fund ($15 Drug Offenses) ZTECH 0833000-000-000-2061-00 -$                         -$                         -$                         

Warrant Fee (Local) ZWAR 1005000-314-000-3510-10 X105-4831 60.00$                     3.00$                       57.00$                     

AZ Native Plant Fund ZANP STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Child Passenger Restraint ZCPRF STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Drug and Gang Enforcement Fines ZDECJ STATE 630.85$                   31.54$                     599.31$                   

DUI Abatement ZDUIA STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Domestic Violence Shelter Fund ZDVSF STATE 147.50$                   7.38$                       140.12$                   

FARE Special Collection Fee 19% ZFAR1 STATE 1,006.71$               1,006.71$               

FARE Delinquency Fee $35.00 ZFAR2 STATE 418.76$                   418.76$                   

Game and Fish - Wildlife ZGF STATE 79.95$                     4.00$                       75.95$                     

HURF 1 28-5438, 2533C ZHRF1 STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

HURF 3 28-5433C, 4139 ZHRF3 STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

HURF - to DPS ZHRFD STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Prison Construction Fund ZPCOF STATE 1,592.25$               79.61$                     1,512.64$               

Registrar of Contractors ZRCA STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

State Highway Fund ZSHWY STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

State Highway Work Zone Fund ZSHWZ STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Display Suspended Plates (DPS) ZSLPD STATE 394.37$                   19.72$                     374.65$                   

State Photo Enforcement Base Fine ZSPBF STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

State Photo Enforcement Clean Election Surcharge ZSPCE STATE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Bad Check Program - County Attorney ZBAD COUNTY ATTY -$                         -$                         

HURF - to Sheriff's Office 28-5533G ZHRFS SHERIFF -$                         -$                         -$                         

Display Suspended Plates (Sheriff's Office) ZSLPS SHERIFF -$                         -$                         -$                         

HURF - to City Police ZHRFC CITY POLICE -$                         -$                         -$                         

Display Suspended Plates (City Police) ZSLPC CITY POLICE -$                         -$                         -$                         

TOTALS 40,270.69$             1,737.44$               38,533.25$             

38,533.25$             

DATE CHECK NO. AMOUNT MONTHLY REMITTANCE TO:

5152 36,142.55$              GILA COUNTY TREASURER

5153 4,128.14$                ARIZONA STATE TREASURER

-$                         GILA COUNTY BAD CHECK PROGRAM

-$                         SHERIFF SUSPENDED PLATES AND HURF

-$                         CITY POLICE SUSPENDED PLATES AND HURF

40,270.69$                  TOTAL DISTRIBUTIONS THIS MONTH

I, DOROTHY A. LITTLE, Gila County Justice of the Peace, do hereby certify this is a true and correct copy of the funds collected by Payson Justice Court for JUNE, 2014.

___________________________________

DOROTHY A. LITTLE

Gila County Justice of the Peace

TOTAL ADJUSTED BALANCE VERIFICATION

7/7/14











   
ARF-2683     Consent Agenda Item      4. L.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  
Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for
June 2014

Submitted For: Colt White 
Submitted By: Michelle Keegan, Constable Clerk, Constable - Payson

Regional

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for June 2014

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the June 2014 monthly activity report submitted by
the Payson Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for June 2014





























































   
ARF-2685     Consent Agenda Item      4. M.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  
Reporting
Period:

Payson Regional Constable's Office Annual Report for
fiscal year 2013-2014

Submitted For: Colt White 
Submitted By: Michelle Keegan, Constable Clerk, Constable - Payson

Regional

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Constable's Office Annual Report for fiscal year
2013-2014

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the annual activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Constable's Office.

Attachments
Payson Regional Constable's Office Annual Report for fiscal year
2013-2014

















   
ARF-2682     Consent Agenda Item      4. N.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  
Reporting
Period:

Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for
May 2014 and June 2014

Submitted For: Jesse Bolinger 
Submitted By: Kimberly Rust, Constable Clerk, Constable - Globe

Regional

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for May 2014 and June
2014

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the May 2014 and June 2014 monthly activity reports
submitted by the Globe Regional constable's Office.

Attachments
Globe Regional Constable's Office Report for June 2014
Globe Regional Constable's Office Report for May 2014

































































   
ARF-2689     Consent Agenda Item      4. O.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  
Reporting
Period:

Clerk of Superior Court's Report for the Month of June
2014

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo 
Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court,

Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for June 2014.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the June 2014 monthly activity report submitted by
the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerk's Report for June 2014





















   
ARF-2698     Consent Agenda Item      4. P.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  
Reporting
Period:

June 24, 2014, and July 15, 2014

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors

Information
Subject
June 24, 2014, and July 15, 2014, Board of Supervisors' Meeting Minutes.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the June 24, 2014, and July 15, 2014, Board of Supervisors'
meeting minutes.

Attachments
BOS 07-15-14 Meeting Minutes
BOS 06-24-14 Meeting Minutes



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  July 15, 2014 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Supervisor; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County 
Manager; Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian; Bryan B. 
Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal; and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk.   
 
ABSENT:  Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a special session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Bob Gould led the Pledge 
of Allegiance and Reverend Bill Norton of the First Presbyterian Church in 
Globe delivered the invocation.   

  
Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS:  
 
Information/Discussion:  Update of legislative activity in Washington, 
D.C. by Patricia Power of Bose Public Affairs Group.  
 
Ms. Power, via telephone, briefed the Board on the activity regarding the 
following issues:   

1)  Met with Congresswoman Ann Kirkpatrick and her staff, on a number of 
occasions, to discuss federal transportation legislation. 

2)  Attended a congressional leadership meeting with Department of 
Transportation Secretary Anthony Foxx on the Administration’s transportation 
reauthorization proposal. 

3)  Worked with District One Supervisor Tommie Martin on her testimony 
before the House Natural Resources Committee on managing federal lands to 

Page 1 of 9 
 



sequester carbon.  The hearing and multiple points of contact in follow-up 
allowed updated conversations on the County’s position on Payment in Lieu of 
Taxes (PILT) funding, U.S. Forest Service management in the Tonto Forest, and 
the County’s innovative “bucket and bladder” wildfire suppression project. 

4)  Edited Supervisor Martin’s article for the National Association of Counties 
News on the carbon sequestration hearing and need for the federal government 
to improve federal land management practices, starting with ecosystem scale 
pilot projects.  

5)  Continued to monitor County priorities including forest health and wildfire 
threats and the Four Forests Restorative Initiative; transportation, including 
ongoing forest road projects and the Tonto Creek Bridge; federal funding and 
land management issues related to PILT and Secure Rural Schools; Clean 
Water Act regulations and legislation related to the definition of navigable 
waters; Endangered Species Act decision impacts; water projects in Payson; 
and global issues like immigration. 
 
Item 3 – PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-07-01, 
which authorizes the Gila County Housing Authority to submit its Revised 
Annual Plan for FY2014 to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development. 
 
Malissa Buzan, Community Services Division Director, stated that there was a 
revision to the Public Housing Authority (PHA) Annual Plan to include the 
Violence Against Women Act (VAWA) policy; therefore, a public hearing is 
required to be held in order to obtain public comment on the revised PHA 
Annual Plan which includes the VAWA policy.   
 
Chairman Pastor opened the public hearing and no comments were received; 
therefore, he closed the public hearing.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously adopted 
Resolution No. 14-07-01, which authorizes the Gila County Housing Authority 
to submit its Revised Annual Plan for FY2014 to the U.S. Department of 
Housing and Urban Development.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently 
on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)  
 
B.  Information/Discussion to obtain public comment regarding the 
adoption of the final FY 2014-2015 Gila County Budget.   
 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, recommended that before the Chairman 
opened the public hearing, it would be appropriate for staff to offer information 
regarding the final FY 2014-2015 Gila County Budget. 
 

Page 2 of 9 
 



Jeff Hessenius, Finance Division Director, stated that the tentative FY 2014-
2015 Gila County Budget was adopted by the Board of Supervisors on June 24, 
2014, and a public hearing notice to adopt the final budget was published in 
the Arizona Silver Belt newspaper on July 2nd and on July 9th.  He provided a 
PowerPoint® presentation to highlight portions of the budget, and added that 
the overall budget was reduced by 1.2% and that it was balanced.  There were 
no increases in property taxes, no changes to the upper limit of the budget, 
and there were no changes to the numbers contained therein.  Mr. Hessenius 
advised that the County’s intention is to continue to maintain the same level of 
customer service currently provided to Gila County citizens.  He added that the 
implementation of the Classification and Compensation Study was fully funded 
for FY2014-2015 without any impact to the department budgets.   
 
Chairman Pastor clarified that the Classification and Compensation Study was 
budgeted for the first year and that the property taxes did not increase, to 
which Mr. Hessenius concurred that Chairman Pastor was correct in that 
statement.  He also stated that the budget presentation would be available on 
the Gila County website following today’s meeting.   
 
Chairman Pastor opened the public hearing and no comments were received; 
therefore, he closed the public hearing.   
 
Item 4 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the final FY 2014-2015 Gila 
County Library District Budget in the amount of $1,762,073.   
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin the 
Board unanimously adjourned as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and 
convened as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors.   
 
Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, stated that for the FY 
2014-2015 budget it was necessary to reduce the funding to the libraries in the 
County by 5% due to overall reduced revenue to the Library District; and 
although there has been a decline in revenue since 2010, this is the first year 
the libraries will be financially impacted.  She also stated that despite the 
decline in revenue, the service levels to the libraries will remain the same.  The 
grant revenue for the Library District has increased for the Community 
Outreach and Early Literacy Programs which aids in the ability to maintain 
service levels to the libraries in the Gila and San Carlos regions of the County.   
 
Chairman Pastor verified that the tax rate for the Library District would remain 
the same, to which Ms. Griffin replied that was correct.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously adopted the final FY 2014-2015 Gila County Library District 
Budget in the amount of $1,762,073.   

Page 3 of 9 
 



 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously adjourned as the Library District Board of Directors and 
reconvened as the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-07-03, 
which authorizes the adoption of the final FY 2014-2015 Gila County 
Budget in the amount of $94,444,905.   
 
Mr. Hessenius stated that County policy was followed with regard to the 
publishing the tentative FY 2014-2015 Gila County Budget as outlined in the 
public hearing agenda item 3B above.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution 
No. 14-07-03, which authorizes the adoption of the final FY 2014-2015 Gila 
County Budget in the amount of $94,444,905.  (A copy of the Resolution is 
permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)  
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve two Professional Services 
Contracts for the attorneys which the Superior Court in Gila County 
utilizes on an annual basis.   
 
Jonathan Bearup, Deputy Court Administrator, stated that the two contracts 
as stated above would replace two contracts with attorneys who formerly 
provided court appointed legal services to Gila County citizens in the past.  He 
added these are the final two contracts that have been prepared in order to 
retain the services of various attorneys to provide indigent legal representation 
to citizens in Gila County.  One of the attorney contracts provides for the 
following legal representation in Globe; juvenile and delinquency 
representation, criminal misdemeanor services in Justice Court and felony 
representation in Superior Court; and the other contract is for dependency 
representation in Payson.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti asked for clarification as to the associated costs of 
dependency representation to which Mr. Bearup replied that the $1,000 cost 
outlined in the contract is per appointment and the $22,000 is a cap on the 
encumbrance.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved two Professional Services 
Contracts for the attorneys which the Superior Court in Gila County utilizes on 
an annual basis.   
 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to receive updated information on 
Planning and Zoning Department Case No. Z-14-01, a rezoning application 
submitted by Beau Woodring to rezone tax parcel number 301-19-055B 
which is located in Pine, and to acknowledge Mr. Woodring's withdrawal of 
this rezoning application.   
 

Page 4 of 9 
 



Bob Gould, Community Development Division Director/Planner, provided a 
brief summary of the events that have transpired thus far with regard to this 
rezoning application submitted by Mr. Beau Woodring, who has since 
withdrawn his rezoning application.  Mr. Gould stated that there was a public 
hearing on June 24, 2014, at which time the Board of Supervisors remanded 
this application to the Planning and Zoning Commission.  Following that 
meeting, another community meeting was held by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission at the Pine Community Center.  At that time Mr. Woodring 
withdrew the rezoning application.  Mr. Gould recommended that the Board 
accept the withdrawal of the application by Mr. Woodring.  The Board 
concurred with Mr. Gould and also thanked the Planning and Zoning 
Commission members for the volunteer service they provide.  Upon motion by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously acknowledged Beau Woodring's withdrawal of this rezoning 
application for tax parcel number 301-19-055B, known as Planning and 
Zoning Department Case No. Z-14-01. 
 
E.  Information/Discussion/Action to appoint Peter Van Haren as an 
alternative Hearing Officer for the Community Development Division's 
Code Enforcement Program.   
 
Mr. Gould stated that it would be beneficial for the County to have an alternate 
Community Development Code Enforcement Hearing Officer in the event that 
Jim Weeks, the current Hearing Officer, declares a conflict of interest or is 
otherwise unable to perform the duty.  Peter Van Haren has offered to be an 
alternate Hearing Officer should his services be needed at no cost to the 
County except for any associated travel that may be required.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously appointed Peter Van Haren as an alternative Hearing Officer for 
the Community Development Division's Code Enforcement Program.   
 
F.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the award of the lubricant 
portion for Invitation for Bids No. 041414 for the purchase and delivery of 
bulk lubricants; award to the lowest, most responsive, responsible and 
qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature on Amendment 
No. 1 to Canyon State Oil, which will allow for the award of both fuel and 
lubricants on Contract No. 041414.   
 
Jeff Hessenius, Finance Division Director, stated that on June 24, 2014, the 
Board approved the award of the fuel portion of the Invitation for Bids 041414 
to Canyon State Oil.  Since that time staff has completed the review and 
evaluation of the bids submitted to supply lubricants.  Staff recommends that 
the Board now approve awarding the lubricant portion of the Invitation for 
Bids; thereby, awarding the entire contract to Canyon State Oil.  Upon motion 
by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously awarded a contract for the lubricant portion of Invitation for Bids 

Page 5 of 9 
 



No. 041414 for the purchase and delivery of bulk lubricants to Canyon State 
Oil, which is the lowest, most responsible and qualified bidder; and authorized 
the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to the contract with Canyon 
State Oil, which will allow for the award of both fuel and lubricants on Contract 
No. 041414.   
 
G.  Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for 
Invitation for Bids No. 012114 for the 2nd floor renovation for the School 
Superintendent's and Assessor's Offices; award to the lowest, most 
responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature 
on the award contract for the winning bidder.   
 
Mr. Hessenius advised that awarding this contract will allow the County to 
move forward with plans outlined in the County’s Long Range Facility 
Management Plan to eventually move County offices from leased space into 
County-owned space.  He explained that the 2nd floor Courthouse renovation is 
necessary to further County goals, and that moving the Superintendent’s 
Offices up one floor would accomplish getting the County Attorney’s Offices out 
of leased space and into County-owned space.  He stated that the bid 
submissions were reviewed and evaluated by staff; the determination is that 
Kroll Contractors, Inc. is the lowest, most responsible and qualified bidder.    
 
Chairman Pastor asked for confirmation that the County owns the Michaelson 
building, to which Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, replied that 
the County owns the Michaelson building.  Mr. Stratton provided additional 
information regarding the logistics of the renovation and emphasized the 
importance of proceeding with this portion of the project in order to increase 
the security of the Courthouse.   
 
Mr. Stratton stated that there is a 10% change order allowance in the contract 
to cover the construction “unknowns” that may occur during the renovation of 
the Courthouse, which is 10% of the total contract amount.  Anything beyond 
the 10% change order allowance will require Board approval before the 
contractor may proceed.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously reviewed all bids submitted for 
Invitation for Bids No. 012114 for the 2nd floor renovation for the School 
Superintendent's and Assessor's Offices; awarded the contract to Kroll 
Contractors, Inc., which is the lowest, most responsible and qualified bidder, in 
the amount of $375,276 with an additional 10% change order allowance if 
needed; and authorized the Chairman's signature on the award contract for the 
winning bidder.   
 
H.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Intergovernmental 
Agreement No. 061714-1/Agreement between Gila County, Canyon 
Domestic Water Improvement District and Freeport-McMoRan in order to 
allow Gila County to transmit an amount of up to $50,000 in grant 

Page 6 of 9 
 



monies provided by Freeport-McMoRan to the recipient of the grant, 
Canyon Domestic Water Improvement District; and to authorize the 
Chairman's signature on Intergovernmental Agreement No. 061714-
1/Agreement.   
 
Mr. Hessenius explained that the Canyon Domestic Water Improvement 
District (CDWID) applied for a grant from Freeport-McMoRan, which was 
awarded; however, the check was made payable to “County of Gila.”  Therefore, 
an Intergovernmental Agreement has been executed in order for the County to 
transfer the grant award funds to the CDWID.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously approved 
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 061714-1/Agreement between Gila County, 
Canyon Domestic Water Improvement District and Freeport-McMoRan in order 
to allow Gila County to transmit an amount of up to $50,000 in grant monies 
provided by Freeport-McMoRan to the recipient of the grant, Canyon Domestic 
Water Improvement District; and authorized the Chairman's signature on 
Intergovernmental Agreement No. 061714-1/Agreement.   
 
I.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-07-04 
declaring a state of emergency within Gila County as a result of 
infrastructure and property damage caused by abnormally heavy monsoon 
rain and winds. 
 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, stated that the reason for the resolution 
described above is to allow the Board to direct County staff and use County 
resources to repair damage to infrastructure, private or public roads, and 
property that has been caused by the impact of monsoon weather.  He added 
that this resolution has not been prepared as a result of guidance from the 
state or federal government with regard to natural disasters and the state of 
emergency concludes on September 30, 2014.  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously adopted 
Resolution No. 14-07-04 declaring a state of emergency within Gila County as a 
result of infrastructure and property damage caused by abnormally heavy 
monsoon rain and winds.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Item 5 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
 
A.  Approval of Amendment No. 4 to a Weatherization Low Income 
Assistance Agreement (Contract No. SW-ESA-12-2182-02Y4) between the 
State of Arizona, Governor's Office of Energy Policy (OEP) and the Gila 
County Community Services Division, Housing Services, whereby OEP will 

Page 7 of 9 
 



provide up to $7,150 in additional funding as a reimbursement ceiling for 
Fiscal Year 2015, for the period of July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015.  
 
B.  Approval to sign and replace the signature page on a Contract 
Application between Gila County d/b/a Gila Employment and Special 
Training Program (GEST) and the Arizona Department of Economic 
Security, Rehabilitation Services Administration (ADES/RSA), which 
was previously approved by the Board of Supervisors on March 18, 2014, 
changing the section Contract Term to October 1, 2014, or on the date of 
last signature, whichever is later and shall terminate on September 30, 
2019.  
 
C.  Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 014-0444 between the 
Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens Area Agency on Aging, Region 
V, (PGCSC) and the Division of Community Services, Housing Services, 
whereby PGCSC will provide funding in the amount of $6,242 to be used 
for emergency minor home repair to eligible citizens residing in Gila 
County effective July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015.  
 
D.  Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. ADHS14-
072102) between the Arizona Department of Health Services and the Gila 
County Division of Health and Emergency Services in the amount of 
$135,000 to continue to provide Tobacco Free Environments Program 
services from July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2017.  
 
E.  Adoption of an Order canceling precinct elections and appointing the 
precinct committeemen as shown on Attachment A of the Order, who 
have filed nomination petitions or nomination papers for precinct 
committeeman of their party in the precinct shown.  (A copy of the Order is 
permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
F.  Acknowledgment of the May 2014 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Recorder's Office.  
 
G.  Approval of the June 10, 2014, and July 1, 2014, Board of Supervisors' 
meeting minutes.  
 
H.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of June 16, 2014 to June 
20, 2014; and June 23, 2014 to June 27, 2014.  
 
I.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of July 8, 
2014, and July 15, 2014. 
 
July 8, 2014 
 

Page 8 of 9 
 



$2,027,273.88 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 262875 
through 263038. 
 
July 15, 2014 
 
$739,688.67 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 263039 
through 263208.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 5-A through 5-I. 
 
Item 6 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Call to the Public is held for public benefit 
to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any issue 
within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members may 
not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date. 
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
Item 7 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 
Administrator may present a brief summary of current events.  No action 
may be taken on issues presented.   
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:30 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 

Page 9 of 9 
 



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  June 24, 2014 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via telephone); John D. Marcanti, Supervisor; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County 
Manager; Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian; Bryan B. 
Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal; Marian E. Sheppard, Clerk of the Board; 
and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk.   
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - INVOCATION  

  
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Michael O’Driscoll led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Don McDaniel delivered the invocation.   
 
Item 2 – PRESENTATIONS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion:  Update of legislative activity in Washington, 
D.C. by Patricia Power of Bose Public Affairs Group.  
 
Chairman Pastor advised that there was poor telephone connectivity with 
Patricia Power; therefore, her update would be included during her next 
regularly scheduled presentation to the Board. 
 
B.  Presentation of information from the Southern Gila County Economic 
Development Corporation regarding a 2014-2016 work plan and 
accomplishments to date.   
 
Neal Jensen, a member of the Southern Gila County Economic Development 
Corporation (SGCEDC), provided a slide presentation and stated that the 
mission of the SGCEDC is to enhance and diversify the economy of southern 
Gila County while also implementing quality of life initiatives.  SGCEDC also 
serves as a clearinghouse for organizations with complementary missions 
serving the area.  The motto of the SGCEDC is, “plan your work; work your 

Page 1 of 17 
 



plan.”  He then asked for $50,000 from the County to support economic 
development in Gila County with the understanding of commitment and results 
from the SGCEDC and based on achieving goals.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti inquired as to the availability of private property in the 
County to accommodate new industry in the direction of U.S. Highway 60, to 
which Mr. Jensen replied that it is possible to ascertain ownership of each 
parcel of land; however, it is labor intensive.  He added that some of this 
information has already been compiled, but much of it has not been 
determined.   
 
Karalea Cox, contractor for SGCEDC, stated that she has been working for the 
SGCEDC since January 2014.  Chairman Pastor inquired if a follow-up 
meeting to the March 25, 2014, Board of Supervisors’ meeting had been held 
with the Payson Chamber of Commerce.  Ms. Cox replied that a follow-up 
meeting has not yet taken place.  She added that another meeting was held 
between the Industrial Development Authority of Gila County, the Northern 
Gila County Economic Development Corporation, and both Globe and Payson 
Chambers of Commerce organizations.  County Manager Don McDaniel was 
present at that meeting and he talked about the opportunities these 
organizations have to expand the economy throughout all of Gila County.  She 
added that assistance was offered to those organizations in northern Gila 
County if needed. 
 
Chairman Pastor thanked Mr. Jensen for the presentation. 
 
Item 3 – PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution 14-06-05 to name 
a previously unnamed section of road in Tonto Basin as E. Hunter Lane.   
 
Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, stated that protocol was 
followed in accordance with regulations outlined in Gila County Street Naming 
and Property Numbering Ordinance No. 11-03.  A public notice was mailed to 
property owners.  Included in the public notice was the proposed name of E. 
Hunter Lane, a map of the area, the deadline for filing objections, and the date 
scheduled for the Board of Supervisors’ public hearing.  There weren’t any 
written objections submitted to the County for this road name. 
 
Chairman Pastor opened the public hearing at this time.  No public comments 
were given; therefore, he closed the public hearing and asked the Board 
members to make a motion on this agenda item.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously 
adopted Resolution 14-06-05 to name a previously unnamed section of road in 
Tonto Basin as E. Hunter Lane.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently 
on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)  

Page 2 of 17 
 



B.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Order No. LL-14-03, an 
application submitted by Randy D. Nations for a person to person transfer 
of a Series 6 bar license with an interim permit to operate for Sidewinders 
Saloon located in Pine.   
 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, explained the internal review process 
conducted by the Health Department and the Planning and Zoning Department 
in accordance with processing an application for a liquor license.  She added 
that per statutory requirements, a notice of hearing by the Board was posted at 
the establishment for a period of 20 days, specifically to inform any person 
residing, owning, or leasing property within a one-mile radius of the 
establishment regarding this application.  To date, the Clerk of the Board 
Department has not received any written objections to this application.  Ms. 
Sheppard added that all Gila County requirements have been met with regard 
to this application; therefore, a public hearing should now be held by the Board 
to entertain any comments from the public.   
 
Chairman Pastor opened the public hearing at this time.  No public comments 
were given; therefore, he closed the public hearing and asked the Board 
members to make a motion on this agenda item.  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously 
approved Order No. LL-14-03, an application submitted by Randy D. Nations 
for a person to person transfer of a Series 6 bar license with an interim permit 
to operate for Sidewinders Saloon located in Pine.   
 
4.  REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously adjourned as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and 
convened as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors.   
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 
Annual Tentative Budget for the Gila County Library District.   
 
Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, stated that the Library 
District budget is a part of the entire Gila County budget and information 
regarding the Library District is detailed on page 71 of the Gila County Fiscal 
Year 2014-2015 Budget.  This year there is a 5% decrease in funding that will 
amount to a 5% decrease in library assistance provided to each of the libraries 
in Gila County.  She added that there is no plan to decrease the services and 
programs provided to each of the libraries.  The funding formula is based on 
service measures that were established in 2012 and implemented in 2013, and 
since there is no increase in funding this year, the decrease in funding is based 
on the 2012 numbers amounting to a 5% decrease across the board regardless 
of usage of services.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by 

Page 3 of 17 
 



Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously adopted the Fiscal Year 2014-
2015 Annual Tentative Budget for the Gila County Library District. 
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously adjourned as the Gila County Library District Board of 
Directors and reconvened as the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 
B.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 
Annual Tentative Budget in the amount of $94,444,905, authorize the 
publication of the summary budget, and set the public hearing for July 
15, 2014, to adopt the Final Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Gila County Budget.  
 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, stated that this agenda item sets the upper 
limit of the County’s budget.  Upon Board approval, he advised that a public 
hearing notice will be published in the official County newspaper advising the 
public of the date and time for the July 15th public hearing to adopt the final 
budget.  Mr. McDaniel stated that adjustments can be made within the budget 
between the time the tentative budget is adopted and the final budget is 
adopted, but once the tentative budget is adopted, the total dollar amount 
cannot be changed. 
 
Jeff Hessenius, Finance Division Director, outlined some of the guidelines that 
were taken into consideration in preparing this year’s budget, such as not 
increasing property tax rates; accounting for the reduction in property tax 
revenue; providing funding for salary adjustments which resulted from the 
recommendations of the Classification and Compensation Study; and 
continuing to provide the same level of service to the citizens of Gila County.  
He stated that in order to compensate for these aforementioned changes which 
equate to an overall 1.2% reduction in the budget, department heads have been 
directed to reduce their departmental budgets and explore ways to complete 
jobs with less manpower by strategic planning and improved operating 
processes.  Mr. Hessenius provided a slide presentation of the tentative budget 
and reviewed the highlights with the Board.  He stated that there will be a link 
to the tentative budget attachment on the Gila County website.   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired if a consultant may be brought on board to help with 
streamlining the implementation of the Classification and Compensation 
Study; to which Mr. Hessenius agreed that hiring a consultant is a good idea to 
provide assistance with improving processes moving forward.   
 
It was noted that there were typographical errors in the tentative budget that 
would be corrected before the final budget is presented to the Board on July 
15th.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, the Board unanimously adopted the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Annual 
Tentative Budget in the amount of $94,444,905, authorized the publication of 

Page 4 of 17 
 



the summary budget, and set the public hearing for July 15, 2014, to adopt the 
Final Fiscal Year 2014-2015 Gila County Budget. 
 
C.  Information/Discussion/Action to provide an update on the activities 
of the Town of Miami's Cobre Valley Community Transit System; 
approve an Intergovernmental Agreement (Economic Development Grant) 
between Gila County and the Town of Miami in the amount of $31,500 to 
be paid from the County's 2014-2015 fiscal year budget in order to assist 
the Town of Miami with its Cobre Valley Community Transit System, 
specifically, the Dial-A-Ride Program; and further, the Board determines 
this is for the benefit of the public and will improve or enhance the 
economic welfare of the inhabitants of Gila County.   
 
Jerry Barnes, Miami Town Manager/Director of the Cobre Valley Transit 
System (CVTS), stated that it has been a good year for the CVTS and recently 
the CVTS was presented with an award for the fixed route that is currently in 
operation.  Ridership is up approximately 300%; there is now a Globe route 
which utilizes the Miami swimming pool which will operate during the summer 
months.  He stated that the CVTS could not be possible without the support of 
Gila County and he requested funding support in the amount of $31,500 as a 
local match from Globe and Miami.   
 
Chairman Pastor inquired if the Dial-A-Ride Program is currently operating, 
and if there is transit to and from the Wheatfields area and the Gila Pueblo 
Community College Campus.  Mr. Barnes replied that the Dial-A-Ride Program 
is, in fact, available and it is in operation 12 hours a day, 5 days a week.  The 
route could include the Wheatfields area and the current route includes 
transportation to/from the Gila Pueblo Community College Campus.  Each 
Board member complimented this program.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously approved an 
Intergovernmental Agreement (Economic Development Grant) between Gila 
County and the Town of Miami in the amount of $31,500 to be paid from the 
County's 2014-2015 fiscal year budget in order to assist the Town of Miami 
with its Cobre Valley Community Transit System, specifically, the Dial-A-Ride 
Program; and further, the Board determined this is for the benefit of the public 
and will improve or enhance the economic welfare of the inhabitants of Gila 
County.   
 
D.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Professional Services 
Contracts for the various attorneys which the Superior Court in Gila 
County utilizes on an annual basis.   
 
Jonathan Bearup, Deputy Court Administrator, stated that the attorney 
contracts being presented provide indigent legal representation to the citizens 
of the County.  He stated that the Gila County Court Administration has 
determined these contracts to be a necessary business practice for the County 

Page 5 of 17 
 



and that there is a statistical measuring system built in to the contracts to 
track monies being spent for reporting purposes.  Additionally, as a safeguard 
to the County, there is now an insurance requirement in the attorney 
contracts.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, the Board unanimously approved the Professional Services Contracts 
for the various attorneys which the Superior Court in Gila County utilizes on 
an annual basis.   
 
E.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-06-06 
whereby the Gila County Board of Supervisors hereby declares its 
continued support for Gila County to remain in the Cenpatico Behavioral 
Health of Arizona (Southern Region) geographical service area for the 
upcoming HF332025 - Greater Arizona Behavioral Health Services 
Request for Proposal.   
 
John Marcanti, District 3 Supervisor, stated that Cenpatico Behavioral Health 
of Arizona services the following southern counties in addition to Gila; Pinal, 
Yuma, Santa Cruz, La Paz, Cochise, Greenlee, and Graham by offering several 
programs such as Horizon Human Services, Southeastern Arizona Behavioral 
Health Services, and Community Bridges, Inc.  Vice-Chairman Martin made a 
motion to adopt Resolution No. 14-06-06 whereby the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors hereby declares its continued support for Gila County to remain in 
the Cenpatico Behavioral Health of Arizona (Southern Region) geographical 
service area for the upcoming HF332025 - Greater Arizona Behavioral Health 
Services Request for Proposal.  Prior to making a second to the motion, 
Supervisor Marcanti added that he supports adopting this resolution so as not 
to negatively impact the citizens within his Supervisorial District.  He explained 
that if there were a split to the Southern Region geographical service area, he 
feels that it would adversely affect those Gila County citizens who utilize these 
services; for example, the citizens residing on the San Carlos Apache Tribe 
Reservation would be split between Gila and Graham counties, and the citizens 
residing in Hayden and Winkelman would be split between Gila and Pinal 
counties.  Supervisor Marcanti seconded the motion, which was unanimously 
approved by the Board.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on file in 
the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)  
 
F.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-06-07 
whereby the Gila County Board of Supervisors hereby declares its 
continued support for Cenpatico of Arizona to remain as the Regional 
Behavioral Health Authority for Gila County and be awarded the upcoming 
HF332025 – Greater Arizona Behavioral Health Services Contract.   
 
Chairman Pastor requested that the Board make a motion to table this agenda 
item so that he would have time to meet with Bryan Chambers, Deputy 
Attorney Principal, to discuss some legal concerns.  He advised that this issue 
may or may not appear on a future agenda, depending on the conversation 

Page 6 of 17 
 



with Mr. Chambers.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously tabled this agenda item. 
 
G.  Information/Discussion/Action to ratify the submission of a grant 
application by the Community Services Division, Housing Services to 
Freeport-McMoRan Copper & Gold (Freeport), which was submitted on 
February 28, 2014; and to accept a grant award from Freeport in the 
amount of $10,000 which will be used during the period of July 1, 2014, 
through June 30, 2015, to provide minor home repairs to eligible citizens 
residing in Globe, Miami, and Claypool.  
 
Malissa Buzan, Community Services Division Director, stated that this request 
is to seek permission from the Board of Supervisors to ratify the Community 
Services Division’s previous submission of a grant application, and for the 
Board to accept a grant award in the amount of $10,000 from Freeport-
McMoRan Copper & Gold.  She stated that although the funds are slotted for 
Globe, Miami, and Claypool, it allows for leveraging of funds in order to assist 
in northern Gila County as well by using multiple funding sources.  Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously ratified the submission of a grant application by the Community 
Services Division, Housing Services to Freeport-McMoRan Copper & Gold 
(Freeport), which was submitted on February 28, 2014; and accepted a grant 
award from Freeport in the amount of $10,000 which will be used during the 
period of July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015, to provide minor home repairs 
to eligible citizens residing in Globe, Miami, and Claypool. 
 
H.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-06-08 
which authorizes the execution of Amendment No. Two to an 
Intergovernmental Agreement (ADOT File No. IGA/JPA 10-230I) between 
Gila County and the State of Arizona, Department of Transportation for 
the construction of pedestrian sidewalks along the westerly side of Six 
Shooter Canyon Road.   
 
Steve Sanders, Public Works Division Deputy Director, provided background 
information regarding the status of this Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) 
with the State of Arizona Department of Transportation (ADOT) and he 
explained that if this amendment is not approved by the Board, ADOT may opt 
not to complete the project; and if that were to occur, the County would lose 
approximately $27,000 it has invested thus far in this project.  Mr. Sanders 
further stated that ADOT has changed its project management and design 
review fees to a range of $30,000 to $50,000; consequently, the amendment to 
the IGA herein includes an additional 5.7% or $1,539 for ADOT’s fee increases 
for a total project cost to the County of $52,542. 
 
Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, stated that he has been in 
communications with ADOT leadership regarding this fee increase and he 

Page 7 of 17 
 



stated that although changes will not occur with the cost of this project, ADOT 
is in the process of standardizing the project management and design review 
fees which will help small towns to budget accordingly for joint projects with 
ADOT.  The Board had a brief discussion regarding the increased cost of the 
project; however, it was agreed that the project needed to be completed in order 
to provide a safer route for pedestrian traffic in this area.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously adopted Resolution No. 14-06-08 which authorizes the execution 
of Amendment No. Two to an Intergovernmental Agreement (ADOT File No. 
IGA/JPA 10-230I) between Gila County and the State of Arizona, Department 
of Transportation for the construction of pedestrian sidewalks along the 
westerly side of Six Shooter Canyon Road.  (A copy of the Resolution is 
permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
I.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Invitation for Bid No. 060314-1 for the milling of asphalt for the Gisela 
Road Project.  
 
Jeff Hessenius, Finance Division Director, stated that Board approval of this 
item will allow for advertising of the Invitation for Bid for the milling of the 
asphalt for the Gisela Road Project with a bid award date of August 5, 2014.  
Chairman Pastor inquired of Mr. Stratton as to the timeline for completion of 
this project.  Mr. Stratton replied that the plan is to complete the project by the 
end of the summer or by early fall.  He added that some culvert preparation 
work has been started for this project in order to expedite the process.   
 
Mr. Hessenius added that funding for this project will come from the County’s 
½ cent transportation excise tax.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously authorized the 
advertisement of Invitation for Bid No. 060314-1 for the milling of asphalt for 
the Gisela Road Project. 
 
J.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Invitation for Bid No. 060214 for truck hauls of asphalt millings to Forest 
Service Road 417-Gisela Road.   
 
Mr. Hessenius stated that authorization for the advertisement of this Invitation 
for Bid is for the hauling of the asphalt milling from the Payson Event Center to 
Gisela to complete the double chip seal of a portion of Forest Service Road 417.  
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously authorized the advertisement of Invitation for Bid No. 
060214 for truck hauls of asphalt millings to Forest Service Road 417-Gisela 
Road.   
 

Page 8 of 17 
 



K.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Invitation for Bid No. 060314 for MC-800TR chip seal oil for Gila County 
repair and maintenance.   
 
Mr. Hessenius stated that the current contract for the purchase of MC-800TR 
chip seal oil expired on April 5, 2014.  Since the time the contract expired, the 
County didn’t have a need for this material until the present.  He advised that a 
new contract has been developed, so the next step in the process is to obtain 
the Board’s approval to advertise the Invitation for Bid.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously 
authorized the advertisement of Invitation for Bid No. 060314 for MC-800TR 
chip seal oil for Gila County repair and maintenance.   
 
L.  Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Request for Proposals No. 042314 for janitorial services for northern Gila 
County, which includes but is not limited to: the Payson Administration 
Building; the Gila County Court Complex in Payson; the 
Health/Rabies/Environmental office; the Community Action and Co-op 
Extension offices; the Assessor's and Recorder's Offices; and the Payson 
Sheriff's Office/Jail Administration Building and Justice of the Peace 
Court.  
 
Mr. Hessenius stated that the current janitorial contract expired on May 3, 
2014.  Approval of this item will allow for the advertisement of the Request for 
Proposals (RFP) to provide janitorial services to be performed at night in 
northern Gila County.  The contract is not all inclusive; Star Valley wasn’t 
included in this RFP; however, it is serviced internally.  He also mentioned that 
the new contract allows for expansion to include other County facilities to be 
serviced at an additional cost.  Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded 
by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously authorized the 
advertisement of Request for Proposals No. 042314 for janitorial services for 
northern Gila County, which includes but is not limited to: the Payson 
Administration Building; the Gila County Court Complex in Payson; the 
Health/Rabies/Environmental office; the Community Action and Co-op 
Extension offices; the Assessor's and Recorder's Offices; and the Payson 
Sheriff's Office/Jail Administration Building and Justice of the Peace Court. 
 
M.  Information/Discussion/Action to continue this proposal to purchase 
the NAPA Auto Parts property at 110 W. Main Street in Payson, Arizona, 
in an amount not to exceed $450,500, until after the July 29, 2014, 
Board of Supervisors' Work Session at which time additional information 
regarding the Countywide square footage needs will be presented and 
discussed.  
 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, stated that the proposed purchase of this 
property was listed as an action item on the Board’s May 6th meeting agenda.  

Page 9 of 17 
 



At that time the Board continued this item to this meeting and also directed 
staff to gather additional information on office space needs throughout the 
County including the Four Amigos property to the east, the shop property to 
the south and the Los Lomas School.  As a result of the Board’s directive, 
Lonnie Brevick, the County’s consultant, prepared an amended Gila County 
Long Range Facilities Management Plan.  Mr. McDaniel recommended that the 
Board continue this item to the Board’s July 29th work session at which time 
the amended Gila County Long Range Facilities Management Plan would be 
presented to the Board.  
 
Vice-Chairman Martin opened discussion as to the availability of funds for this 
project, and she inquired if this proposed property purchase was included in 
the County’s 2014-2015 fiscal year budget.  Mr. McDaniel replied that 
currently there is bond money to proceed with this proposed purchase or 
“whatever the Board chooses to do.”   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin asked Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, if 
the information contained in the consultant’s amended report to be presented 
to the Board in July would likely change the Board’s prioritization of any 
projects that have been discussed thus far with the Board.  Mr. Stratton replied 
that in preparing the budget for Capital Improvement Projects, he felt it was 
prudent to list all of the needed projects for the Board’s consideration, fully 
realizing there would not be enough money to complete all of the projects.  He 
further stated that as direction is given by the Board to commence with any of 
the proposed projects, those specific projects would then be entered as a line 
item in the budget.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti inquired if a portion of the bond money was slated to 
complete the 2nd floor renovation of the Globe Courthouse.  Mr. Stratton replied 
that he did not think there was enough bond money to complete the 2nd floor 
renovation and the purchase of the NAPA Auto Parts property.  He believes 
there will have to be other funds to complete either or both of those projects.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin advised that the owner of the building in which NAPA 
Auto Parts uses has found only one other suitable property to relocate that 
business.  The owner had an option on that building of which the option was 
extended at least two times to her knowledge; the last request to extend the 
option was denied, so the property has since been placed back on the market.  
She stated that if no new alternatives are going to be presented for office needs 
in northern Gila County, only southern Gila County, and given the fact that the 
option to purchase is no longer available to the property owner, Vice-Chairman 
Martin believes it is critical to not delay purchasing this property. 
 
Chairman Pastor added that the reason this agenda item was continued from 
the May 6th meeting was because it was not included the current 2013-2014 
budget, and it needs to be included in the 2014-2015 budget. 

Page 10 of 17 
 



Mr. McDaniel added that in continuing this item from the May 6th meeting, the 
intention was to ensure that the Board is fully aware that there are limited 
bond funds available.  He added that for the past 1½ years, the Board and staff 
have been planning to utilize the remaining bond funds for the 2nd floor 
Courthouse renovation project.  With the advent of the NAPA Auto Parts 
property, the approach was then changed to utilize the remaining bond funds 
for the NAPA Auto Parts property purchase.  He advised that ultimately a 
decision would need to be rendered by the Board on which project would be 
chosen.  He further advised that staff would not be opposed to utilizing funds 
to purchase the NAPA Auto Parts property as long as the Board agrees that the 
funding source for the 2nd floor renovation would yet need to be decided.  He 
stated that there is sufficient funding in the Capital Improvement Projects fund 
for this purchase, and there is additional contingency funds or reserve funds 
that could be utilized, but staff’s concern is that all of the options are presented 
to the Board of Supervisors as that Board is dealing with limited resources, so 
it is the Board’s ultimate decision. 
 
Bryan Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal, referred to the language for this 
agenda item and he stated that it may be a safer course of action for the Board 
not to make a decision at this time and to continue the item as stated in the 
agenda item; however, the Board may decide to call a special meeting in order 
to expedite the action.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti stated that he had done some research with respect to 
purchasing the NAPA Auto Parts property and he believes that it is reasonably 
priced; however, he agreed with Mr. Chambers to wait to take action until such 
time as all of the figures involved with the purchase can be presented to the 
Board for further consideration.   
 
Chairman Pastor recessed the meeting at 12:00 p.m. and reconvened the 
meeting at 12:06 p.m.   
 
Mr. McDaniel stated that per the Board’s direction it would be appropriate to 
continue this item to the July 1st meeting to allow staff to re-word the agenda 
item with additional direction to purchase or not to purchase the NAPA Auto 
Parts property in Payson.   
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously continued this item to the July 1, 2014, Board of 
Supervisors’ meeting with additional direction given to staff to provide the 
Board with a recommendation to purchase or not to purchase the NAPA Auto 
Parts property located at 110 W. Main Street in Payson, Arizona.   
 
N.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 14-06-09, a 
resolution providing funding to be used for highway and street purposes 
including costs of right of way acquisitions and expenses related thereto 

Page 11 of 17 
 



and construction, reconstruction, maintenance, repair and roadside 
development of county, city and town roads, streets and bridges and 
payment of principal and interest on highway and street bonds, and for 
regional transportation projects that are included in the regional 
transportation plan of the County prepared by the County, any city, town 
or regional planning agency; and levying a transportation excise tax to 
provide moneys for said purposes.   
 
Mr. McDaniel explained that this resolution is a necessary step to proceed with 
the continuation of the County’s ½ cent transportation excise tax, and the 
information contained therein outlines the need for the tax to be collected and 
the levying of the tax; it allows for the citizens to provide comments; and it also 
outlines the percentages of revenue to be paid to the cities and towns.  At 
present, Gila County receives all of the revenue generated from this tax.  He 
added that the next step in this process will be a request from the Elections 
Department to the Board of Supervisors for the Board to adopt a resolution at 
its July 1, 2014, meeting.  The purpose of the resolution is to call for an 
election on November 4, 2014, for the voters to decide whether or not to 
continue the Gila County ½ cent transportation excise tax and to share the 
revenue with the city and towns in the County.  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously adopted 
Resolution No. 14-06-09, a resolution providing funding to be used for highway 
and street purposes including costs of right of way acquisitions and expenses 
related thereto and construction, reconstruction, maintenance, repair and 
roadside development of county, city and town roads, streets and bridges and 
payment of principal and interest on highway and street bonds, and for 
regional transportation projects that are included in the regional transportation 
plan of the County prepared by the County, any city, town or regional planning 
agency; and levying a transportation excise tax to provide moneys for said 
purposes.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of 
Supervisors’ Office.)  
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously adjourned as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and 
convened as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors. 
 
O.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve and accept Grant Renewal 
Amendment GRA-RC029-13-0533-01-Y3 San Carlos Apache Tribe Parent 
Outreach and Awareness which is a "Community-Based Literacy Grant" in 
the amount of $70,000 for the period of July 1, 2014, through June 30, 
2015.   
 
Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, stated that on April 1, 
2014, the Gila County Library District Board of Directors authorized the 
submission of the grant renewal application.  Since that time, the Library 
District has been notified of said grant award.  This request is for the Board of 

Page 12 of 17 
 



Directors to officially approve and accept the Community-Based Literacy Grant 
in order to allow the Library District the opportunity and ability to provide early 
literacy training and materials to parents and children from ages birth through 
5 and provide additional resource materials to children ages 5 to 6 living in the 
San Carlos Apache Tribe Region.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board unanimously approved and 
accepted Grant Renewal Amendment GRA-RC029-13-0533-01-Y3 San Carlos 
Apache Tribe Parent Outreach and Awareness which is a "Community-Based 
Literacy Grant" in the amount of $70,000 for the period of July 1, 2014, 
through June 30, 2015.   
 
P.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve and accept Grant Renewal 
Amendment GRA-RC004-14-0616-01-Y2 Gila Parent Outreach and 
Awareness which is a "Community-Based Literacy Grant" in the amount of 
$85,000 for the period July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015.   
 
Ms. Griffin stated that this agenda item mirrors the previous agenda item and 
the grant applies to the Gila Region service area.  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously 
approved and accepted Grant Renewal Amendment GRA-RC004-14-0616-01-
Y2 Gila Parent Outreach and Awareness which is a Community-Based Literacy 
Grant in the amount of $85,000 for the period July 1, 2014, through June 30, 
2015.   
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously adjourned as the Gila County Library District Board of 
Directors and reconvened as the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 
Q.  Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for 
Invitation for Bids No. 041414 for the purchase and delivery of bulk fuel 
and lubricants; award to the lowest, most responsive, responsible and 
qualified bidder; and to authorize the Chairman's signature on the award 
contract for the winning bidder.   
 
Jeff Hessenius, Finance Division Director, stated that the existing contract for 
bulk fuel and lubricants expires on June 25, 2014.  The purpose of Invitation 
for Bids No. 041414 is to contract with a supplier for bulk fuel and lubricants.  
This Invitation for Bids was advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt on May 28, 
2014, and June 4, 2014.  The County has acquired lubricants in anticipation 
of the existing contract expiring; therefore, the County does not have a need to 
purchase lubricants at this time and can continue to evaluate bids that have 
been submitted for the lubricants portion of the Invitation for Bid.  Staff 
recommends award of the Invitation for Bids to Canyon State Oil for the fuel 
portion of the contract for a period of 12 months beginning June 26, 2014, to 
June 25, 2015, with 2 one-year options to extend the contract.   
 

Page 13 of 17 
 



Chairman Pastor inquired if the low bidder submitted a valid bid to which Mr. 
Hessenius replied that a letter had been sent to Canyon State Oil to verify that 
the bid submitted was all inclusive and they confirmed that it was in fact all 
inclusive.   
 
Supervisor Marcanti asked for clarification regarding the amount of money that 
would be added to the Oil Price Information Service (OPIS) pricing.  Mr. 
Hessenius explained that the calculation is that Canyon State Oil will use the 
OPIS pricing, which changes on Mondays; add the incremental pricing that is 
agreed to in the contract; and this pricing will be locked in for the entire week, 
but will change again the following Monday.     
 
Chairman Pastor verified that the estimated fuel usage was accurate to which 
Mr. Hessenius replied that the fuel estimate was provided by the Public Works 
Auto Equipment and Maintenance Department.  Steve Stratton, Public Works 
Division Director, added that the fuel estimate was reflective of less driving and 
more efficient use of County equipment and resources.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin inquired if the County had any recourse should Canyon 
State Oil not perform per the contract.  Mr. Hessenius replied that there are 
remedies for non-performance contained in the contract; specifically, that the 
contract can be cancelled if the supplier isn’t performing.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously awarded a contract to Canyon State Oil for the purchase and 
delivery of bulk fuel as outlined in Invitation for Bid No. 041414, and 
authorized the Chairman's signature on the award contract.   
 
R.  Information/Discussion/Action to approve Stipulated Judgments in 
Rim Country Express LLC. v. Gila County, TX 2011-000854, TX 2012-
000780, and TX 2013-000666.  Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) the 
Board may vote to go into executive session to receive legal advice from 
its attorney.  Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(4) the Board may vote to 
go into executive session in order to consider its position and instruct its 
attorneys regarding the Board’s position in a settlement discussion to 
resolve the lawsuit.   
 
Bryan Chambers, Deputy Attorney Principal, advised that upon approval by the 
Board, an agreement would be made to settle a tax dispute with Rim County 
Express LLC, and that the dispute has been ongoing for the last three years.  
He also stated that the proposed settlement amount was negotiated with the 
Plaintiff, Rim Country Express LLC, and should the Board have any questions 
or in order to receive legal advice regarding this dispute, the Board may vote to 
go into executive session.  Mr. Chambers then added that the Assessor’s Office 
and the County Attorney’s Office both recommend that the Board approve this 
agreement.  The Board decided that an executive session would not be 
necessary; therefore, Chairman Pastor asked for a motion on this issue.  Upon 

Page 14 of 17 
 



motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the Board 
unanimously approved Stipulated Judgments in Rim Country Express LLC. v. 
Gila County, TX 2011-000854, TX 2012-000780, and TX 2013-000666. 
 
Item 5 – CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any matter on the Consent 
Agenda will be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed and voted 
upon as a regular agenda item upon the request of any member of the 
Board of Supervisors.)  
A.  Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement for Election Services 
between the Gila County Recorder's Office and the Town of Payson to 
provide "Vote by Mail" election services on August 26, 2014, and, if 
needed, run-off election services on November 4, 2014. 
 
B.  Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Contract No. 
062813-Medical Examiner Services between Gila County and Mark A. 
Fischione, M.D., PLC, to increase the contract amount from $30,000 to 
$70,000 to cover the remainder of the original contract term which 
expires on January 6, 2015.  
 
C.  Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) between Yavapai 
County and Gila County for Restoration to Competency Services for 
one year from July 1, 2014, to June 30, 2015, with the option for three 
(3) one (1) year renewals upon mutual agreement of the Parties.  
 
D.  Approval of the amended amount to the Emergency Management 
Performance Grant Fund Application in the amount of $110,000 for 
FFY2014 for re-submission to Arizona Division of Emergency 
Management, and approval of the Chairman's signature on the 
Application.  
 
E.  Approval of the revised Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Area Business 
Plan for the period of July 1, 2014, to June 30, 2017, of which said 
revisions were requested by the Arizona Department of Economic 
Security.  
 
F.  Approval of revisions to the Bylaws of the Gila/Pinal Workforce 
Investment Board.   
 
G.  Approval of Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. Gila 10101 between Gila 
County and Central Arizona College for Program Year 2014, to add 
carryover funds in the amount of $590,000 bringing the total contract 
amount to $1,432,587, and to extend the contract period to July 1, 2014, 
through June 30, 2015.  
 
H.  Approval of Amendment No. 4 to Contract No. Gila 10102 between Gila 
County and Central Arizona Governments for Program Year 2014 to add 

Page 15 of 17 
 



carryover funds to provide Workforce Investment Act Adult Services in 
the amount of $400,000 bringing the total contract amount to 
$1,273,579, and to extend the contract period to July 1, 2014, through 
June 30, 2015.  
 
I.  Approval of Amendment No. 4 to a Weatherization Low-Income 
Assistance Agreement (Contract No. LW-ESA-2182-02Y4) between the 
State of Arizona, Governor's Office of Energy Policy and Gila County 
amending the contract to provide up to $99,692 to be used to provide 
weatherization services to eligible citizens residing in Gila County for the 
period of July 1, 2014, to June 30, 2015.  
 
J.  Approval of Amendment No. 10 to an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(Contract No. DE111073001) between the Arizona Department of 
Economic Security and the Gila County Division of Community Services, 
Community Action/Housing Services, to provide funding in the amount of 
$319,381 for the service of Case Management and $150,000 for the 
service of Community Services, to be used to provide assistance to 
eligible citizens residing in Gila County for the period beginning July 1, 
2014, through June 30, 2015.  
 
K.  Acknowledgment of the May 2014 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.  
 
L.  Acknowledgment of the May 2014 monthly activity report submitted 
by the Payson Regional Constable's Office. 
 
M.  Acknowledgment of the March 2014 monthly activity report 
submitted by the Recorder's Office.  
 
N.  Approval of the May 6, 2014, and May 13, 2014, Board of Supervisors' 
meeting minutes.  
 
O.  Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been 
approved by the County Manager for the weeks of May 19, 2014 to May 
23, 2014; May 26, 2014 to May 30, 2014; and June 2, 2014 to June 6, 
2014.  
 
P.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of June 
10, 2014, June 17, 2014, and June 24, 2014.  
 
June 10, 2014 
 
$1,610,202.71 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 262232 
through 262405.  
 

Page 16 of 17 
 



June 17, 2014 
$907,685.32 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 262406 
through 262551.  
 
June 24, 2014 
 
$2,797,602.24 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 262552 
through 262748.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Marcanti, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board approved Consent Agenda action items 5-A through 5-P. 
 
Item 6 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC: Call to the Public is held for public benefit 
to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any issue 
within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members may 
not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 
conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
Item 7 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 
Administrator may present a brief summary of current events. No action 
may be taken on issues presented. 
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 12:45 p.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 

Page 17 of 17 
 



   
ARF-2569     Consent Agenda Item      4. Q.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  
Reporting
Period:

Human Resources reports for the weeks of 07/01/14,
07/8/14, 07/15/14, 07/22/14, and 07/29/14.

Submitted For: Linda Eastlick 
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant Sr.,

Human Resources 

Information
Subject
Human Resources reports for the weeks of July 1, 2014, July 8, 2014,
July 15, 2014, July 22, 2014, and July 29, 2014.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of July 1,
2014, July 8, 2014, July 15, 2014, July 22, 2014, and July 29, 2014.

Attachments
July Human Resources Summary Report
07/01/14 Human Resources Report
07/08/14 Human Resources Report
07/15/14 Human Resources Report
07/22/14 Human Resources Report
07/29/14 Human Resources Report



Summary
Year To 
Date Jan‐14 Feb‐14 Mar‐14 Apr‐14 May‐14 Jun‐14 Jul‐14 Aug‐14 Sep‐14 Oct‐14 Nov‐14 Dec‐14

Human Resources Action Items

DEPARTURES 84 10 8 12 16 9 10 19

NEW HIRES REGULAR STATUS 52 4 5 6 13 8 4 12

NEW HIRES TEMPORARY STATUS 19 6 0 2 0 2 2 7

NEW VOLUNTEERS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 31 5 6 3 3 12 2 0

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD 62 14 10 5 9 10 5 9

OTHER ACTIONS 37 5 1 2 3 8 6 12

REQUEST TO POST 56 9 4 4 13 7 8 11

  Total Transactions 341 53 34 34 57 56 37 70 0 0 0 0 0



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JULY 1, 2014 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Debra Espinoza – Public Works – Administrative Clerk – 06/26/14 – Public Works Fund – DOH 
04/28/14 

2. Jennifer Lisenbee – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 06/29/14 – General Fund – DOH 12/23/13 
3. Christopher Lisenbee – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Sgt. – 06/29/14 – General Fund – DOH 

03/15/10 
4. Zada Shafer – Payson Constable’s Office – Deputy Constable (.38) – 06/21/14 – General Fund – DOH 

05/05/14 
5. Jose Ramirez – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – 06/25/14 – General Fund – DOH 

02/03/14 
6. Lisa Foster – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 06/27/14 – Adult Intensive Probation 

Supervision Fund – DOH 05/31/05 
7. Alison Manista-Cooper – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 07/11/14 – General Fund – DOH 

10/15/12 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

8. Diana Simmes – Public Works – Scalehouse Attendant – 07/07/14 – Recycling and Landfill 
Management Fund – Replacing Tol Johnson  

9. Jason Fajardo – Sheriff’s Office- Deputy Sheriff – 07/14/14 – General Fund – Replacing Christopher 
Bender 

10. Brian Dirks – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 07/03/14 – General Fund – Replacing George Carrillo 
11. Oulono Folau – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 07/03/14 – General Fund – Replacing William 

Newman 
12. Christy Buchanan – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/14/14 – General Fund – Replacing 

Brittany Gonzales  
 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

13. Duncan Rose – County Attorney’s Office – Deputy Attorney Senior – 07/27/14 – General Fund  
14. Ted Schaefer – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer (.38) – 03/11/14 – General Fund  
15. Tyler Pearce – Public Works – Automotive Service Worker – 07/06/14 – Public Works Fund 

 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JULY 8, 2014 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Christine Rocha – Health and Emergency Services – Health Program Manager – 06/30/14 – Tobacco 
Free Environment Fund – DOH 04/01/96 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

2. Mark Warden – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician Lead – 07/01/14 – From Fairgrounds 
Fund – To Facilities Management Fund – Change in fund codes 

3. Brian Rogers – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – 07/01/14 – From Fairgrounds Fund 
– To Facilities Management Fund – Change in fund codes 

4. Jerry M. Moore – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – 07/01/14 – From Fairgrounds 
Fund – To Facilities Management Fund – Change in fund codes 

5. Erika Pisano – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 07/14/14 – From Juvenile Standards Probation 
Fund – To General Fund – Change in fund codes 

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JULY 15, 2014 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Annamarie Schutter – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 06/30/14 – General Fund – DOH 04/30/03 
2. Michael Lorka – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer (.48) – 06/30/14 – General Fund – DOH 

07/19/10 
3. Linda Eastlick – Human Resources – Director of Human Resources and Risk Management – 07/18/14 – 

General Fund – DOH 08/27/07 
4. Virginia Mounce – Treasurer’s Office – Treasurer Services Assistant – 07/07/14 – General Fund – DOH 

11/01/10 
5. Donald Simon – Health and Emergency Services – HIV Early Intervention Services Coordinator – 

07/18/14 – General Fund – DOH 04/30/14 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

6. Patricia Dodd – Sheriff’s Office – Civil Clerk – 07/21/14 – General Fund – Replacing Susan Dean 
7. Barbara Romero – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 07/21/14 - State Aid Enhancement Fund – 

Replacing April Fogle 
 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

8. Savannah Barajas – Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 07/14/14 – General Fund  - 
Replacing Curtis Johnson 

9. Marlyce Miller – Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 07/14/14 – General Fund – Replacing 
Matthew Cruz 

10. Destinee Barajas – Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 07/14/14 – General Fund – Replacing 
Christopher Thorne 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

11. R. Brent Henry – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician Senior – 08/10/14 – Facilities 
Management Fund 

12. Justin Simpson – Public Works – Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator – 07/06/14 – Public 
Works Fund 

13. R. Joe Johnson – Public Works – Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator – 07/06/14 – Public 
Works Fund 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

14. April Fogle – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 07/21/14 – From State Aid Enhancement Fund 
– To General Fund 

15. Ronald Hanse – Sheriff’s Office – From Deputy Sheriff – To Deputy Sheriff (Special Assignment) – 
06/17/14 – General Fund – Temporary assignment  

16. Thoreina Hensley – Sheriff’s Office – From Deputy Sheriff (Special Assignment) – To Deputy Sheriff – 
06/29/14 – General Fund – End of temporary assignment 

 
 
 
 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JULY 15, 2014 
PAGE 2 OF 2 
 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

17. Public Works – Senior Accounting Clerk – Vacated by Gloria Aguirre 
18. Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk -  Vacated by Simone Sheppard 
19. Recorder’s Office – Recorder Clerk Senior – Vacated by Teri Berumen 
20. Health and Emergency Services – Public Health Nurse – Vacated by Roberta Johnson 
21. Health and Emergency Services – Health Programs Manager – Vacated by Christine Rocha 
22. Health and Emergency Services – Temporary Public Health Nurse 

 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JULY 22, 2014 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Judith Eckhardt – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 1 – 07/15/14 – General Fund – DOH 02/04/14 
2. Gloria Thompson – Library District – Temporary Early Literacy Program Coordinator – 07/31/14 – 

Library District Grants Fund – DOH 07/22/13 
3. Delores Guerrero – Library District – Temporary Early Literacy Community Liaison – 06/30/14 – 

Library District Grants Fund – DOH 07/29/13 
4. Maxine Piper – Library District – Temporary Early Literacy Community Liaison – 06/30/14 – Library 

District Grants Fund – DOH 08/06/12 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

5. Brian Buchanan – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/28/14 – General Fund – Replacing Matthew 
Benson 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

6. Carolyn Haro – Library District – Temporary Early Literacy Community Liaison – 07/28/14 – Library 
Districts Grants Fund – Replacing Delores Guerrero 

7. Robin Holt – Library District – Temporary Early Literacy Community Liaison – 07/01/14 – Library 
District Grants Fund 

8. Lorraine Dalrymple – Health and Emergency Services – Temporary Public Health Nurse – 07/30/14 –
Health Services Fund 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

9. Joni Erwin – Finance – Buyer – 07/21/14 – General Fund 
 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

10. Pamela Beerens – Library District – Public Services Librarian – 07/01/14 – From Library Assistance 
Fund – To Various Funds – Change in funds 

11. Debra Blevins – Health and Emergency Services – Accounting Clerk – 07/01/14 – Various Funds – 
Change in funds 

12. Ramona Scales – Health and Emergency Services – Public Health Nurse – 07/01/14 – Various Funds – 
Change in funds 

13. Lucinda Campbell – Health and Emergency Services – Public Health Nurse – 07/01/14 – Various Funds 
– Change in funds  

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

14. Human Resources – Director of Human Resources and Risk Management – Vacated by Linda Eastlick 
15. Public Works – Building and Maintenance Technician – Vacated by Jose Ramirez 
16. Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 1 – Vacated by Judith Eckhardt 
17. Library District – San Carlos Temporary Early Literacy Program Coordinator – Vacated by Gloria 

Thompson  
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JULY 29, 2014 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Cecilia Bejarano – Community Services – Administrative Assistant – 08/01/14 – Various Funds – DOH 
10/01/76 

2. Arlene Ramirez – Superior Court – Calendar Administrator – 07/18/14 – General Fund – DOH 09/16/13 
 
NEW HIRES: 
 

3. Morgan Epperson – Community Development – Permit Technician – 08/04/14 – General Fund – 
Replacing Beverly Valenzuela 

4. Cole LaBonte – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff – 08/04/14 – General Fund – Replacing Karl Schubert 
5. Alicia Santa Maria – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk Senior – 08/04/14 – General Fund – 

Replacing Teri Berumen 
6. Meagan Hart – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk – 08/18/14 – General Fund – Replacing Simone 

Sheppard 
 

TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

7. Juanita Martinez – Library District – Temporary Early Literacy Community Liaison – 07/30/14 – 
Library District Grants Fund – Replacing Amanda Aguirre 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

8. Jerry M. Moore – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – 08/10/14 – Facilities 
Management Fund 

9. M. Reyes Barajas – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – 08/03/14 – Facilities 
Management Fund 

 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

10. Valerie Pizano – Superior Court – Temporary Court Clerk – 07/01/14 – From Local Probate Assessment 
Fee Fund – To superior Court Cost of Prosecution Fund – Change in fund codes 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

11. Community Services – Administrative Assistant – Vacated by Cecilia Bejarano 
 
 



   
ARF-2699     Consent Agenda Item      4. R.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 08/05/2014  
Reporting
Period:

Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under
$50,000 for Weeks Ending 7-4-14; 7-11-14; and 7-18-14

Submitted For: Jeffrey Hessenius 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks
Ending 7-4-14; 7-11-14; and 7-18-14.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved
by the County Manager for the weeks of June 30, 2014 to July 4,
2014; July 7, 2014 to July 11, 2014; and July 14, 2014 to July 18, 2014.

Attachments
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for
Weeks Ending 7-4-14; 07-11-14; and 7-18-14
Addendum to Service Agreement with Entech
Service Agreement No 050314 with Advanced Controls Corporation
Service Agreement No 043014 with Advanced Controls Corporation
Amendment No 5 to Contract No. 091413-1 with Lin-Cum, Inc.
Service Agreement No. 050414 with Experienced Fire Sprinkling, Inc.
Amendment No. 1 to Limited Services Contract with Sienna
Counseling
Lease Agreement No. 071014 with St. Paul's United Methodist
Church
Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 042412 with Husky Fire
and Safety
Service Agreement 070214-3 with Earthquest Plumbing



Page 1 of 2 

 

COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
June 30, 2014 to July 04, 2014 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
Entech 

 
  

 
Addendum to Service 

Agreement for Maintenance and 
Repair  

 
 

 
$1,508.00  

 

 
10-1-13 to 9-30-16 

 
7-2-14 

 
Expires  

 
Contractor to service and maintain medical 
equipment, as scheduled by Department of 
Health.  This agreement includes, but is not 
limited to, provide scheduled maintenance 
service, perform service work required per 
changes in Federal, State or Local Law, provide 
unscheduled or emergency repairs.  The 
Department of Health has eliminated some 
equipment that was covered on the previous 
contract. The attached addendum revises the 
equipment schedule and reduces the annual 
amount. 
 

 
050314 

Advanced Controls 
Corporation 

 
  

 
Service Agreement No. 050314 

Fire Alarm Panels System 
Monitoring 

 
 

 
$4,603.36  

 

 
1-1-14 to 12-31-14 

 
7-2-14 

 
Expires 

 
Monitoring of all Fire Alarm Panels in Gila County 
Buildings in accordance with International Fire 
Code annual inspection 901.6.1 (Fire protection 
systems shall be inspected, tested and maintained 
in accordance with the referenced standards). 
 

 
043014 

Advanced Controls 
Corporation 

 
  

 
Service Agreement No. 043014 
Fire Alarm System Inspections 

and Repairs 
 
 

 
$6,476.40  

 

 
1-1-14 to 12-31-14 

 
7-2-14 

 
Expires 

 
Inspections of all Fire Alarm Panels in Gila County 
Buildings in accordance with International Fire 
Code annual inspection 901.6.1 (Fire protection 
systems shall be inspected, tested and maintained 
in accordance with the referenced standards). 
 

 
091413-1 

Document Conversion 
Services for Clerk of the 

Board 
 
  

 
Addendum 5 to Contract No. 

091413-1 
Gila County Clerk of the Board 
Document Conversion Services  

 
Not to exceed 

$5,000.00  
 

 
7-1-14 to 6-30-15 

 
7-2-14 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment No. 5 will extend the term of the 
contract for an additional year.  Contractor will 
provide document conversion services for the 
Clerk of the Board.  The contractor will pickup 
and prepare records for filming; documents are 
usually prep-prepared; staples removed, etc.  
Microfilm archival-process and QC.  Microfiche-
jacket, title and index.  Store original microfiche 
jackets in Lin-Cum vaults, for offsite backup and 
disaster recovery. 
 



Page 2 of 2 

 

July 7, 2014 to July 11, 2014 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
050414 

Experienced Fire 
Sprinkling, Inc. 

 
  

 
Service Agreement No. 050414 

Fire Sprinkler Systems 
Inspection and Repair  

 
$3,750.00 

 
1-1-14 to 12-31-15 

 
7-9-14 

 
Expires 

 

 
Inspections of all Fire Sprinkler Systems in Gila 
County Buildings in accordance with 
International Fire Code annual inspection 901.6.1 
(Fire protection systems shall be inspected, tested 
and maintained in accordance with the 
referenced standards) 
 

 
 
July 14, 2014 to July 18, 2014 

Number / Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 

 
Sienna Counseling & 

Consulting 
 
  

 
Amendment No. 1 to Limited 

Services Contract 
Sex Offender Counseling 

 
 
 

 
Not to exceed 

$35,000.00  
 

 
7-1-14 to 6-30-15 

 
7-15-14 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment No. 1 will extend the contract term 
with Sienna Counseling & Consulting for an 
additional year. Sienna provides sex offender 
counseling. 
 

 
071014 

St. Paul’s United 
Methodist Church 

 
  

 
Lease Agreement No. 071014 

St. Paul’s United Methodist 
Church 

 
Not to exceed 

$6,000.00 

 
Lease is for a month 
to month basis, 
ending with a 30 
day notice from 
either party 

 
7-15-14 

 
Terminates upon 

30 day notice 
from either party 

 

 
The GEST program will be using the “Tuffy Tiger” 
facility for the DTA program.  The Tuffy Tiger 
facility has been fitted to the GEST programs 
needs. 
 

 
042412 

Husky Fire & Safety 
 
  

 
Amendment No. 2 to Service 

Agreement No. 042412 
Fire Extinguisher Inspections 

 
 

 
$2,500.00  

 

 
7-1-14 to 6-30-15 

 
7-15-14 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment No. 2 is to extend the term of the 
contract from July 01, 2014 to June 30, 2015. 
Contractor will perform annual fire extinguisher 
inspections for the estimated 94 extinguishers in 
Northern Gila County.  They shall also perform 
maintenance and repair as needed upon County 
request. 
 

 
070214-2 

Earthquest Plumbing 
 
  

 
Service Agreement No. 070214-3 
Gila County Jail-Women’s Dorm 

 

 
$1,543.88  

 

 
7-15-14 to 8-14-14 

 
7-15-14 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor to install repair kits in  toilets at the 
Gila County Jail Women’s Dorm. 

 






















































































	Agenda
	 Item 2.A. - County Supervisors Association Update of Activities
	Att1_CSA Presentation
	51st Legislature, Second Regular Session:�Briefing to Gila County
	County Supervisors Association
	CSA Leadership
	CSA County Services
	2013 CSA Summit – Payson, Gila County
	Getting the Message Out
	Transportation  Advocacy
	Final FY14-15 Budget
	State Budget with K-12 Judgment 
	Slide Number 10
	CSA-sponsored Legislation
	AACo’s Legislative Agenda
	Other County Partner Initiatives
	CSA Reactive Advocacy 
	Legislation Amended by Counties
	Legislation Opposed by Counties
	Legislation Opposed by Counties (Cont.)
	2014 Summary
	Federal Update
	Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILT)
	Slide Number 21
	Next Steps
	Policy Development Process

	Att2_Policy Development
	Att3_Session by the Numbers
	Att4_Report
	 Item 2.B. - Transportation Excise Tax Performance Audit
	 Item 3.A. - Bullion Plaza Cultural Center & Museum Update on Activities and Economic Development Grant Request
	Att1_Bullion Plaza Agreement
	Att2_Letter From BPCCM Executive Director
	Att3_Bullion Plaza Letter
	Att4_Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 3.B. - FY2015 Drug, Gang, & Violent Crime Control Grant Application
	Att1_Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Control Grant Application
	 Item 3.C. - Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Grant Agreement for FY2015 Cycle 28 Award (ACJC _DC-15-004)
	Att1_Drug, Gang and Violent Crime Control Grant Agreement (ACJC No. DC-15-004
	Att2_Award Letter
	Att3_Legal Explanation
	 Item 3.D. - Proclamation No. 2014-08 Proclaiming August 1-31, 2014, as Child Support Awareness Month
	Att1_Proclamation 2014-08
	 Item 3.E. - Fill the Gap Application - Limited Jurisdiction Disconnected Scanning
	Att1_Fill The Gap Application
	 Item 3.F. - Contract Award for Bid No. 060214 for Hauling of Asphalt Millings to Forest Road 417-Gisela Road
	Att1_Contract No. 060214 Hauling of Asphalt Millings to Forest Service Road 417-Gisela Road
	Att2_Bid Results
	Att3_Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 3.G. - Contract Award for Bid No. 060314-1 for Milling of Asphalt for Gisela Road Project
	Att1_Contract No. 060314-1 Milling of Asphalt for Gisela Road Project
	Att2_Bid Results
	Att3_Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 3.H. - Library Service Agreements with Hayden, Isabelle Hunt (Pine), Miami, Payson, and Tonto Basin Libraries
	Att1_Hayden LSA
	Att2_Isabelle Hunt LSA 2015
	Att3_Miami LSA 2015
	Att4_Payson LSA 2015
	Att5_Tonto Basin LSA 2015
	Att6_Legal Explanation (Hunt)
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	Att7_Legal Explanation (IGAs)
	 Item 3.I. - Approval of One (1) Revised and Two (2) New Countywide Operational Policies
	Att1_Table of Contents for Countywide Policy Manual
	Att2_BOS-HRS-140 Conflict of Interest Policy
	Att3_BOS_HRS-140 Conflict of Interest Questionnaire
	Att4_BOS-HRS-140 Conflict of Interest Employee_Elected Official Statement 
	Att5_BOS-HRS-140 Conflict of Interest Relative Statement
	Att6_BOS-COB-001 Minutes Policy
	Att7_BOS-COB-001 Minutes Procedures
	Att8_BOS-ADM-002 Computing and Communication Technology Use and Ethics Policy
	Att9_BOS-ADM-002 Computing and Communication Technology Use and Ethics Procedures
	 Item 3.J. - A Sealed Bid for Assessor's Tax Parcel No. 207-15-300-B-7
	Att1_Sealed Bid for Parcel No. 207-15-300-B-7
	Att2_Treasurer's Deed for Tax Parcel No. 207-15-300-B-7
	 Item 4.A. - Intergovernmental Agreement DPS Contract No. 2014-087 regarding State Gang Task Force Detention Liaison Officer Program
	Att1_Intergovernmental Agreement DPS Contract No. 2014-087
	Att2_Legal Explanation
	 Item 4.B. - Amendment No. 1 to Cenpatico Prevention Services Agreement
	Att1_Amendment No. 1 to Cenpatico Prevention Services Agreement
	Amendment #1 - Gila County HD - 07.01.14
	PREVENTION SERVICES AGREEMENT
	AMENDMENT #1

	Exhibit B - Gila County HD 07.01.14
	Sheet1

	Exhibit E - Gila County HD - 07.01.14
	Sheet1

	Exhibit K - Gila County HD - 07.01.14
	1. UDefinitionsU.  The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”), the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (“HITECH”), and the implementing regulations thereunder, including but not limited to ...
	2. UInterpretation of Provisions of this AgreementU. In the event of an inconsistency between the provisions of this Agreement and the mandatory terms of the HIPAA Authorities, the terms of the HIPAA Authorities shall prevail.  Any ambiguity in this A...
	3. UObligations of Business AssociateU.
	a. ULimits on Use and DisclosureU.  Business Associate agrees to not use or further disclose PHI other than as permitted or required by this Agreement, by the HIPAA Authorities or as Required by Law.  Business Associate further agrees that to the exte...
	b. USafeguardsU.  Business Associate agrees to use reasonable and appropriate administrative, physical and technical safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of PHI other than as provided for by this Agreement.  More specifically, as also provided for ...
	c. UMitigation of HarmU.  Business Associate agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to Business Associate of a use or disclosure of PHI by Business Associate in violation of the requirements of this Agreement o...
	d. UReport of Improper Use or DisclosureU.  Business Associate agrees to notify Covered Entities, in writing or orally, without unreasonable delay, but in no case more than five (5) calendar days, of any successful Security Incident or Breach of Unsec...
	e. USubcontractorsU.
	f. UAccess to RecordsU.  At the request of Covered Entities and within five (5) business days of such request and in a reasonable manner designated by Covered Entities, Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to Cover...
	g. UAmendments to PHIU.  At the request of Covered Entities, or, as directed by Covered Entities, at the request of an Individual, Business Associate shall make, within five (5) business days of such request and in a reasonable manner designated by Co...
	h. UAvailability of Internal Practices, Books and RecordsU.  Business Associate shall make its internal practices, books and records available to Covered Entities or the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entities’ compliance with the HIPAA...
	i. UAccounting of DisclosuresU.  Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such disclosures (i.e., (i) the date of the disclosure; (ii) the name of the entity or person who received the PHI and, if known, the...
	j. UDisclosure of Minimum PHIU.  Business Associate agrees that it shall request, use and/or disclose only the amount and content of PHI that is the Minimum Necessary for Business Associate to fulfill its obligations under the terms and conditions of ...
	k. UNotification of ClaimsU.  Business Associate shall promptly notify Covered Entities upon notification or receipt of any civil or criminal claims, demands, causes of action, lawsuits, or governmental enforcement actions (“Actions”) arising out of o...
	l. USecurity Rule RequirementsU. Business Associate shall implement Administrative, Physical, and Technical Safeguards that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of Electronic PHI that it creates, receiv...
	m. UCompliance with HIPAA AuthoritiesU.  Requirements of the HIPAA Authorities that are made applicable with respect to business associates, or any other provision required to be included in this Agreement pursuant to the HIPAA Authorities, are incorp...

	4. UPermitted Uses and Disclosures by Business AssociateU.
	a. UUse or Disclosure to Perform Functions, Activities, or ServicesU.  Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may use or disclose PHI to perform those functions, activities, or services that Business Associate performs for, ...
	b. UAppropriate Uses of PHIU.  Except as may be otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may use PHI for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate or to carry out the legal responsibilities of the Business Assoc...
	c. UConfidentiality Assurances and NotificationU.  Except as may be otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may disclose PHI for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate, provided that disclosures are Required...
	d. UData Aggregation ServicesU.  As applicable, Business Associate may use PHI to provide Data Aggregation services to Covered Entities as permitted by 42 CFR § 164.504(e)(2)(i)(B), except as may be otherwise provided by this Agreement.

	5. UIndemnificationU.  Each party (the “Indemnitor”)  shall indemnify and hold harmless the other party (the “Indemnitee”) against, and reimburse such Indemnitee for, any expense, loss, damages, fees, costs, claims or liabilities of any kind arising o...
	6. UObligations of Covered EntitiesU.
	a. UNotice of Privacy PracticesU.  Covered Entities shall notify Business Associate of any limitation(s) in Covered Entities’s notice of privacy practices, to the extent that such limitation(s) may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.
	b. UChange or Revocation of PermissionU.  Covered Entities shall notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of, permission by an Individual to use or disclose PHI, to the extent that such changes may affect Business Associate’s permitt...
	c. URestrictions on Use or DisclosureU.  Covered Entities shall notify Business Associate of any restriction on the use or disclosure of PHI that Covered Entities has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.522, to the extent such restriction may af...
	d. UNo Request to Use or Disclose in Impermissible MannerU.  Except as necessary for the Data Aggregation Services or management and administrative activities of the Business Associate as allowed herein, Covered Entities shall not request Business Ass...

	7. UTerm and Termination
	a. UTermU.  This Agreement shall be effective as of the earlier of the date first documented above or the effective date of the Services Agreement, and shall terminate upon termination of the Services Agreement for any reason or as otherwise provided ...
	b. UTermination with CauseU.  Upon Covered Entities’s knowledge of a material breach by Business Associate, or its Subcontractors, Covered Entities shall, at its option: (i) provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the breach or end the v...
	c. UEffect of TerminationU.
	i. Except as provided in paragraph (b) of this Section, upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, Business Associate shall return or destroy (at Covered Entities’ election), and shall retain no copies of, all PHI in the possession of Business...
	ii. In the event that Business Associate determines that returning or destroying the PHI is infeasible, Business Associate shall provide to Covered Entities written notification of the conditions that make return or destruction infeasible. Upon Covere...


	8. UStandards for Electronic TransactionsU.  In connection with the Services to be provided to Covered Entities pursuant to this Agreement, Business Associate agrees that if it (or a Subcontractor) conducts an electronic transmission for which the Sec...
	9. UConfidentiality of Business InformationU.
	a. UBusiness InformationU.  In the event the parties have not agreed to alternative confidentiality language with respect to business information in the Services Agreement or elsewhere, the following provisions will apply. Neither party will disclose ...
	b. UResponse to SubpoenaU.  Business Associate shall be permitted to disclose PHI and Confidential Business Information that Business Associate is required to disclose pursuant to court order, subpoena or other compulsory legal process, provided that ...

	10. UMiscellaneousU.
	a. UAssignment; WaiverU.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the respective legal successors of the parties.  Neither this Agreement nor any rights or obligations hereunder may be assigned, in whole or in part, without th...
	b. UProperty RightsU.  All PHI shall be and remain the exclusive property of Covered Entities.  Business Associate agrees that it acquires no title or rights to the PHI, including any de-identified information, as a result of this Agreement.
	c. URight to CureU.  Business Associate agrees that in the event Business Associate fails to cure a breach of this Agreement pursuant to this Agreement, Covered Entities has the right, but not the obligation, to cure the same.  Expenses, costs or fine...
	d. UInjunctive ReliefU.  Business Associate agrees that breach of the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall cause irreparable harm for which there exists no adequate remedy at law.  Covered Entities retains all rights to seek injunctive relief ...
	e. USurvival; SeverabilityU.  The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate under this Agreement, including but not limited to Business Associate’s indemnification obligations, shall survive the termination of this Agreement.  The partie...
	f. UEntire Agreement; AmendmentU.  This document, together with any written Schedules, amendments and addenda, constitutes the entire agreement of the parties and supersedes all prior oral and written agreements or understandings between them with res...
	g. UGoverning LawU.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Arizona to the extent that the HIPAA Authorities do not preempt the same.
	i. UIndependent ContractorsU.  For purposes of this Agreement, Covered Entities and Business Associate, and Covered Entities and any Subcontractor of Business Associate, are and will act at all times as independent contractors. None of the provisions ...
	[Signature page follows]



	Att2_Cenpatico Prevention Services Agreement
	Att3_Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 4.C. - Arizona Criminal Justice Commission Crime Victim Compensation Program Grant Agreement (ACJC No. VC-15-052)
	Att2_Legal Explanation
	 Item 4.D. - Drug, Gang, and Violent Crime Control Grant Agreement (ACJC No. DC-15-023)
	Att2_Legal explanation
	 Item 4.E. - Arizona Criminal Justice Commissoin Crime Victim Assistance Program (ACJC No. VA-15-020)
	Att1_Crime Victim Assistance Grant Agreement No. VA-15-020
	Att2_Legal Explanation
	 Item 4.F. - Amendment No. 11 to an Intergovernmental Agreement Contract No. DE111073001 with Arizona Department of Economic Security
	Att1_Amendment No. 11 Contract DE111073001
	Att2_Amendment No. 10 Contract DE11073001
	Att3_Amendment No. 9 Contract DE111073001
	Att4_Amendment No. 8 Contract No. DE111073001
	Att5_Amendment No. 7 Contract DE111073001
	Att6_Amendment No. 6 Contract No. DE111073001
	Att7_Amendment No. 5 Contract No. DE111073001
	Att8_Amendment No. 4 Contract No. DE111073001
	Att9_Amendment No. 3 Contract DE111073001
	Att10_Amendment No. 2 Contract DE111073001
	Att11_Amendment No. 1 Contract DE111073001
	Att12_Contract No. DE111073001
	Att13_Legal Explanation
	 Item 4.G. - Adoption of an Order to Designate Polling Places and to Appoint Poll Workers for the August 26, 2014, Primary Election
	Att1_Order
	Att2_Statutes
	 Item 4.H. - Whispering Pines Fire District Resignation and Appointment
	Att1_Oath
	Att2_Minutes and Resignation Letter
	Att3_Statute
	 Item 4.I. - Rim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District Governing Board Resignation and AppointmentRim Trail Domestic Water Improvement District Governing Board
	Att1_Oath
	Att2_Minutes and Resignation
	Att3_Statute
	 Item 4.J. - Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office monthly report for June 2014
	Att1_Globe Regional Justice Court monthly report for June 2014
	 Item 4.K. - June 2014 Monthly Report Submitted by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office
	Att1_June 2014 Monthly Report
	Payson JP FY13-14 June Ledger
	jp0404 june 2014

	 Item 4.L. - Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for June 2014
	Att1_Payson Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for June 2014
	 Item 4.M. - Payson Regional Constable's Office Annual Report for fiscal year 2013-2014
	Att1_Payson Regional Constable's Office Annual Report for fiscal year 2013-2014
	 Item 4.N. - Globe Regional Constable's Office Monthly Report for May 2014 and June 2014
	Att1_Globe Regional Constable's Office Report for June 2014
	Att2_Globe Regional Constable's Office Report for May 2014
	 Item 4.O. - Clerk of Superior Court's Report for the Month of June 2014
	Att1_Clerk's Report for June 2014
	 Item 4.P. - June 24, 2014, and July 15, 2014, Board of Supervisors' Meeting Minutes
	Att1_BOS 07-15-14 Meeting Minutes
	Att2_BOS 06-24-14 Meeting Minutes
	 Item 4.Q. - Human Resources reports for the weeks of 07_01_14, 07_8_14, 07_15_14, 07_22_14, and 07_29_14.
	Att1_July Human Resources Summary Report
	Att2_07_01_14 Human Resources Report
	Att3_07_08_14 Human Resources Report
	Att4_07_15_14 Human Resources Report
	Att5_07_22_14 Human Resources Report
	Att6_07_29_14 Human Resources Report
	 Item 4.R. - Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 7-4-14_ 7-11-14_ and 7-18-14
	Att1_Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks Ending 7-4-14_ 07-11-14_ and 7-18-14
	Att2_Addendum to Service Agreement with Entech
	Att3_Service Agreement No  050314 with Advanced Controls Corporation
	Att4_Service Agreement No  043014 with Advanced Controls Corporation
	Att5_Amendment No 5 to Contract No. 091413-1 with Lin-Cum, Inc.
	Att6_Service Agreement No. 050414 with Experienced Fire Sprinkling, Inc.
	Att7_Amendment No. 1 to Limited Services Contract with Sienna Counseling
	Att8_Lease Agreement No. 071014 with St. Paul's United Methodist Church
	Att9_Amendment No. 2 to Service Agreement No. 042412 with Husky Fire and Safety
	Att10_Service Agreement 070214-3 with Earthquest Plumbing

